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told him about your traffic stop and he told you about
what?
A Just the stabbings that he's been dealing with

down where he's from.
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Q Do you remember where that was?

A No, I don't.

0 Do you remember 1f it involved the Hell's Angels?

A No, I don't.
Q Do you remember if it involved the Vagos?

A No, I don't.

0 So this apparently wasn't much of an intelligence

exchange, was it?

A Correct.
o} Did you make any notes?
A No.

0 Cid he?
A No.

Q Did he describe the incident that you -- the

stabbing incident to you?

A No.

0 Okay. Let's move on to the next person that'you

talked to about what you were here to testify7about.

What did he tell you about his experience?

A I only talked to one person.

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc.  775-746-3534
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0 Well, you told us --
A There was others that were present. I don't know
if they were listening. They weren't engaged 1ﬁ the
conversation.

Q Okay. What were you talking about with those

people?
A I was only talking to onpe individual.
Q And fhe other people were listening?
A If they'were, I don't know.

0 Tell mé what color hair the guy had that you were
talking to.

A Blonde. Blondish. Dirty blonde.

0 Age?

A Mid 30s.

0 Is he still out here?

B Yes.

Q You saw him when you were just out in the
hallway?

A Yes.

Q What's he wearing?

- A A suit.
0 So you're engaged in, to some agree at least, in
intelligence-sharing. That's what you told us earlier

this_mornihg. That was the purpoSe of talking.

Captions Unlimited of .Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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A That was not the purpose. It was just Like --

0 Okay. Well, Officer, you only testified, what?
You said four times?

A Three times.

0 Okay. S0 do you understand that you're under
oath, right?

A Yes.

0 And you understand when'you testify, you're

supposed to tell evefything you remember, right?

Y Yes.
0 As clearly as you can.
A Yes.

Q. Ckay. And it doesn't matfter if it's the first
time it's asked of you or the fffth time it's asked of
you,-you'fe supposed to tell it the way it was, right?

A During our.conversation, I wasn't undef oath.

Q  Okay. No, I'm not talking about here. I'm
talking about 1in the courtroom.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MR. HALL: Your Honor. I'm going to object. I
think he's already covered this ground about what he's
testified --

THE COURT: Overruled.

ME. DOGAN: I don't believe this is ---

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Tnc. ~ 775-746-3534
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THE COURT: I ruled on it.
BY MR. CHESNOFF:
Q You told us this morning that you spoke to two
officers from Kern County -- from Arizona and one from

Kern County.

:y No.
Q That's what you told us earlier this morning.
A No.

Q You didn't tell us that?

A I said I spoke to one officer, and then you asked
where the officers were from.

0 Well, if you didn't talk to them, how did you
know where they were from? Were they wearing a sign that
said: I'm in Arizona?

A No. I mean, I asked é general, where they were
from.

o Okay. So when you told us that you really didn't
talk to them and they didn;t talk to you, that wasn't
completely true, was_it, Officer?

| B That was before yesterday.

Q Okay. Officer, you understand that your role
here is to provide Her Honof with as much information,
truthful information as you can?

A Yes.

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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Q Okay. So we know that you talked to at least
three to four officers, correct?

A Yes.

0 And wé know that you found out where at least
three of them were from, correct?

A Yes,

0 And you had to find that out by them telling you

where they were from, correct?
A Yes.
0 Okay. So you had a conversation that went just

beyond two of them listening to you talk to one other,

correct?
A Yes, but it wasn't -- we weren't having a

conversation. It was general questions, such as: Where
are you from? |

0 Where are you from? How were you involved in
Investigating motorcycle clubs? That came up, right?

A No. Just generally where they wére from.

Q Okay. Well, you told them that you were here
because you had stopped a member of the Vagos, correct?

A - Yes.

Q And you told them that you stoppéd a member of
the Vagos becaﬁse of what you perceived as a traffic

violation, right?

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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A Yes.

0 And then you told them that you did a search,

correct?
A Yes.
Q And you were happy to find, as a law enforcement

officer, that you could arrest somebody for a felony

because they had a serious weapon with them, correcti?

K Yes. |

Q Okay.' And then -- at first you told us that you
had engaged ~- that you told them that you had interviewed
the witness. Do you remember that?

A I don't recall saying that I interviewed the

witness to anybady else.

Q Okay. In the course of your conversation with
the one perscon that you actually represent you had a real
conference with, he told you he was involved 1inp an
1nvest1gatﬁon that_involved a stabbing; is that right?

A Yes.

0 Did he tell you it involved, as you were
questioned, about the rivalry between the Hell's Angels
and the Vagos?

A No.

0 Okay. Did you share with them that the

investigation you were involved in dealt with the issue of

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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someone having committed a cfime becaﬁse they were fearful
of that rivalry?

A No.

Q Okay. In conclusion, is it your testimony that
the officer with the blonde hair and the suit that's
outside will'testify that he shared nothing more with you
than the fact that he was here to testify about a
stabbing?

MR. STEGE: Judge, he can't speculate as to what
the other witness is going to say.

THE COURT: Overruled. You can answer.

THE WITNESS: I don't know what he's going to
say. We didn't engage anything further than what I've
already expla{ned.

BY MR. CHESNOFF:

0 It's 11m1fed to what you said.

A Yes. _ |

‘MR. CHESNOFF: I have nothing further; Your
Honor . |

THE COURT: Counsel?

VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION
BY MR. DOGAN:

Q  When we called a recess, did you speak to the

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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district .

A

Q

A

Q

afficers?

A

Q

A

Q

attorney about this?

No.

Did you speak to their 1nvestigator?
No.

Did you speak to any other law enforcement

No.
Did you remain in the court building?
Yes.

When you were 1in the court buiiding, did you

observe any law enforcement officers talking about their

cases?
Fi\

past?
Q

a

Q

Can you clarify? Like cases ‘that are like in the

Past, present, future.
Yes.

Do you recall whether they were talking about

this case?

A

Q

A

Q

No.
Could you be sure?
I wasn't listening to their conversation.

During the recess, you sit outside with all the

other law enforcement officers, correct?

A

Yes.

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534

1003

60




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

13

20

21

22

23

24

Q How many other law enforcement officers sit out

there?
A There's probably abcocut five right now.
Q And yesterday, how many other law enforcement

officers sat outside at the bench?
A Abouf five.
MR. DOGAN: Nothing further, Your Honor.
MR. CHESNOFF: I forgot one question. May I ask
it?

THE COURT: Sure, ves,

FURTHER VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION
BY MR. CHESNOFF:

Q' 'Sir, do you remember being advised by an
investigator for the district attorney's office.tﬁat you
were not allowed to talk to the other witnesses -while you
were preparing to testffy or after your testimony?

-y I was not given a rule book, no. I don't recall
that.

Q Did any member of the district attorney's office
advise you that the exclusionary rule for witnesses had
been invoked? |

A No.

MR. CHESNOFF: Thank you, Your Honor.

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. ~ 775-746-3534
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Mr. Hall?

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Stege? Is it you or

MR. STEGE: It's me, Judge.

THE COURT: Okay.

VOIR DIRE EXAMINATIOCN

BY MR. STEGE:

Q

Did you learn any details of the case of the

gentleman that you were talking with about -- out on the

bench, the blonde-haired man?

A

Q

No.

Could you give us any details as to what occurred

in his case?

A

Q

Gther than a stabbing, I don't know.

In terms of -- what level of detail did you tell

him about your case?

A

Q

yey

Q

A
that was

Q

A

About my case?

Yeah.

Just the items that I had seized.

Okay. You mentioned the ~--

For example, the gun and the-brass knuﬁkles, and
about it.

You had mentioned the recording you got?

No.

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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Q Did you mention even the reason for the stop?

A I might have. I don't remember.

Q And it's your testimony that this was all after
you had testified in court yesterday when I examined you.

3 This was before.

Q Okay. That conversation, did it affect in any
way your testimony on the stand?

a No.

Q: Was there anyone from your agency out there when
you were having this diécussion?

A No.

Q Did you discuss the strategy of the
cross-examination by the 1awyers in the case during this

conversation?

A No.

o] Did anyone mention how they're cross-examining
people? |

A No.

Q But you did say: Yeah, I learned that there's a
detectivg here from Arizona, right?
A Yes.
Q But that was just sort of: Hey, how are you
deing? Where are you from?

A Passing conversation, yes.

Captions Uﬁlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
;O (|

63




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

13

19

20

21

22

23

24 .

Q Did you learn énything about any investigations
tThat he has conducted?

A No.

0 What about anycne eise that has either been
outside_yesterday or today?

A No.

Q When did you arrive here in Reno to give
testimony?

A Monday afternoon.

o} And when did you arrive at the courthouse

yesterday?

A At about 3:00 o'clock, I believe.

0 When did you arrive at the courthouse today?
A About 9:00 o'clock this morning.

0 Did you discuss anyone's testimony with them?
A No.

0  What they had testified to in court?

A No.
Q Or what they were going to testify to in court?
A No.

MR. STEGE: Nothing further.
THE COURT: Okay. Did you have something else?
MRT CHESNOFF: Yeah. Thank you, Your Honor.

/1
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FURTHER VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION
BY MR. CHESNOFF:

Q Sir, when it first came up that you had talked to
the other officers, you said you did it for purposes of
exchanging intelligence.

Do you remember saying that to us earlier?

Fi\ That's one of the reasons why I talk tc other law
enforcement agencies or other law enforcement personnel.

o Right. So you remember that you told Her Honor
that you were talking to the other officers in order for
there to be intelligence exchanges? Do you remember that?

A Yes.

o} Okay. So we know you exchanged the 1nte11igence
aboﬁt your traffic stop, correct?

A Yes.

o) But your testimony under oath is, even though you
said you were falking to them for intelligence purposes,
you Llearned nothing from them other than one 6f them Was
involved in a case that involved a stabbing. That was the
extent of it?

A Yes.

Q So that's the extent of how you exchanged
intelligence?

A Yes,

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. ~ 775-746-3534
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0 So there really -- so there’'s really no
intelligence-gathering going on, right?
MR. STEGE: Argumentative.
THE COURT: Sustained.
MR. CHESNOFF: Okay. TI'l1l just -- I know -- no
more, Your Honor.
MR. DOGAN: Briefly, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

FURTHER VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION
BY MR. DOGAN:
Q After yﬁu left court yesterday, did you go have
dinner with any of the other law enforcement ofticers?

MR. STEGE: Judge, this 1is beydnd the scope. You
know what I examined.

THE COURT: Well, I thought that had been ésked
by Mr. Chgsnoff originally. Yes. if he had any contact
with any.last night.

BY MR. DOGAN:
Q Did you have breakfast with-any of  the 1aw-_

enforcement officers this morning?

A No.
Q And you were stayihg in the-hotei room, right?
A Yes.

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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0O Are all the five other law enforcement officers
staying at the same hotel room?
A Yes.

Q Pid you.——

A At the same hotel rcom?
9] Excuse me. Same hotel,
iy Yes.

0 Okay. Did you --
THE COURT: 'f thought the State was getting
pretty cheap there. |

(Discussion off the record.)

- BY MR. DOGAN:

Q Pid you discuss this case at the hotel?
A No.
0 And when you were talking about this case which

you prevjously'testified tc, you were cutside the
courtroom, correct?

A Yes.

0 In earshot of the five other law enforcement

officers, correct?

A Yes.

Q And all of you were talking, correct?
A To each other or -~

O Yes.

Ca‘ptidns Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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time?

No.

It was just one-on-one communication the entire
Yes,
MR. DOGAN: Nothing further.

THE COURT: Anything else?

FURTHER VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION

BY MR. STEGE:

Q

Did you coaordinate your testimony with anyone

© today or yesterday?

A No.
MR. STEGE: Nothing else, Your Hﬁnor.
"THE COURT: All right, sir, thank you. You can
step down. You're not excused.

PETER GRIMHM,
called as a witness by the State,
'hav1ng been first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows:

VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION

BY MR. HALL:

Q

Sir, state your name and spell your last.

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. ~ 775-746-3534
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A Peter. Last name, Grimm, G-R-I-M-HM.

Q What is your occupation, sir?

A Criminal investigator, the washoé County District
Attorney's offTice.

Q And how long have you been so employed?

A Since 2006. |

Q And you were assisting in shutiling witnesses to
and from the court here on this case 1nv01V1ng
Mr. Villagrana and Mr. Gonzalez; 1is that correct?

A Yes.

Q A1l right. Were you here yesterday?

A Yes.

O All right. And were you {nside the courtroom
when the rule of exclusion was invoked by the defense?

A The Tirst time, when Jorge was here the first
time, and then it continued-over into this one, yés.

Q So that would have been yesterday. Were you in

- the courtroom --

A No, not yesterday.
Q dkay.
THE COURT: Mr. Hall, I think the clerk pulled up
a transcript for me --
MR. HALL: Good.

THE COURT: -- after you asked me the question.

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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And the rule of exclusion was initially invoked on
October 29th, at that hearing. So that may be what the
witness is talking about. |

MR. HALL: Okay.

BY MR. HALL:
0 Were you here yesterday?
A Yes.

0 Okay. When you were, did you have any
conversation with the witnesses regarding the rule of
exclusion?

A All of them, every time we'brought'them here, and
told them they had to stay éutside because the rule of
exctusion was 1n place. |

0 Okay. And those were the witnesses that were.
here yesterday? -

F:\ .Yes. All the ones that I had contact with, yes.

0 Okay. And do you recall who was here yesterdgy
when you told them that thé rule of exclusion had been
invoked and they had to sit outside?

A There was Les Skelton, Eric Bennett, Las Végas
Metro PD, Fieselman and Long. . They're from Las Vegas
Metro PD. | | |

_Kern County, Jeff Colbert. Jorge G11—Blanco, but

he went first so he was already up here,

-Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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0 A1l right. Did he leave after his testimony?

A Yes.

Q Did you hear him discuss his testimony with
anybody?

A No.

Q Okay. Did you hear anybody ﬁho has testified
discuss theTr'testimony with any other witnéss?

A No.

0 Did you hear any witnesses discussing their
testimony or their case with other witnesses after the --

at any time?

A No.
0o - Did you explain the rule of exclusion?
A I did not expla1n it, no. I assumed that they

knew what the rule of exclusion was, and they've all sat
outside and not come in.

0 So what does the'rule_of'exglusion mean you?

A Rule of exclusion means that you're not suppoéed
to be in the courtroom during any period of the court
that's pertaining to the case you're going.to be
testifying to, and that you cannot talk about your
testimony as to what you're testifying to in court.

MR. HALL: Okay. All right, thank you. I have

no further questions.
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THE COURT: Cross?

VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION

BY MR. CHESNOFF: |

Q Sir, did you hear Officer Kirby talking about his
traffic stop of our codefendant in the hallway with the
other officers?

A | No. Not 1in tﬁe hallway.

o} Okay. .Did you hear it anywhere?

A Well, when we did a pretrial with him, it was
ourselves, myself and Deputy DA Amos.

0 -And were there other officers present at the
pretrial besides him?

A There was two other that were-in the pretrial
with us.

Q So yoﬁ had a group pretrial?

A They were in the same room, but we separate them.
when we do our pretrials fo talk to these individuals.

Q\ Okay. But 1t?s in the same room?

A No, I'm sorry. No, because ~- I'm sorry.

We put them in a group together at first, and

then we individually bring.them out to talk to them,
usually 1in Karl'é office 6r downstairs in our VWAC area.

0 Officer Kirby has told us that he ftalked to the
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other officers about the traffic stop that he did on our

codefendant.,

A I never heard that.

O Where is this pretrial conference room?

A ‘We have several pretrial conference rooms. Like
I said, we put everybody in a room just so -- to

facilitate them. And then when we go for pretrial, we

pull them out one at a time to do our --

Q Prep?
A Yes. Well, our pretrial.
0 And when you do this explanation of the rule of

exclusion, you do that at the prep room when they're all
together?
A No. . Usually it's at the end of our pretrials.

We'll say: You will not be able tao sit inside the

‘courtroom. Rule of exclusion will be in effect.

And then as well, when we bring thém here: You
guy§ have to sit outside because the rule of exclusion is
in effect.

o} Pretty clear to you that Mr. Kirby was advised of
the rule of exclusion, correct? |

A | I believe 55 because he was here prior to
testifying. And he'd been sitting outside with all the

individuals, and he did not come 1in here because he knew
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he could ndt come 1in.

Q So based on the fact that he was in a location
separate and he didn't come into the courtroom, you
concluded that he understoocd the rule of exclusion,

A When he was waiting for his trial? No, he's not
a place that's separate. I mean, they're all sitting
outside the courtroom. |

0 Right.

a But, yeah, betause of the facf that he could not
come-intﬁ the courtroom because he knew he could not come
in and listen to other people's test{mony.

o  Did Mr. Gil-Blanca (sic), in an effort to learn

more intelligence for the role he plays as kind of a law

“enforcement expert on motorcycle gang --

MR. HALL: Objection, Your Honor. He doesn't
know what Gil-Blanco -- |
MR. CHESNOFF: I haven't finished the question.
MR. HALL: Well, finish._
THE COURT: 1I'll let him finish the question.
BY MR. CHESNOFF:
| 0 Did Mr. Gil-Blanca, who you said you know,
Correct?
A Yes, sir.

Q0  Okay. Did he spend time talking to the other
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officers in order to gather intelligence from them?
MR. HALL: When? Vague.
BY MR. CHESNOFF:
Q At any time that you observed.
A No. No, sir.
"MR. CHESNOFF: Thank you.
THE WITNESS: You're welcome.
THE COURT: Anything else?
MR. CHESNOFF: Nope. Thank you.
THE COURT: Okay, Counsel? |

MR. DOGAN: Thank you, Your Honor.

FURTHER VOIR DIRE EXAMiNATION
BY MR. DOGAN:

Q When did you get here this morning?

A This morning I was here right at the beginning of
the hearings -- of the hearing.
Q Do you know what time you got here?

A We got here at 9:15.
Q And had all the witnesses 5howed up at about

9:157

A . When I got here, there was the San Jose officer

that testified first, Les Skelton and Fieselman, Long,

Colbert.
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Fieselman, Long, and Colbert, they were actually
sitting up here. They were all up here in the courthouse.
And then I believe Invéstigator Stone escorted Les SKelton

and the officer, the San Jose officer from this morning,

over.
Q And the meeting point was the courthouse,
correct?
A I guess it's pretty much depending on where they

wanted fo go, 'cuz two of them came over to our office and
three of them came over here. So it was --

Q Which_twp came over to-your office?

A That was Skelton and the officer that was here
this merning. | |

Q Did you hear Skelton or the ——.when you say the

officer that was here this morning, who do you speak of?

A | I can't remember his. name. The young kid that
Wwas just -- just got off the stand.

o) The one from San Jose?

A Yes.

o] Officer Kirby?

&  Kirby, yeah.

Q He was with Les Skelton over at your office this
morning?
A Not together, no, because he actually got there

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534

3004

76




10
11
12

13

14

i5
16
17
18
19

20

- 21

22

23

24

after Les Skelton. So I know it was -- Investigator
Hodges went and picked up Les Skelton, brought him back fo
cur office; and then after that, went and got Kirby and
brought him back. Sc by the fime Kirby got there, it was
time to walk across the street.
o] Okay. Did you walk across the street with them?
A No. I walked over with the prosecutors.

Q Okay. Before providing téstimony right now, did

'you speak to the prosecutors regarding the rule of

exclusion?

A Yes, yeah.

Q And what was the nature of that conversation?

A That we -- that they knew the rule of eXClus{on
was in effect, but that we did not explain to them, as
Your Honor had asked if we did, we did.ndt explain to them
what the rule of exclusion is in Nevada due to the fact
tﬁey're all law enforcement on my side,

And, well, on my side, jt-was an assumpfion that
because we're law enforcement, they know what the law of
exclusion is. The rule of exclusion, I'm sorry.

Q Did you speak of ény particular officer?

A I'm talking about all the officers. 1It's
presumed that they all understand what the'fule of

exclusion is.

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534

At

77




10

11

i2

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21 -

22

C23

24

0 Were you advised by the prosecutors of the

meaning of the rute of exclusion before coming into court

today?
A Yeah. I've known about the rule of exclusion for
a long time. But again, I've never explained it fto

anyﬁody except for lay witnesses, meaning'civilian
witnesses., Then it's explained,

Yeah, with lay, lay witnesses, we actually
explain to them and how they should probably dress in
court and everything. I mean, it's explained.

But with all law enforcement officers -- and

maybe it's my fault or other investigators' fault, but

-1t's presumed that they understand what the rule of

exclusion is. And they all seem to understand that
because df fhe fact they were all standing.outside and
they knew_they could not comé into the courthouse.

0 Mr. Grimm, today were you advised of the rule of
exclusion and the meaning. of the rule of exclusion?

A ° Oh, no. |

' 0 Okay.

A Well, I take.that back. Yeah. When I was
sitting in here'and Your Honor explained it. So when I
was sitting in the céurtroom, it was explained, I guess

you can say today.
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Q Mr. Hall d1dn't explain it to you, correct?

A He didn't have to.

Q And Mr. Stege did not explain the rule of
exclusion to you today, correct?

A He didn't ha&e to as well.

THE COURT: You were in the courtroom when

Mr. Kirby was first testifying? We first had that first

hearing --
THE WITNESS: Yes, Your Honor.
THE COURT: That's what you're referring to?
THE WITNESS: Yes, Your Honor.
BY MR. DOGAN: |
| 0 Is it your testimony tcday that you did not
correctly advise the witnesses of the rule of exclusion?
A No. I correctly advised them thét the rule of
exclusion is in effect.
Q ° But that's all you advised them .of, that it was
in effect?
A And that they could not come in the courtroom
while othefs are testifying. |
| Q Okay. So yesterday‘when you came to court, you
escbrtéd Mr. Gil-Blanco iﬁto court, correct?
A I did, yes.

Q No other law enforcement officers were with
Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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Mr. Gil-Blanco?

A I don't -~ from what I recall, nobody was over
here. And.I don't even rememher if anybody was even over
in our office at that time because he was going fo be our
Tirst witnéss.

0 Sd it's possible that Mr. Gil—Blancp could have
had contact with other witnesses before coming into court
teday?

A In person, no, because.we were with him from the
time -- I picked him up about 7:30 in the mdrn1ng, and I
was with him the entire time. And if he wasn't with me,
he was with Mr. Hall and Mr. Stege 1in Mr. Hall's office by
himself.

0 At the end of Mr. G11-Blahco's testimony, you
left the courthouse with Mr. Gil-Blanco, correct?

.A Yes, I did. |

Q You didn't Stick_arouhd in the couftroom.

A. No, we did not.

MR. DOGAN: Nothing further, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Anything else?
MR. CHESNOFF: No, thank you, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Thank you. |
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FURTHER VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION
BY MR. HALL:
Q Mr._GTI—Blaan left right after his testimony,
correct?
A Yes, he did. Well,.we went down and smoked

cigars, he and myself, on the veranda. That was it.

Q Didn't meet with any of the witnesses, discuss
his --

A No.

Q -- testimony wWith --

a2  No.

Q  -- anybody or anything like that? And you were

wWwith him?

a I was with him the entire time.

0 And 1in other words, when you were in the
courtrocm earlier and.there was a quesiion as to whether
or.not the rule of exclusion had been explained to the
witnesses, do you remember when you were in the courtrbom
earlier and Mr. Kirby was on the stand?

A Yes.

Q All right. And I recall that you shook your head
in a negative fTashion. |

A I did, yeah.

O ALl right. And so why did you do that?
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A From my -- what my understanding was, was the
rule of exclusion actually explaiﬁed, I mean, in detail as
Your Honor did, to the witness. And no, we did not
explain it to them in detail.

We said the rule of exclusion is in effect but
again, unfortunately, that was our assumption, due to the

fact they”re all law enforcement officers, that they

‘understood 1it.

Q So When ybu shook your head no, that was whether
or not you explained it as opposed to whether or not you
informed them that it was in effect.

A Exactly.

- Q-_ Rule of exclusion was in effect but you didn't
explain it, |

A Exactly.

0 Okay.

THE COURT: Does that create any QUestions from
anyone else? QOkay.

Then the witness can step down.

MR. CHESNOFF: Your Honor.may I make a suggestion
that we -- |

THE COURT: Yes.

MR, CHESNOFF: ~- that we hear from the --

THE COURT: You can keep going. ft wasn't about
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you.

MR. CHESNOFF: The blonde.

THE COURT: He'll be next.

MR. CHESNOFF: Thank you.

THE COURT: Could we hear from the officer who
was described as the blonde, sandy hair, mid 30s?

MR. HALL: I_believé the reference was to Jeff
Colbert. I'l1l get him right now,.

THE COURT: Thank you.

JEFFREY COLBERT,
called as a witness by the 5State,
having been first duly sworn, was examined

and testified és follows:

VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION
BY MR. HALL:
Q Sir, just state your name and spell'your last.

A leffrey Colbert. Last name is C-0-L-B, as in

boy, E-R-T.
Q Sir, and where_are you employed?
A I'm a detective with the Kern County Sheriff's

office in Bakersfield, California.

Q And how long have you been employed with the Kern
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County Sheriff's office?

A It will be 11 and a half years now.
0 What are your current duties?
A I'm currently assigned to the detective section,

robbery)homicide unit.
THE COURT: I missed that.
THE WITNESS: Robbery/homicide. I apologize,
Your Honor.
THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.
BY MR. HALL:
0 So you're cur%ently a robberyKhomicﬁde detective
with the Kern County Sheriff's.office? -
A Yes. |

o} Have you testified in court before?

MR._CHESNOFF: Your Honor, with the last witness,

thé defense went first. I don't know what the Court's
preference is.

THE COURT: Oh, yes. I mean, because of the
nature of fhe first part.of the hearing, I think thaf
would be appropriate.

So you go ahead and inquire, and then the State
can inquire, but not as to the substance of the witness's
testimony.

MR. CHESNOFF: I'm sorry?
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THE COURT: Not as to the substance.
MR. CHESNOFF: No, no. Just on the issue --

THE COURT: Okay. The issue we're dealing with.

VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION
BY MR. CHESNOFF:
o Sir, did you have an opportunity over the last

several days to meet some of your fellow officers?

A Yes.
0 Do you remember, which ones did you meet?
A I spoke to in the past and I know specifically

Eric Bennett from San Bernardino. Other than that, I
don't recall any names. Just it's been kind of casual

conversations.

Q ‘Did you meet a young officer by the name of
Kirby?
A I believe so.

Q Okay. And do you recall Officer Kirby telling
you about a traffic stop that he performed in California?

A I was present at a meeting with several other
officers when i fjrst got heré on Monday. I believe
Officer Kirby was explaining partially his 1nvestigaf10n,
and I believe a recording was played.

However, I wasn't_listéning all that intently.
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I'm sorry.
0 Okay. S50 a meeting held through the district

attorney's office?

A Yas.
0 Was it 1ike a -- is that right?
A Yes. It was like a pre -- where I met the

district attorney's office staff and basically going over
what -~ the schedule and what was going to transpire in
court. |

Q And so each of you were in proximity to each

other, near each other?

A There was only, I think, a few of us at that
time. I believe we came in waves, just whenever we got
here. I drove, so I got here later.

Q Now, as law enforcement officers, oftentimes when
you meet collieagues, you share information and stories,
corrECt?\

A It depends. A couple of guys here, I'vé
recognized them from conferences, and it's more like a:
Where do I know you from? You look very familiar. I just
can't recall. That kind of thing.

Q - And in the course of this meeting that you had,

Mr. Kirby described an event that he was involved in,

correct? You at least remember hearing something from
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Mr. Kirby to that effect, right?

A It was more of the fact that I think he was being
asked questions and he was ﬁonfirming or denying
information, and I don't recall the gist of it, honestly.
I wasn't paying too close aftention.

Q There was a tape played?

A Partially._

Q What was the setting? were you 1in a conference
room? In an office?

2 I believe it was in an office.

0 Who was present?

A | The DA to the left, to my left, officer and a
detective. I'm not sure of his titlé. Kirby, myself, and
I don't recall if one of the investigators was there or
not. I don't rémember.

Q IDo you remember if some officers from Arizona may

have been present?

.} No.

o - Was it questidn and answers going on in drder_to
prep?

A As far as with me or with --

0 With Mr. Kirby.
A I believe there was some questions and some

back-and-forth conversation. I just don't recall, sir.
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Q Without going into the substance of it, the
incident that ycu are prepared to testify about involves 3

stabbing; is that right?

A Yes, sir
0 And where was that? Where did that cccur?
A It occurred in Bakersfield, California. More

specifically, a little area called Oildale.

0 Okay. And did you go through a similar
give-and-take about the events that occurred 1in your
incident with the DA?

A Yes, very brief.
Q Okay. And Mrp'Kirby was present at that time in

the room?

3 I don't recall if he was or not, sir.
0 Do you recall if any other officers were present?
Y It was a representative from the DA's office, the

DA sitting here, and then I just don‘t recall if the
investigator was there or not.

0 And did you describe the facits that occurred in
that incident in the course of that qUéstioning?

A FPartially. They were pretiy up on the case
because the officer reports themselves, I helieve I was

asked events that led up to the stabbing, the conflict

between the two gangs.
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Q So one of the issues that came up was the
purported rivalry between the Vagos and the Hell's Angeis?

A That was one of the issues that we spoke about in
my particular area, yes.

0 And your area is as someone who has information

about motorcycle clubs, correct?

A I'm sorry, sir. What was that?
G Has information about motorcycle clubs, correct?

A Yes. I was the investigator in the gang unit
that ﬁaﬁ responsiblé for thé motorcycle gangs.

0 In your jurisdiction.

A Yes, sir.

Q Okay. You're familiar with the rule of

exclusion, are you not?

A Partially. I mean, I'm not an attorney, but I
am -- |

Q But you've been a witness 1in courts,.corrett?

A Yes.

Q And you understand that as a witness in .a

courtroom, you can't be present during other people's
testjmony, Tor example.

A Yes..

0 And you're also aware that while a case is

proceeding, you're not supposed to discuss your testimony
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with other witnesses, correct?
A Yes.
MR, CHESNOFF: Court's indulgence.
THE COURT: Yes. |
BY MR. CHESNOFF:
| Q Do you recall having a conversation with Officer

Kirby about the traffic stop that he was involved in?

A No.
Q So if Officer Kirby -- well, let me ask it to you
this way:

Do you recall being present when Officer Kirby

was describing the traffic stop that he was involved in?

A Prier to the hearing starting?

0 Yes.

A The meeting?

Q Yes.

A Yes, I was there. '

o So 1f Officer Kirby believed 1t happened in the
hallway outside, you would disagree with that?

A I didn't hear him speak about it in the hallway.

We have spoken a couple times, but it's mostly like:

Where are you from? What have you seen? 'That kind of

stuff.

We haven't been discussing, for lack of better
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terms, cop stuff.

Q You haven't discussed motorcycle intelligence or
anything 1ike that?

A Not with Mr. Kirby, no.

0] With other people?

A I've spoke to Mr. Bennett about past cases, and
he assisted partially in my investigation, the one I™m
here for today.

The.DA investigator, I don't recall his name. He
just left. I'm horrible with names. I apologize.

0 So Mr. Bennett was a witness or a -- a witness
with respect to the 1nvest1éat10n that you've been
involved in, correct?

A No, he wasn't a witness. We, biker

dinvestigators, we Eegularly exchange intel. We keep 1in

contact with each other. We network just about things
that are gojng on. '

Q So you did discuss wifh.Mr. Bennett, at least to
some degree, shared police 1nte111gencé while you have
been here preparing to be a wiiness, correct?

A No, sir. It's more like, again: You look
familiar. Recognize the name.

‘Until, I think, this case, I have never met

Mr. Bennett personally. I've spoken to him on the phone.
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It hasn't been like an exchange of information. It's just
been: Where do I know you from? Where do you work? That
kind of stuff.

Q Mr. Bennett did tell you why he was here, though,
did he not?

A. I'm assuming. I can assume, but we haven't
really talked all that much.

Q Okay. Did any of the other officers tell you why
they were here?

A To testify in this case. I mean, not
specifically, as I_can recall, but it's been mostly casual
tonversation, sir.

MR. CHESNOFF: Thank you, sir.
"THE COURT: Do you pass?

MR. CHESNOFF: Yes,

THE COURT: oOkay. Counsel?

MR. DOGAN: Thank you, Your Honor.

VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION
'BY MR. DOGAN:
Q Before you came into court today, did you kndw
why you were coming into court right now?
A I was told that I'm being -- for testifying as

far as the incident that occurred in 2010 between the
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" Vagos and the Hell's Angels that I investigated.
Q Did you speak to the DA today?
A No.

Q Did you speak to the investigator today?

A No. I received a phone call saying be here 9:30,

just confirming that court started at 9:30, to be here on
time.

Q Do you know the investigator's name?

A I don't.

o} But there was an investigatcer present at the

‘conference that you had at the district attorney's office,

carrect?

A I don't remember. 1It's possible. There was a
lot of people being shuffled around. They were mbstly
shuffling people as far as driving them to and from the
hotel. And if they were there, 1t-was.probéb1y briefly..
I just_dqn't remember . |

Q There was more than one persocon in the room?

A . I just don't remembérf sir. Me, Officer Kirby,
and then the DA. Other than that

-0 Can you ﬁay that again?_ I'm Sorry,_I missed
that. |

A Besides me and the DA and Officer Kirby; I just

don't remember. There was several people the first day I
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got here. I don't remember everybody.

Q Did you speak to Officer Kirby yesterday?

A Again, casual conversation. Nothing about the
current case. |

Q And when you spoke to Officer Kirby, that was

outside the courtroom?

A Yes.

Q In the presence of five other officers, correct?

A However many were here at the tfme, yeah.

0 Do you remember how many were here at the time?

A No.

0 -And all of you are sharing the same hotel,
correét?

A I believe so. I've seen a coﬁple guys, yeah.

Q - Did you speak about your case after you left
court yesterday?
A No. I haven't gone out with anybody. I mean,

just seeing people in passing, saying hello.

0 You kept to yourself the entife time; cofrect?

A Yeah. I've been in my room and haven't done
anything. .

Q@ This ﬁofnihg Qhen you came to tﬁurt, did you go

straight to the DA's office?

A No, I came straight here.

Captions Unlimi'ted. of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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Q When you came straight here, was Officer Kirby

present?
A I was the first here. Officer Kirby showed Up.
0 Who else was here?

A I got here the same time the defendant all the
way to the right. There was the guards outside. I think
we were the-ffrst ones here as far as everybedy in this

room.

Q Were there other law enforcement officers
present? | |

A No.

QO There were no other witnesses preséht for this
case?

A Not when I got here, no.

Q Did you talk to Officer Kirby about ybur'

testimony here today before --

a No, I --
Q -- coming 1intc court?
A I apologize. I didn't mean to interrupt you.

I had not talked to Officer Kirby today.

0 Okay. Did you speak to any other law enforcement

officers today about your testimony?
.Y About my testimony, no.

0 Did any_other law enforcement officer speak to
- Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc.  775-746-3534
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you about their cases?

A No. TIt's been casual conversation this morning.
Q Today, were you advised of the exclusionary rule?
A No.

O You spoke to Officer Bennetf, correct?

A When?

0 You tell me.
A It was -- I have spoken to him, again, casual

conversation. You look familiar, that kind of stuff.

Where do you work?

But other than that, it's been -- that's about
it. |
Q@  When did_you'speak'to him?
A Todayfs Wednesday, correct? It would have been
yvesterday.

Q ~And did you_talk about mdtbrcyclé gangs?

A No. It_was basically after, you know, thé casual
ﬁonversation: You look familiar. Where do you work? I
said, "I thihk I've spoken to you over the phone regarding
my case 1n.011da1e.”

And he said, "Oh, yeah, I did talk to you on the
phone . " | | )

I think hé even mentioned that we met ét-some

point in time. We just'-: neither one 6f us could
Captibris Uanlimited of Nevada, Inc. ~ 775-746:3534
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remember when.

0] So you're saying that you did speak to Officer
Bennett about your Cildale case?

A It was to the point that he had assisted me. And
that's where we knew each other, and that's where we had

spoken before. I couldn't pUt a name to the face. I'm
bad with names.
Q All right. Are you working with one_of the DA's

investigators in this case?

A No.
Q No investigatof has spoken to you in this case?
A I've spoken oh_the phone briefly. - It's been

' basitally travel arrangements and things like that, but I

héven't really talked about my case, other than providing

repdrts.
0 Have you met with an investigator in this case?
A Just, again, to -- hotel arrangements, travel

'arrangeménts and things 1ike that. I mostly met with the

district attorney present here 1n‘court today.
._Q But would you know the ngme_df the.investigator?
A Nb.
Q Did you shake hands with the investigator?
A I have shaken hands withla_couple of

investigators, introduced myself to everybddy_outside and
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the DAS.

Q Did you recognize the investigator who left the
court before you entered the court?

A Yes.

0 And was that investigator present at fhe
conference?

A I don't believe so, no. I don't think I saw him
until at least Tuesday.

0 | So there was a different investigator in the
room, right?

A I don't remember, sir. I don't remember if there
was an investigator in the room. It was possible.

MR. DOGAN: Court's.indulgencé, Your Honor.

BY MR. DOGAN:

O When Officer Kirby left the courtroom today, did
he.speak to you?

A .No.

Q Did he speak to any of the other law enforcément

officers out there?

A '_No.
" Q Did'you see where he went?
A He was sitting -- I'm sorry, seated, pérdon me,

just rﬁght here 1n the hofseshoe—shaped~érea. He came

out, sat. down, drank his water and
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Q He was mute?

A Basically. I didn'

MR. DOGAN: TI'11l pa

THE COURT: Mr. Hal

who'S doing it. I'm sorry.

VOIR DIRE
BY MR. HALL:

0 Detect Colbert, you

testified on prior occasions;

A Yes, sir, I have.

Q And you're somewhat

exclusian; 1is that right?

A Yes, sir.
0 And what does the rule of exclusion mean to you?
A Excluding other witnesses outside of court, other

than your designated investi

experience anyways, so that testimony is not influenced by

t hear him say anything.
ss the witness.

1?2 Mr. Stege? I don't know

EXAMINATION

indicated that you have

s that correct?

familiar with the rule of

gating officer, 1in My

anybbdy sitting in court, to not influence their

particular testimony.

Q - Did you try and inf

any of the witnesses that yo

particular case?

A No.

Captions Unlimited df Nevada, Inc.

luence anybody's testimony,

U were aware of in this

775.746-3534

NGBS

99




10

11

12

13

14

15

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

MR. DOGAN: Objection. Leading.

MR. HALL: They did direct. I thought I was
cross-examining.

THE COURT: I don't know if you are
cross-examining or not, but you certainly are in privity
with this witness. ButrI’m going to let you do some
direct because I think we need some leading.

That guestion is not objectionable, so I'11
overrule the objection.

MR. HALL: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MR. HALL:
o) | Did_you try and coordinéte your testimony with

any other witness?

2 - No.

0 Did any witness try to influence you?

A No. |

0 Have you been influenced as your proboéed

testimony regarding your involvement with the Hell's

Angels and the Vagos and Kern County and your involvement

with -- well; let me stop there.

Your involvement with the Hell's Angels, has your

testimony been influenced while you've.been here by any
other witness?

A No.

- Cap-tions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. ~ 775-746-3534
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0 Have you discussed your testimony, proposed
testimony with any other witness?

n No.

Q Has any witness tried to discuss his testimony
with you?

A No.

e Have you been influenced by any other witness --
let me rephrase the question.

Would you éxpect your testimony, proposed
testimony, regarding what you discussed with the attornéys
to be_influenced by any other witness that has bheen
sitting outside or bheen acroSs the street during the
course of your Time here in Reno?

A No, sir.

Q Do you féel that you have.an independent
recollection of the facts and circumstances that you have
been prepared to testify about regarding the stabbing_of
Roger Violand-by Mr. Pena? | |

A Yes.

Q All right. And do you have an independent
recollection of -- or you havé knowledge, 1ndépendent
knowiedge of the Vagos and the Hell'szngels in Kern
County; is that right? |

B Yes.

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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¢ And do you share or have you shared information
with other law enforcement officers during the course of
your career regarding outlaw motorcycle gangs?

a Yes, absolutely.

Q Have you been to training and seminars where a
lot of the conflict between the Hell's Angels and the
Vagos have been discussed?

.MR. DOGAN: Objection. Beyond the scope.
THE COURT: Sustained.
BY MR. HALL:

0 All right. Well, do you, of your own personal
knowledge, have -- you have knowledge about the rivalries
between the Hell's Angels énd the Végos, correct?

MR. DOGAN: Same objection.
THE COURT: Sustained.
BY MR. HALL:
o) Well,.did you learn that --
MR, HALL: That's a foundational quest{on. Can I
ask a foundaticen?
THE COURT: As it relates to what, Mr. Hall?
| MR. HALL: As it relates to whéthef or not he has
gotten any information from any witnesses in viclation of
the_rule'of exclusion.

THE COURT: Well, he said he didn't.. He wasn't
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influenced.

that then.

BY MR. DOGAN:

Q

other law enforcement officers that are present, there's

more than one, correct?

A

o

A

A

Q

'about,

A

conversations, yeah.

' Yes,

- And it's hard not to overhear what you're talking

right?

MR. HALL:  Okay. AIll right. I'll leave it at

THE COURT: Anything further?
MR. CHESNOFF: No, thank you, Your Honor.
MR. DOGAN: Yes, Your Honor. Thank you.

THE COURT: Okay.
FURTHER VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION
When you're outside the courtroom with how many
Right now, ves.
And you all are sitting on the bench, right?
Yes.
In that horseshoe area, correct?
All of you are talking, right?

Yes.,

That's fair to say. You can overhear other
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MR. DOGAN: Okay. Nothing further.

THE COURT: Okay. Sir, we're going to ask you to
step outside. You're not done, but you can step outside
and you're still going to be arocund. |

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am.

.THE COURT: 5o please await further information.

THE WITNESS: Okay. Thank you, Judge.

THE COURT: Thank you.

(Witness exits the COuftroom.)

THE COURT: Mr. Hall, will you let me know who
else was out there, who the other w{tnesses are that wé've
been talking about?

MR. HALL: I can tell vou who the witnesses are
that are out fhere now: Les Skelton is out thére now.
Detective Long 1is out_thefe now. And Fjeselman 1s out
there now. Detective Fieselman. F-I-E-S-LfE—M-A-N (sic).
| MR. CHESNOFF: And, Your Honor,:we need to
identify the Arizona -- the people that left yesterday,
especially the ones that may have been from Arizona.

THE COURT: Were there other different people
there yesterday?

MR. HALL: I don't know. Dimel was here

yesterday. ‘As far as I know, he left when he was done.

THE COURT: What about Mr. Bennett? Was he here?

‘Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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MR. HALL: Bennett was here yesterday.

THE CQURT: An& this morning before you let him
go?

MR. HALL: Yes.

THE COURT: Anyone else?

MR. HALL: You know, there was a guy by the name
of Matt Bailey I think was here. |

THE COURT: Okay. What is the defense's pleasure
at this point? How many more witnesses do you want to
hear from? Do you want to hear from all of them? I'm not
suggestihg you can't. I just want to kind of get a
parameter_here of what you would 1like this hearing to look
like. |

MR. CHESNOFF: I definitely want to hear from the
Arizona policeman that Mr. Webb acknowledged =-- I'm
sorry -- Mr. Kirby acknowledged having at Ieést been in .
the vicinity of the -- for the record, Your Honor, I have
a lot of.trouble.with Mr. Kirby.and the veracitylof his
complete story.

l've not finisheq drawing conclusions about
others, but certainly the last two witneﬁses have been

direct in their answers, have not been inconsistent from

30 seconds before to the next guestion. 5o anything that

has to do with Kirby, I want to complefe.

* " Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. ~ 775-746-3534
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And so I think 1it's incumbent, based on case law,
since it's the State's burden to show no prejudice, to
identify for us the officers that Mr. Kirby would have
beeh in the presente of.

And for example, Your Honor. Mr. Kirby first told
us that he did discuss the interview and the tape. And
then he retracted it. And then we just found out that one
of the other officers actually heard the tape playing.

I think there needs to be a little investigating
being doné by the investigators to give the Court the full
picture of who might have been exposed to the violations.

I don't think this is just Your Honor's job or
our job. I think there's some responsibility here, a lot
of responsibility here oh the part of the prosecution,
especially in light of the way that the witnesses have
Kind of been handled. 1It's a_little different than I
would have expected, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I think Mr. Hall has indicated that
the Arizona witnesses were Mr. Dimel?

.MR. HALL: No. Dimel was from Southern
California, Costa Mesa. |

THE COURT: Oh, okay. Who were the Arizona
witnesses?

MR. HALL: Les Skelton is from Arizona.

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc..  775-746-3534
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THE COURT: And he's here still?

MR. HALL: Right.

THE COURT: And was there somecne else?

MR. HALL: I can't think of any -~

THE COURT: What about Yavapai County?

MR. HALL: That's Les Skelton.

THE COURT: 0Okay. And then the other incident?
There was a second one in Arizona? |

MR, HALL: Les Skelton is going to testify.
THE COURT: To both of them?

MR. HALL: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. And so you think that he's the

only one from Arizona?

MR. HALL: I think so.

THE COURT: Okay. So what I'm trying to kind of

get a feeling is, do we continue with Les Skelton? Do you

want to do that and get that done and then go back and

hear some evidence while you're waiting tc make your

‘determination of what kind of a motion you want to make

and reviewing the transcripts?

MR. CHESNOFF: I want to use our time as wisely

as possible, Your Honor. So I definitely would like to

inquire of Mr. Skelton. We can do it after lunch if the

Court wanté, start with him and move into other evidence.
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But I think we need to continue to develop this.

And I think, to be honest with Your Honor, if we
have some of these other witnesses, ahd in the course of
their cross, we can ask them questions about this, too,
and then --

THE COURT: That's what was thinking. We don't
necessarily need to have two separate hearings.

MR. -CHESNOFF: That's fine.

THE COURT: I just thoughf. I know we had to have
some of it before we went on.

MR. CHEéNOFF: Yup.

~THE COURT: But other than Les Skelton, I really
don't see why we can't cover it in cross-examination.

MR. CHESNOFF: I'm fine with that, Your Honor.
Can't speak for my colleagues.

| MR. DOGAN: Your Honor, I think it's }mportant at
this point to have all the officers who were out there and
who were in earshot of Officer Kirby to come in here aﬁd
adv1sé the Court what they heard from officer.Kirby and
whether they'even époke about their tase.

All the officers are just -- they are sitting out
in the horseshoe area, and they have been talking to one
another ever since we started this gang enhancement

hearing.
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Our focus wouid be primarily on Ferguson and also
Dimel, but not only are we going to be focusing on them,
but I believe it's important to have all of them come in
here and to provide testimony as to whether they violated
the exclusionary rule.

THE COURT:  The question is, do we need to have a
separate -- do we havento do that first before we can do
anything else, or can we do it as we go through the
evidence? |

MR. HALL: We can do it as we go.

MR. DOGAN: Whatever 1s easiest.

THE COURT: Okay. 5So as I understand, the
request of the defense 1is that Les Skelton be -- we
1ﬁqu1re of Les Skelton first, and then we can go back to
Officer Colbert's testimony, or whatever the order will
be. |

And we'll cross-examine as to this issue along
with the other issues. But that cross-examination can go
beyond fhe direct, obviously; by the State, and you can
inquire into the issue of the exclusionary rule.

Is that everyone's understanding?

Okay. Now, the other thing fhat probably makes
sense is we have some witnesses now that it does not make

sense to start telling them new things about the
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exclusionary rule before they testify. I think we kind of
have to keep them pretty pristine in their knowledge or
lack thereof of whatever they've been told.

So any new officers that arrive, we should be
careful and be sure that any different witnesses ére -~ as
we go. 50 we'll deal with that. |

MR. HALL: So the Court doesn't want to admonish
the witnesses at this point?

THE -COURT: Well, I do, but the problem is if I

admonish them before I have the hearing on their knowledge

of what they were told, it's very difficuit to find out
what they were thinking.

So we can have thé whole hearing and then we can
admonish them and then we can hear the evidence. Or we
can say: Okay, we're going to keep everything the way 1t
is and kind of try to get some evidence done,

I don't really care. I'm here. So whichever way
we do it, I don't care. |

Why don't you all talk about it while we take a
lunch recess and see if you can hammer out an agreement of

how you think it would be appropriate to do, and then

maybe we'll be back after lunch.

MR. HALL: I just want to make one quick record.

With respect to Matt Kirby, his involvement with
Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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Ernesto Gonzalez was very 11mitéd. All's he did was pull
him over for a traffic offense. He found a loaded weapon
and knife on him as a result of his traffic stop. He was
arrested. The defendant made some statements indicating
that.he was a Vago member and that he had a rivalry with
the Hell's Angels.

I'm at a loss to figure out how that's going to'
influence any other witness in the case and how his
conversation would somehow taint these proceédings.

And I think we ought to have a hearing on how
it's going to taint some proceedings.with that 1imited
involvement, I'm just -- I'ﬁ at a.loss.

THE COURT: So you want another hearing on that?

MR. HALL: 1I'd like to have a -- I guess we.gotta
have a hearing.

THE COURT: Okay. Gentlemen, that is _- there 1is
no question a hearing has to be heard on the allegations
that have been raised by the defense. There's enough
evidence before the Court that I have to hold that
hearing.

Now, I tried to suggest a ﬁay that maybe we
wouldn't spend the next two days or three days on that
hearing alone before we could even hear the evidence. ‘But

now you have asked for a hearing on whether or not they're
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entitled to the hearing and what the benefit is.

MR. HALL: No, I jusi want to make a record. I
agree with the Court. Let's do it all at once. They can
cross-examine them with respect to whatever taint they
think 15 out there. And then during the course of --

THE COURT: And then everybody can argue about
what the benefit or not is.

MR. HALL: Sounds good.

THE COURT: I guess.

MR. CHESNOFF: Your Honor, this whole thing just

happened. It's not our -- we didn't --

THE COURT: No, I know.

MR. CHESNOFF: We didn't make it happen. We're
just ftrying to develop the facis.

We have two clients charged with murder, and we
need to dc what we need to do. And we're not doing it to
prolong anything.

THE'COURT: No, I agree. And I do not perceive
it that way at alf. | |

Anybody else have anything else? Okay. 1:15.

Court’'s in recess. |

{The noon recess was taken at 12:17 p.m.)
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RENO, NEVADA, WEDNESDAY, JANUARY S, 2013, 1:23 P.M.

-000-

THE CCURT: Thank you. Please be seated.

Counsel,.did you discuss the possibility of how
to go forward from here at lunch?

MR. STEGE: No.

MR. HALL: We're going to go fTorward, yes.

THE COURT: So we're going to go forward with Les
Skelton next?

MR. HALL: No. We're going to go with Jeff
Colbert, the fellow we just had. |

THE COURT: Okay. Everyone is okay with that?
We'll just keep on going that way? _ |

MR. CHESNOFF: Thank you, Your Honor .

MR. DOGAN: Yes, Your Honor. |

THE COURT: Okay. All right.

Okay, sir, you'}e still under oath. .Please
retake the stand. |

THE WITMNESS: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: Are you bringing the flu to us?

THE WITNESS:_ I hope not.

'THE COURT: Just a cold?

THE WITNESS: I think it's just a cold. On the
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tail end of it, I think. I hope,.

THE COURT: There's some water there if you need
it.
THE WITNESS: Thank you.

THE COURT: Counsel, you may proceed.

JEFFREY COLBERT,
recalled as a witness by the State,
having been previously duly sworn, was examined .

and testified further as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. STEGE:

Q Deputy., I think when we left off before, you had
started to talk a little bit about your training,.
experience, and qualifications. You stated you're
Currently in the robbery/homicide unit.

A Yes.

Q Prior to that, what part of the department were
y0u'assigned to? | ”

A Pr1or‘to prometing to senior deputy, I worked in
several.areas, MOstly basically split between the gang
suppression unit and patrol.

@ Do you have training in gang investigations?

~ Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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A Yes.

0 Tell us about that, as well as related to outlaw
motorcycle gang experience.

A Okay. My training as fTar as specifically
criminal street gangs and outlaw motorcycle gangs began.in
the basic academy in 2001.

I received-eight hours of formalized training in
the basic academy which was a California Peace Officer
Standards and Training certified academy.

After the academy, within the first three years
of my career, I was assigned or appointed to the sheriff's
depariment gang enforcement team. Basically what this is,
is a part-time gang unit that works in conjunctibn with a
full-time gang unit, relating information and assisting in
gang 1nve5tigations. It waé in approximately 2006 or 2007
that I was appointed to the full-timg gang unit.

During my llfandja—half—year-career. I received
coqntless hours of formalized training from not only my
department, other departments and organizations regarding
the specific area of eriminal street gangs and outiaw
motorcycle gangs. |

Approximately over a 150 hours of specific
formalized training with specific érea to gahgs.

‘I've been a member of the California Narcotics
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Officers Association where outlaw motorcycle gangs was a
topic.

Also a member of the Califorhia Gang
Investigétors Association where, again, ocutlaw motorcycle
gangs were a specific area.

I've also networked with cuflaw motorcycle gang
investigators throughout the.state of California and other
states.

During investigations, I've assisted 1in
out—of—county investigations, surveillances, funeral
details of ﬁutlaw motorcycle gang members, search
warrénts, along with the FBI and ATE.

I've also taught several hours of basic gang
recognition and for criminal street gangs énd outlaw'

motorcycle gangs throughoUt our academy, to our command

_staff.

I've given presentations to communities members,
parent/teacher associations, board of supervisors
meetings, things of that nature.

Q Have you ever testified in court as an expert in

“the area of gangs in general?

A Yes.
0 Have you ever testified in court in the area of

outlaw motorcycle gangs?
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A Yes.

Q And tell us about that experience.
A In gangs in general, criminal street gangs, my
primary duties as a gang investigator were -- are Blocod

and Cripps gangs 1n'Kefn County and also outlaw motorcycle
gangs.

I have, however, testified in all areas of gangs
in Kern County, from outlaw motorcycle gangs to Hispanic
gangs, Cripps and Bloods; white supremists-type gangs,
taggers. Basically all of them.

My outlaw motorcycle gang expertise -- or excuse
me, testifying as an expert 1n.Kern County Superior Court
has been approximately -- I think I'Vé done it three times
now, if memory serves me correctly, on three separaté
dates.

0 Three separate occasions,_with respect to which,
outlaw motorcycle géngs?

A My very first testimony was on a Vago case. And
then the other two were two separate instances regarding
Hell‘s_Angels and Vagos.

Q And in your ;areef, you said that you have
investigated the Vagos and the Hell's Angels Wwithin the
jurisdiction of your agency; 1is that correct?

A Yes.
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Q And throughout the time that you were in the
dedicated gang unit; is that correct?

A Yes.

0 You mentioned this unit you're on that was sort
of assisting the main unit. Did you investigate outlaw
motorcycle gangs, inctuding Hell's Angels andsVagos,
during that time frame?

A I believe it was during. that time frame I
assisted in one investigation. It was an out-of-county

investigation. We went and assisted in a search warrant.

My involvement was minimal in that. I don't even

recall what we were doing, honestly. It's been so long.
0 Now let's talk about Ieading up to May of 2010,
you did have Vago or-outiaw motorcycle gang experience,
right, investigative experience?
| A Yes.
0 To include both groups, Hell's Angels and Vagos.

A Yes. More Hell's Angels than Vagos. We didn't

have a strong showing of Vagos until approximately 2010.

0 And tell us about a little bit of the history of

Hell's Angels and Vagos within Kern County leading up to

2010.
A In Bakersfield or Kern County, mainly the

Bakersfield area, since I've known and since I've been in
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law enforcement, it's been what we would call a red and
white town, a Hell's Angels town.

The Hell's Angels didn't have an official chapter
in Bakersfield or in Kern County. However, several
members, supporters were from Kern County, and you would
see them somewhat, sometimes a regular basis, sometimes
sporadic basis.

In my career, 1 hadn't even contacted a Vago 1in
Kern County until probably around 2008 or 2009, and that
was passing {hrough. The town was mainly held and visited
or known to be a Hell's Angels support town or support
area. More specifically, the area where my case took
place, which was Oildale.

Q And Qildale is a subsection of Bakersfield?
A It's basically like a little -- ‘wouldn't even
call it a township. It's considered Bakersfield. 1It's

just like a little area, not very large.

Q At some point you started to see'Vagos move
into -- a Vagb presence within the area.
A Yeah.

o) Tell us about that.
A It almost seemed like it was overnight. We would.
see Vagos come through at our bike runs or our toy runs,

things l1ike that. They would be few and far between.
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And then it seemed like overnight, we just had a
larger showing of Vagos fTrom the County Line chapter.

Q. And tell us about the -- what is the County Linhe
chapter?

MR. DOGAN: Your Honor, at this point I'm going
to objecf. This witness not been noticed in the motion
for order admitting gang'enhancement evidence and
testimony. He is not noticed anywhere.

THE COURT: As a witness or as an expert?

MR. DOGAN: As both, Your Honor. We don't have
him noticed as a witness, as an expert. We have no
reports. We have no summary of what he's going to say
today, and it's a direct violation of this Court's order.

MR. STEGE: They have reports. They've had

reports for a long time, Judge. The Oildale case, which

‘wWe identified in our moving papers, are on file.

MR. DOGAN: The police report --

MR. STEGE: It's not a surprise that this Oildale
case is coming up.

MR. CHESNOFF: Your Honor, we join in what we
started out with yesterday, where someone is a witness -- .
it's this-merger, and hy.colleague -- I just wanted to
hear enough to know-thét-we had the same problem we

started out with yesterday, Your Honor.
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MR. DOGAN: Your Honor, I can go over the Court's
order like I did this morning again. It's a direct
violation of that order. And we would request that
either -- the remedy would be a continuance or the remedy
would be exclusion.

At this point in time, because of the State's
persistent violations of this Court's order, I'm going to
request that this.witness be excluded.

MR. STEGE: They've had the repdrts Tfor ages. We
mentioned the 0ildale case 1n.our pleadings. I don't know
what else he wanfs.

THE COURT: Are you familiar with the order he's
talking about?

MR..STEGE: I heard him read it in courit. 1It's
the one that ofdered us to file the gang motions and other
bad act motions in November.

'THE.COURT: Do you understand that it ordered you
to 1dentify the evidence and the witnesses that you
planned to call?

MR. STEGE: And we did that, Judge, and that's
why we provided the police reports of the detective who
1dent{f1ed the Oildale killing as -- well, Gil-Blanco
talked about 1it, and we idenfified_it in our moving

papers. It was talked about =--
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THE COURT: Why don't you show me.

MR. STEGE: -- way back to the Grand Jury,

THE COURT: Mr. Stege, I'm sure that you don't
mean to be casual about these things, but it does éppear-
to the Court that you're a little bhit casual in your
response. So would you show me -- |

MR. HALL: Your Honor, may I address this?

THE COURT: I don't really care which one of you
addresses it.

MR. HALL: OQOkay. Good.

THE COURT: But what I'd like you to do 1is,
number one, not interrupt me,

IBut number two, show me in your pleadings where
you consistent -- you fulfilled the requirements of fhe
order and how it is noted in your pleadings. Just don't
tell me you did it. Show me where you did it.

MR. HALL: We did it at page 28.

THE COURT: Of?

MR. HALL: Starting at line 18.

THE COURT: Of what pleadihg?

MR. HALL: Of the motion fo -- motion for order
admitting gang enhancement evidence.

THE COURT: And that Was filed November 26th?

MR. HALL: I believe so0.
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THE COURT: Okay.

MR. HALL: And we noticed Jorge Gil-Blanco and
Jeffrey Simpson.

And I believe that we found out about Mr. Colbert
during the course of our investigation into this case
after we received the police reports. Or received the
police reports, tried to get ahold of the witnesses listed
in the -- and I believe I also filed a pleading previoué
to this one identifying this case and the original
1nve5t1gat1ng officer, |

But when we found out that this detective had
actually been more involved 1in thg investigation, we asked
him to come up. And I found out yesterday that he didn't
have a curriculum vitae. We asked him yesterday whether
or npt_wé héd supplied and found oﬁt that he didn't have
one. We were going ask him to supplement that so that we
could include that 1ntb our notice of expert witngsses.

But I'm certain that his name is méntioned in the
1nvest1gat1ng report, so they should be able to
cross-examine him, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. So you did not tell the Cburt
that you intended to call this witness to testify to these
things. You have never told me that in any pleading.

MR. HALL: I didn't even know that myself until I
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got back from vacation on Monday.

THE COURT: Okay. So wouldn't you normally ask
leave of the Court, aék leave of my corder to supplement,
to add him as a witness for these hearings today? Isn't
that normally what we would do? |

MR. HALL: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. So if we had done that, I
wouldn't be hearing these motions over and over and over
again.

I undefstand your argumént is that you just fouhd
out, that you have got good cause for the delay or the
violation of the order. I understand that. But you
haven't asked for that. And it's very frustrating to the
Court. |

So we've heard about it yesterday, and I ifhought
maybe you'd clean it up. |

So is there anybody else you haven't noticed?
Because this is the -- at least the second, maybe the
third time I've heard it.

So are there other witneéses that we really
didn't know about until today or that you found out about
recently and you haven't asked leave of the Court?

MR. STEGE: With respect to the other bad act.

motion, Judge, with respect to Mr. Villagrana, we call it
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the pink poodle incident. The report we had in -- the
report we still have only identifies the officers by their
P numbers, and we found out within the last week or so who
those actual people were. And they are --

THE COURT: Okay. So the pink poodlie is --

MR. STEGE: Mr. Villagrana's bad act motion,
those witnesses. Ceballos is the last name of the
officer.

MR. CHESNOFF: I don't think the pink'poodle
applies to Mr. Villagrana, Your Honor, as a bad act.

THE COURT: I have listed pink poodle under

Villagrana as bad act evidence or an offer based on their

pleadings.

So, Mr. Stege, while Mr. Hall is kind of looking
at some other things, you héve filed a pleading with
regard to the pink poodle on what date?

MR. STEGE: This is November 26, 2012.

THE COURT: And thaf's the motion for order
admitting enhancement evidence?

MR. STEGE: Right.

THE COURT: And on what page did you identify the
pink poodle allegations?

MR. STEGE: Well, it's Exhibit 2. I see it now.

It's attached as Exhibit 2 of the --

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534

DISU(®,

125




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

"18

19

20

21

22

23

214

THE COURT: The police report.

MR. STEGE: The police report is.

THE COURT: Gkay. Has a lot of detectives names

on there.

MR. STEGE: Page four, line six. And I misspoke,

it's Exhibit 1.

THE COURT: QOkay. So I'm 100k1ng at Exhibit 1,
and yﬁu want me.to go to page Tour?

MR. STEGE: Page four.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. STEGE: No, not Exhibit 1. Page four of the
motion, line six, gives the -- calls th15 bad act pink
poodle'and talks about it on that page.

THE COURT: Page four of vour motion.

MR. STEGE: Yes.

THE COURT: Line six.

MR. STEGE: Starts to talk about the pink poodle.

Ethbit 1 corresponds to that incident.

THE COURT: Okay. Wait a minute. I'm on a
motion that was filed November 26, 2012. 1Is that the
motion you are pointing me to?

MR. STEGE: Yes. 2:47.

- THE COURT: It was filed at 2:477

MR. STEGE: That's the stamp I have.
Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. ~ 775-746-3534
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MR. CHESNOFF: Your Honor, the reason I told
you -- I don't want to interrupt you.
THE COURT: That's okay. I'm just looking for --
at 2:47 or 2:147? |
MR. STEGE: 2:47:20 p.m. is what -- the stamp I
have of the 26th.
THE COURT: Okay. So now we're on Villagrana.
MR. CHESNOFF: Right, but I'm kind of putting the

cart before the horse, Your Honor, because I have an

argument as to why it doesn't -- one, it's not bad act

and, two, why it doeén't apply to him because --

THE COURT: Right. He's just trying to
supplement rigﬁt now what he filed. |

MR. CHESNOFF: Right, but we don't know who it 1is
that he -- I don't know who it is that.he plans on calling |
as a witness. |

THE COURT: Right. And so I think he's now going
to tell me that the pink poodle allegations on page four,
beginning on 1line six through line 23, are talked about in
the pleading and then Exhibit 1 to the pleading.

Is that correct? |

MR.-STEGE: You are correct, yes.

THE COURT: And who was your witness?

"MR. STEGE: Croucher or Ceballos. I don't have
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their first names written down. Matt Croucher.
THE COURT: I'm sorry, would you spell those
names, please.

MR. STEGE: C-R-0-U-C-H-E-R, last name. First

‘name Matt. Other, Ceballos, C-A-B -- C-E-B-A-L-L-0-5.

Unknown first name.
THE COURT: And are they referenced in Exhibit 1

scmewhere?

MR. STEGE: No. That was the whole issue, Judge.

If we Kknew the names, we would have told them at the time,

but we had to do a little digging into some of the
discovery. Their personnel numbers or bédge ﬁumbers are
listed in a portion of that, so that led us to the
information.

THE COURT: Okay. 5o what is the peréonnel or
badge number for Matt Croucher?

MR. STEGE: I don't Know.

THE COURT: Would it be different --

MR. STEGE: 4077.

THE COURT: So in Exhibit 1, when it refers to

badge number or identifying number 4077, it's refgrring to

Matt Croucher; is that correct?
MR. STEGE: That's. Well --

THE COURT: Okay. And then --
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MR. STEGE: -- I d1dn't'wr1te the report, so I
can't say, but that's my belief.

THE COURT: That's vour best information?

MR. STEGE: Yeah.

THE COURT: Qkay. And then this Mr. Ceballos or
Officer Ceballos, is that a mister or an officer?

MR. STEGE: Officer.

THE COURT: And he was referred in tﬁe Exhibit 1
under what?

MR. STEGE: I think he's 3938, but i don't know.

THE COURT: Qkay. So you would like to
Supplemeht with this information?

MR. STEGE: Yes.

THE COURT: And when did you get this
information?

MR. STEGE: I met him yesterday. So I would say
Friday. I knew their names Friday.

THE COURT: Counsel?

MR. CHESNQFF: Your Honor, we have an order.
It's pretty clear. And we just keep having to do things
from the seat of our pants, which 1is okay sometimes, but
not in a murder cése.

THE COURT: It does seem very odd for the level

and caliber of this case and the expensé of this case to
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have these hearings take an extended period of time with
the security levels we have. So I am concerned that we
get it tightened up a little bit.

Any other corrections or additions to make to
your pleadings pursuant to my order?

MR. STEGE: Nothing from the bad act standpoint,
Judge.

MR. CHESNOFF: While we're on the topic, Your
Honer, I don't know what -- even ffom reading this, what

other bad act we're talking about from this report. They

_ have people hanging out at a bar.

THE COURT: o©Oh, well, you're going to have to
argue and figure out what they're trying to present.

MR. CHESNOFF: But if there's something more than
that that they just learned, because otherwise I have no
idea why they're doing this. In other words, what's the
bad act?

THE COURT: Do you have any.supplemental
information?

MR. STEGE: No. Read the moticn. The motion is

about --
THE COURT: Are you asking me to read the motion?
MR. STEGE: Ne, I'm telling him to read the
motion. I mean, he responded to it. It's not like -- we
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stated a bhasis forlit. and that's why we're here, so we
can examine the witness and learn about the case and be
cross-examined and prove it by clear and convincing
evidence.

MR. CHESNOFF: That's not really tighteninglit
up, Your Honor. You know, I'm trying real hard to listen
to what you fold us yesterday afternoon.

THE COURT: Okay. I know. Okay.

Do you héve any additional information that you
have not disclosed in this motion or in the police report
thét you should disclose today so they can prepare for-.
cross-examination of the withess? |

Anything you haven't given them on this topic

that you just learned about? And so when it comes out and

they object, you're going to say: Qh, Judge, I just heard

about it.
~MR. STEGE: That the reason -- their initial

call, it says a disturbance. It was a Tight, or a
reported fight.

THE COURT: Okay. Okay. Now, with regard fo
the --

MR. STEGE: But we're not going to try to tie
that to the bad act, any fighting to --

THE COURT: OQkay. That was just more information
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that you had?

MR. STEGE: More information that I had, yes.

THE COURT: OGkay. Great. Now, with regard to
the gang enhancement, is there anything else?

MR. HALL: No, Your Honor. No, that's it.

THE COURT: So the only -- this is the only
additional witness?

MR. HALL: Yes. And I'd note that his name is
referenced in there. And I don't. have my initial
pleadings, but I believe his name was probably referenced
in that initial pleading. I tried to set forith a lot of
hames of investigating officers, but certainly --

{(Discussion off the fecord
between Mr. Hall and Mr. Stege.)

MR. HALL: So they certainl} had the police
reports of that investigation.

(Discugsion off the record between
the clerk and the Codrt.)

THE COURT: Mr. Hall, the clefk thinks she

‘remembers some discussion in the opposition filed

October 19th. I haven't found it yet.
MR. HALL: I didn't br{ng that with me, Your
Honor, solI'can'f look at it right now.

THE COURT: Okay. In that pleading, you do
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discuss the 8ildale event in Kerp County. Ahd yolu
identified Jonah Wood, Jason Valasas (phonetic), Gavin
Brewer, Swearingen, Dameron, Chadez {(phonetic) and Holt
and Kraft. Is that the one you're talking about?

MR. HALL: Yes. And what happened 1is when we

-wWere trying to contact officers to bring to court to

testify regarding that incident, of course we obtained
further information about who was actually in charge of
the investigation, who would be a witness, a credible
wftness to actually provide the most probative evidence,

Sq unfortunately, that evidénce was derived right
before I left -- or, you knbw} I don't even remember when
exactly that information was. But certainly we attempﬁed
to supplement during the course, hut unfortunafely, I went
on vacation, which has really kind of thrown a wrench into
my ability or my suppleMent.. My supplementing.

| So anyway, and then yestérday'I did inquire as to

whether or not we had a CV,Iand he doesn't have a CV, but
we'll cerfainly'get one.

But the long and short of it is we did provide
the evidence that ﬁe had in a timely fashion..and I

believe that this detective’s name is referenced in the

reports.

MR. DOGAN:  Your Hanor, yesterday, you did meet
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with us, all counsel, and you advised us you did not want
this to turn into nightmare or chaos.

1 wouldn't be standing here in front of Your
Honor making this argument if it was not for the State.

It is not my tault. It is not our codefendants' fault.
Specificatly, this fTault should lie on the State.

I hold your order in my hand, and your order 1is
very specific. Your order states that it must be pleaded
with specificity, the facts that are going to he presented
and also the witnesses that are going fo be noticed.

In this casé, the witness is going to be proposed
to be admitted as an expert witness; therefore, he will be
permitted to provide hearsay testimony to the Court.

This is prejudice. If this isn't prejudﬁce, I
don't know what 71s. |

We've prepared for this hearing. We followed
your orders, Judge Stéinheimer. We've done evefything
perfectly in accordance wfth the Court's rules and in
accofdance with the Court's order.

A line must be drawn énd it must be drawn now.
This witness should he éxcluded by the Court from
providing any testimony. There should be.no other remedy
that is given to the State in this case.

MR. CHESNOFF: Your Honor, they give us a
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pleading, they 1aylout who 15 involved in the incident,
and then they, by their own admission, acknowledge that
what they gave us isn't really what we should have had.
It's better witnesses, but we're supposed to extrapolate
that somehow? We're supposed to rely on that? |

I mean, that's why you did the order, so we
wouldn't be deing this. And I just don't think that it's
consistent with the practice, and the order is clear and
we've been through this. It's not like this is the first
tfme. I mean, we had to come back hecause certa1n'th1ngs
weren't followed.

I'd aék you, Your Honor, at least to exclude this
witness and -- so that we can have some kind of a rémedy.

THE COURT: It is prejudice for you to be
required to address this evidence today. Because the
trial is three mcenths from now, I don't think I can find

that it's prejudicial for you to have to do it in a week

or two.

But I do believe the State should be sanctioned

.fdr their failure to abide by the rule of the order of the

Court. And I don't know exactly -- I've never -- I'm not
sure what I''m going to do in that regard.
But yes, I think this is -- clearly, the

continuance is required by the Court's -- by the State's
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violation the record.

And because we have a little bit of time, I'm
going to not exclude the witness, but we're not going hear
it today. We're not going to hear this witness tdday.

And I don't know what else there is with regard
to this witness. I understand it's jusf the name, buif the
police report hasn't changed; is that correct?

MR. HALL: Poliﬁe report has not changed.

THE COURT: There's no additional pleadings --
this gentleman's name apparently didn't appear 1in the
police report that you had.

MR. HALL: I was looking at.it, and I see that
thefe was a Colbert, but it was actually Jason Colbert..
So perhaps we can inquire as to the detective --

' " THE COURT: I think that might be a good idea to
find out. There may be more police reports thait we don't
even have yet. | |

MR. HALL: I know we continued to do
investigation on a number of fronts throughout the western
United States, so it wasn't something that we could do
easily. It wasn't 1ike coming over to the Washoe County
courfhouse and célling up some records br calling RPD
recbrds.  There were a number of pebple that had to be

contacted in a short period of time.
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Oh, here it is. Yeah, here Jeff Colbert's name
is right there.

MR. STEGE: They're all over. They're all over
the reports, Judge.

THE COURT: Okay.. So these are in the police
report? |

MR. HALL: It is in the police report.

MR. STEGE: They've all been stamped. They've
been through discovery to the defense..

THE CQURT: Okay. That's great, but how come

- they're not in the motion themn? If it's all over the

discovery, it's clear in the police report, why isn't his
name in the motion?

MR. HALL: Should have been in the m0t10n.
Oversight on my part. Inadvertent. o

THE COURT: Do:you acknowledge that you have the
police report? Are you familiar with the police report?
Do you know what he's taiking about?

MR. DOGAN: Your Honor, I acknowledge that I do
have a police repoft, and that police report is from Jason
Colbert.

| But I would advise the Court that because of the
sheer amount of discovery that has been provided to us,

you have all -- the Court has all the exhibits -- that
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THE CCURT: I understand., you focused on that --

MR. DOGAN: -- specifically focused on what
withess was going to be presented by the State.

THE COURT: I understand that, so.wﬁat we're
going to do is we're going to have this genileman step
down .

You'll be subject to bheing recalled, and we'll
pick é time to do that 1in the near future.

| MR. CHESNOFF: Your Honor, now thaf we.know he's
here; and I believe he's being offered as an expert, I
would hdpe that before we get here the next time, whatever
information we should be receiving .in his capacity as an
expert is provided to us prior to the time that we get to
cross-examine him.

~ THE COURT: Well, -prior to the time of them
bringing him. | |

MR. CHESNOFF: Yes.

THE COURT: Is there any reason you can't abide
by that?

MR. HALL: No, Your Honor. We'll provide a
curriculum vitae and try and provide an adequate
explanation to allow the defense to prepare for

cross-examination.
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THE COURT: Okay. Which I think requires a
synopsis of his testimony and what he's basing his
testimony on.

MR. HALL: Yes, we'll work on that. Do you have
that?

THE WITNESS: Yeah, just the Jason Colbért thing,
[ can briefly explain that if it'll help:Counsel out
reviewing the reports. It's very simple.

MR. HALL: 1I‘d like to give them as much
assistance as we can to prepare for cross-examination. So

could we allow him to just to make a couple comments -in a

narrative fashion to assist the defense in analyzing

-the - -

THE COURT: The police report?

MR. HALL: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE WITNESS: The initial incident, the homicide
that occurred that I.-investigated, throughpﬂt its
entirety, I was involved in every step.of the
1nvestigat10n.

Jasbn Colbert is my younger brother. He was 1in
fact working patrol thatfday, He responded to the scene.
He basically had the crime scene log. So he did what we

call the face page. He did the initial report. Several
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supplementals were done.

I was actually, when the offense occurred, at the
movies. I got called into work because my of expertise in
OMGs and the fact that there were two Hell's Angels' bikes
at the scene. I got called in. |

From the minute the investigation started, my
being called in, I was, wifhin its entirety. I wrote the
majority of the reports, the search wafrants, everything.
I was the lead gang investigator, and I ultimately took
over.the investigation from homicide due fo the fact that
they were otherwise engaged.

THE COURT: Did you sign a report?

THE WITNESS; Several, ma'am. They're all 1in
there. Jason.Colbert is the initial. On the very first
report, his name is on there, but it's a brief rebort
basically saying: I got there, I taped off the scene, I
secured an area, probably grabbed a couple witnesses.

THE COURT: Have you reviewed the report that the
State has, the police report that the State has?

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma‘am. I have a copy. of it.

It's our entire report throughout the investigation.

"There are several supplementals which --

THE COURT: Does the State have the all the

supplementals? Does the State have everything thét you
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prepared?

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am,

THE COURT: And you have loocked at their file and
they've got everything?

THE WITNESS: 1I've been provided.a copy of my --
my reports are from Kern County, our incident reports, and
they appear tc be all here as far as the actual writien
reports, yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. CHESNOFF: Your Honor, could you inquire of
the witness so I'm clear, 15 this the case in Kern County
in which the defendants were écquitted?

THE COURT: The --

MR. CHESNOFF: What ultimately they plan on
having him testify about.

THE COURT: Was there a trial in this case?

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am, there was.

THE COURT:. And was there an acquittal?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: Yes, it lqoks like you know which
case it is. Okay.

So now, Mr. Stege, you héve reviewed your file

and your file that you have given a copy appafently of the

‘records you_have to the witness so we have them with him.

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
1996

141




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

You have compared that and you have the complete record
and you have a discovery star on every page that the
defense has received it.

MR. STEGE: Every page, yes, and I was the one
who made the copy for the detective.

THE COURT: OQOkay. So we're sure we've got
everything, right? I think we do.

THE REPORTER: Your Honor, I éan't-see Mr. Stege,
and T can't hear him.

THE COURT: Oh.

MR, S5TEGE: I didn't say anything.

THE COURT: He didn't say anything. Kind of
nodded his head, went to the side, slight smile. I took
it fo mean yés.

Then, sir, you can step down, hut stay in touch.
Don't.leave until we get a new date and time. You'll have
to be outside and wait around, and then the 1nvest1gator§
Wwill tell you, I'm sure, the new date and time you have to
come back.

THE WIfNESS: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. STEGE: Judge, because of the distance
involved, I wonder if.he could be excused to leave tfown

and we'll communicate with him regarding --
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THE COURT: We're going to pick the date and time
in just a minute. He's only going to stick around for a
little bit.

(Witness exits the courtroom.)

MR. DOGAN: Your Honor, briefly, Officer Kirby is
nc longer in the court. T don'ft know what's going to
happen with him, but I just wanted to advise the Court, I
did not finish my cross-examination of Officer Kirby.

THE COURT: Okay. I'll try to keep track of
where we're at.

.MR. DOGAN : I will, too, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. So I didn't rémember that,
frankly. |

MR. STEGE: I don't know if that's -- 1if that

" happened or not.

MR. DOGAN: What? Sorry. Me crossing?
(DPiscussion off the reﬁord between counsel.)

THE COURT: So wé need to pick a date and time.
I don't know -- we kind of looked at Honday as another
time that we could get together.

MS. PUSICH: Your Heonor, I may need your'help if
you choose that. I'm under orders to appear with the jury
commissioner to be chosen on Monday. I think they would

prochably move it if the Court asked.
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THE COURT: Yes, I think I can ask someone to

defer your service.
| MS. PUSICH: Probably not March 4th.

THE COURT: Maybe not.

MR. CHESNOFF: I'm just powering up my calendar,
Your Honor,

‘THE COURT: Okay. So, Mr. Dogan, would that give
you sufficient time to be prepared to handle the testimony
of Mr. Colbert?

MR. DOGAN: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Are ybu'available? How is everyone
at 10:30 on Monday, January 14th? 1I'm handling the
criminal stacked calendar for Department 9 first, but I
think we can start by 10:30 a.m.

MR. CHESNOFF: Your Honor, we have a matter in
court on Monday morning in Las Vegas that one of us has to
be at, at least. 5o can I have a minute to talk to my
client about his opinion of only one of us being here on
Monday? | |

THE COURT: Sure. Do you need a recess?

MR. CHESNOFF: I don't think it should take too
long.

THE COURT: Okay.

"MR. STEGE: Your Honor, could Mr. Colbert be 1in
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here while we discuss this?

THE COURT: I don't have a problem with that. Do
you want to ask him if that date's okay for him?

MR. STEGE: Yeah. With give and take, it's
easier if he's here.

THE COURT; No problem.

MR. CHESNOFF: Is Monday the only time we can do
this, Your Honor?

THE COURT: No..

MR. CHESNOFF: Okay. Could we look at some
alternatives, please?

THE COURT: Tuesday, Januafy 15th, 1in the
afternoon.

MR. CHESNOFF: Isn’f Martin Luther -- ﬁhen is
that?

THE COURT: 21st of January. _

MR. CHESNOFF: Because his birthday is the 15th.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. CHESNOFF: Your Honor, could we do it when we
can have a full day?

THE CCOURT: Finding a full.day is-very, very,
very difficult. No such thing as a full day. The.14th,
you come'very close. WE're going to be done with our

stacked criminal calendar by 10:30.
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MR. CHESNOFF: I'm not trying to be difficult,
Your Hoﬁor. Besides the 14th, what other day would we
come close? Obviously we're trying to do as much 1in one
day as we can.
THE COURT: Right.
(Discussion off the record between
the clerk and the Court.)
MR. CHESNOFF: Tomorrow I can't do, Your Honor.
(Discussion off the record
between the Court and the 61erk.)

THE COURT: We might be able to start at 10:30 on

the 15th, but I don't know for sure. We*re.checking.

MR. CHESNOFF: Your Honor, one second.
(Discussion off the record hetween
Mr. Chesnoff and Defendant Villagrana.)
THE COURT: So the 15th we équlq start at
10:30 a.m. | |
MR. DOGAN: That's okay with me.
MR. CHESNOFF: We'll do it on Monday, Your Honor.
My client agrees that Mr. Schonfeld is perfectly capable
of handling it without me being here. Probably more

capable.

THE COURT: Okay. 5So we'll have this witness --

. is this withess available an Monday?
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THE WITNESS: This coming Monday?
THE COURT: This coming Monday.
THE WITNESS: I think so.
THE COURT: Okay. Monday at 1¢:30, then. We'll
see you back then, sir.
THE WITNESS: Okay. Thank you.
(The witness exited the courtroom.)
THE COURT: So let's get Mr. Kirby out here so we
can Tinish hié cross—examfnation.
- MR. STEGE: Kirby has gone home, Judge.
THE COURT: He went home?
MR. HALL: He had a:1:30 flight. I thought he
was done.
(Discussion off the record between
the clerk and the Courf.)

THE CQURT: Okay. I told him to step down. He

Was subject, that's what her notes say, wh1ch'norma11y

means subject to recall. And I thought I told him to hang
out.: That's my.memory_of what I said. I can't find it 1in
the realtime right now. We will find it.

Apart from that, you're going to have to bring
him back because they are entitled to finish their
cross-examination. It was in the middle of their

examination where it kind of blew up with regard fo
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whether-or not he had been.talking to other peopie.

So I guess we need to find a time to bring him
back.

MR. STEGE: I wonder if we can do that portion,
Judge, close to the end of the day, and we can plow
through the pecople we do.have present here today.

THE COURT: Mr. Kirby? |

MR. STEGE: Yeah. Well, if we could select a
date toward the end of the day today, we can plow through
right how the rest of the people that we have here right
NOW.

THE COURT: Let me stay focused on one.thing.
I'm sorry. We already lost him-once. I'm going to find
the date and time and do it.

MR CHESNOFF: Your Honor, can't we do him on
Monday, tco? |

THE.COURT: I don't know. I'm fine with doing it
Monday.

MR. CHESNOFF: ‘Yeah: I mean, I don't see to see
even one of hs come up here for an hour when we can spend
more time. We need to.do this, although -~ just a }1tt1e
editorial, if tﬁey --

THE COURT: I don't need an editorial. Honday wé

get through it, at least we'-ll know. But there could be
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other witnesses that won't get done. But Monday at
10:30 a.m. Okay, Mr. Kirby. Monday. All right.

Now, maybe you could tell me who you still have
that you want to call today.

MR. STEGE: Les Skelton, Jeff Simpson, possibly
the two officers identified related to the pink poodle,

Croucher and Ceballos, one or the other of those.

THE COURT: You are really swallowing your words.

Sorry.
MR. STEGE: One or the other of Ceballos and
Croucher, Jeff Simpson, and Les Skelton.
THE COURT: Okay. All right. Then call youf
next w1tne$s.
MR. STEGE: Jeff Simpson.
(Discussion off the record between
Mr. S5tege and Mr., Hall.)
MR. STEGE; Let's do Les Skelton.
THE.COURT: Change it to Les Skelton? Right?
Okay? |
~ MR. STEGE: Yes.
Iy
i
r1/
rrr
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LES SKELTON,
called as a witness by the State,
havﬁng been first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows:
THE COURT: You may proceed.

DIRECf EXAMINATION
BY MR. HALL:
| Q Sir, onld you state your name and spell ybur
last name.

A Les Skelton. Last name is S-K-E-L-T-0-N.

Q What 1s youf occupation, sir?

A I'm a detective with the Arizona Department of
Public Safety, assigned to the GIITEM, state gang task
force. GIITEM stands for Gang, Immigration Intelligence
Team Enforcement Missicn.

0 How long have you been involved in law
enforcement? Or how long have you been a law enforcement
officer?

A I went to the academy in 1392 through current,
with no breaks.

ol All rightﬁ And can you tell us about your

training and experience that you have had over your tenure
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as a poliﬁe officer?

A I started with the academy in '92. Upon
completion with the academy, I went to work for Avondale
Police Department, which is a small City to the west of
Phoenix.

In September of 1994, I lateraled over to the'
State Department of Public Safety, which is our highway
pétrol_in Arizona. When I lateraled over, we go through
what's called an advanced academy, and we learn mostly
stuff related to highway patrol—type work.

From there, I_worked the freeways in metro
Phoenix for a few yeérs. Ultimately i was assigned to the
vehicle crimes unit. While in the vehicle crimes unit is
when I started receiving training on homicide
investigations, training through people like Vernon
Gerberth who did a practical homicide investigation
course.

I spent five years in vehicle crimes. .After

that, I had seen enough dead bodies and decided it was

time to go back to the road and went back to the road in

The west valley, which is west of Phoenix, Sun City,
Peoria aréa.
And 1in 2004, January of 2004, I lateraled over fo

what we refer to as our criminal investigations division,
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which was the gang unit specifically working with GIITEM.

| When I lateraled over there, got more training on
gang-related search warrants, blood draws, spent quite a
bhit of time going to dffferent conferences.

I've been to -- in 2007 I went to the
International Outlaw Motorcycle Gang Investigator's
Association in Florida, where basically it's networking
across basically international -- with international
groups around the world on outlaw motorcycle gangs.

We were able to view ﬁeople that had been with
certain motorcycle clubs that would come in and talk to us
about their procesé of going-through. getting into a
motorcycle club, the hang—éround or the guest,
hang-around, prospect, and then to a full patch member, up
into being a officer within a club.

I didn't go in 2008, but then I went in 2009,
2010, 2011. And then in 2012, we hosted it in Arizona.

O And that was the conference involving networkfng
bétween different --

A Motorcycle gang investigators, yes.

0 Motorcycle gang investigators throughout the
nation?
A Yes,

0 Or throughout the world?
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A Yes.

-Q All right. Was there any focus on any individual
or speciftic motorcycle gangs?

A There was. There was. They WOuld focus on the
Hell's Angels, the Vagos, the Banditos, the Outlaws, the
Warlocks, the Pagans, groups like that.

And then they would.also cover some of the
smaller groups that would be the puppet clubs, support
clubs, or just clubs within a certain area that really
didn't have -- kinda call them fence-sitters. They really
don't show an allegiance to éither side, but they'fe
there.

Q In addition to your fraining and the conferences
that you've attended that prov1dé information regarding
outlaw motorcycle gangs -- and when I'm talking about
those conferences, did they talk'ébout trends.with respegt
to outlaw motorcycle gangs, and also identify colors and
some of the customs, practices that they typically engage
in?
| A Yeah. We talked about trends, things that we
would see between the different clubs. A lot of it, tqb,
wéé case-driven.

With the infiltrations that many of the Iargef

groups have gone through, they learn from what law
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"enforcement does, so they change their tactics. And with

that, it's kind of a -- almost want to say a cat-and-mouse
game .

We do something to infiltrate or create a case on
a certain outlaw motorcycle gang. They learn from it by
buying the transcripts or buying the court records. Then
they train each other on how they were tied up in that
particular case. Next time somebody does a case that is
directed that way, fof example{ as a T-3, they educate the
new people coming in as fhe hang—arouhds and prospects
that, for example, in a T—3; you don't talk about business
over a phbne. IfT there's a T 3 going on, they can be
picked up. So that's kind of where it goes.

It's ever evolving in technoiogy, the way it
changes, you know, communications through e-mails, text
messages, things like that.

0 So during. the course of these conferenceé, did
you learn that a lot of the members of outlaw motorcycle

gangs would have, for example, ATF repdrts or transcripts.:

of court proceedings --

MR. DOGAN: Objection. Leading.
BY MR. HALL: |
Q -- in their possessicn?

THE COURT: 'It's predatory -- preliminary, so I'm
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going altow it. Overruled.

Just, did you see it? That was the questidn.
Did you get that kind of stdff?

THE WITNESS: Yes. Could I expand upon.that?

THE COURT: If he asks a nonleading question.

BY MR. HALL:
Q Can you expand upon that?
A Yeah. I've atltso been involved 1in search warrants

where I've seen the paperwofk at a clubhouse or at --
Q I'm going to get to that.
A -- at a member's house, yes.

0 So I was going to lead into that by asking you

what experience you've had, hands-on experience as a

police officer with respect to investigating outlaw -
motorcycle_gangs in your jurisdiction. =

A When I first starting with GIITEM-back in 2004,
my sergeant was Sergeant Shawn Wood. And Sergeant Shawn
Wood had a pretty good involvement in the operation Black
Biscuit, which is the casé that involved Jay Dobbyns
infiltrating the Hell's Angels in Arizona. |

Shawn was one of the peoplé who started the case

by getting ATF members together and talking about
intelligence that was being gathered on the Hell's Angels.

The so from the get-go Shawn was kind of my
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mentor, obviously, because he was my sergeant.

With that, prior to Shawn was a retired sergeant,
Steve Trethewy. And Steve Trethewy still is around the
department today in a training role, and he worked the
cutlaw motorcycle gangs in Arizona, going back to when it
was the Dirty Dozen prior to Hell's.Angels being there.

So I've had the opportunity to sit down and
attend his courses back in 2004, and we still teach and
co-teach and sit down and discuss outlaw motorcycle
trends, cases, things 11ké that as of today.

In addition to that, I'm also working with Chuck
Schoville who is the president of the International OUtlaw
Motorcycle Gang Investigators Association, who is also
involved in some of the Hell's Angels cases that involve a
homicide in the Mesa area.

50 yeah, I've had very good instructors.

I've also had the opportunity to sit down with
people like Jay Dobbyns and Billy Long who were the people
that infiltrated the HellFs Angels and gleaned some of
their information on what happened and how they operate.

And from that, back in 2004, I started teaching
to new officers at the academy {n 2005, anythihg from a
coliege class settingltb a 1afge conference of 500 pecple

in Arizona and 1in Nevada.
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Q And when you go to conferences,'are'other crimes
that -- or crimes that have been committed by, for
example, the Hell's Angels or Vagos throughout the nation,
are they discussed?

A Yes.

Q And 1s that information regarding people involved
in the clubs, people who have committed crimes, is that
information shared among officers who are in attendance to
these conferences?

A Yes.

Q And so you regularly share information, fTor

example, regarding the Hell's Angels and Vagos; is. that

right?
A Yes. And it's not always in a conference
setting. Sometimes -- the way our network is and really

the philoscphy behind GIITEM back when it was created back

1n.the early '90s, was police officers have jurisdictional
boundaries. Gangs do not.

And there became a reason to put together a gang
task force that was able to network with officers from

different cities, different counties, into different

states so that when they were moving across boundaries, we

still had the ability to share and network and gather the

information and share valuable information as far as
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trends and topics.

0 Now, with respect tc your hands-on experience 1in
Arizona, can you tell me about your knowledge of the
Hell's Angels and their buildup in Arizona?

A In Arizona, prior to 1998, the Hell's Angels
weren't there. In fact, I'11 kind of go back over a
little bit of a history lesson, if I can.

The Hell's Angels started in 1948 in Fontana,

California, and their first chapter'was_Berdoo. As they

.expanded, Sonny Barger moved up to Oakland and founded the

Dakland chapter in 1956.

As time weht on, Sonny was 1nvolvgd in some
criminal proceedings that_put him fTederal prison. which
also landed him in Arizona ub in the federal prison up off

of I-17 and Pidneer Road.

With that at the time, the predominant motorcycle

club in Arizona was the Dirty Dozen. And the Dirty Dozen
had been courted by the Hell's Angels. prior to '96, but
the Dirty Dozen weren't willing to give up their territory
to the Hell's Angels.

However, 1h '96, that éhanged. And what happened
is the Dirty Dozen were one of the first -- were the only
club, I believe until today, that have been able to

prospect for the Hell's Angels as a prospect chapter with
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wearing a tab as a Hell's Angels' support on their cuts,
meaning they didn't have to put on a Hell's Angels’
prospect cut fo sfart working their way in to become
Hell's Angels members.

As they prospected, there were approximately

140-some-odd Dirty Dozen members that prospected to become

Hell's Angels members.

On October 18th of 1998, I believe it was, the
Dirty Dozen no ltonger existed, and the Arizona Hell's
Angels were stood up as a club.

On that day, there were approximately 40 to 45
Hell's Angel members that were patched in. Some of those
people that had transferred over from the Dirty Dozen to
the Hell's Angels already had prioer criminal backgrounds,
including homicide.

50 Wwe knew right off the bat that what réally

happened with the Dirty Dozen is instead of just being an

Arizona gang, they were now part of an international gang.

They had kind of stepped up.

So with that, we had the Phoenix chapter, the
Mesa chapter, the Tucson chapter, the K-3 chapter, and
then as time went on, we had the Nomads, and then the

Skull Valley chapter came into existence.

Q Do_you have a similar history with respect to the
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Vagos 1in Arizona?

A Yes. They have been over to Arizona going back
into the '70s, which is really where -- I know that that
they've been there because of Steve Trethewy, but I don't
know the history. I was still a kid back then.

But in 2005, the Vagos stood up a chapter over

the Colorado River. And with Arizona being considered a

Hell's Angels state or a red and white state, the Vagos

didn't come over and put on an Arizona bottom rocker right
off the bat. They came over and put on a Colorado side
rocker, so they weren't claiming that Arizona. They were
there, but it wasn't a high-tension time. .You know, the
Hell's Angels were aware of them.

As time went_ph. they put on the Arizona bottom
rocker, they expanded the Tri-5tate chapter, 1s what
another -- chapter that céme into Arizona, which was
Nevada, had some people from California and some people in
the Phoenix and Mesa area. And the Tri—State chapter 1is
really what I focus on. |

Q Okay. Now, are you familiar with the buildup of
the Vagos 1in the Arizona area and with respect to-any
perceived rivalry between the Vagos and the Hell's Angelé?

B Yes.

Q Can you expand on that?
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y:y Well, wheh the Vagos arrived 1n town, the Hell's
Angels obviously didn't want them there. There were
several incidents that took place around the state that --

MR. CHESNOFF: Your Honor, at this time, I'm
going to object to the hearsay., giving his opinion,
speculating as to what the Hell's Angels didn't want.

I mean, which Hell's Angel? Is it a person? Is
it more than one? I mean, there's people in Denmark that
are members.of the Hell's Angels. I wonder if they didn't
want them there.

It's just to too broad, too general, too vague,
Your Honor. No foundation..

THE COURT: Okay. Which one do you want to pick?

MR. CHESNOFF: They're all good, but I'll go with
foundation to start with, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Foundation sustained.
BY MR. HALL:

0  What Hell's Angels did you speak with in Arizona
during the course of your tenure that would indicate that
there was some tension between the Hell's Angels and the
Vagos?

A Chris Clouser, Sonny Barger, Julian Cano and a
few other sources that I won't name.

Q And what did you learn from those individuals?

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
log

161




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22

23

24

A That the Vagos were not appreciated being in the
Arizona area, especially wearing the Arizona bottom
rocker.

Q And did you have an bpportunity to speak with any
Vagoslduring the course of your tenure in GIITEM?

A Yes, I have.

Q Can you tell us what -- who you have spcken with
from the Vagos, if anybody?

Fiy Many. Danny Urgquilla, Aurelio Figueroa; Mike
Yeske. James saybon. Mike Dieks. Jess Flores.
{Phonetic). One guy that goes by the name of Stein; I
don't remember his name right now. Anq a Tew others.

0 A1l right. And have you executed any search
warrants during the course of your tenure as a GIITEM
offfcer?

A I've assisted with them, yes.

Q All right. And I should be mofe Specific.

Search warrants executed either on a Hell's Angel
home or residence or charter or ~- and/or Vagos' homes or
that a Vagos would frequent?

A '_Yes.

Q Can you tell us a little bit about execution of

those search warrants and the evidence that you may have

collected during the course of those search warrants?
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A Yes. Approximately two years ago, there was an
assault with a Mesa Hell's Angel member that Mesa PD
executed a search warrant on the clubhouse, and I was
there to assist with that.

When there was the Chino Valley shooting between
the Hell's Angels and the Vagos, I assisted Dave Zavos who

was the lead detective on that with the search warrants at

the house owned by Mike Dieks from the Vagos and the

ex-Skull Valley chapter house owned by Teddy Toth, which
is in Chino Valley, not Skull Valley.

And also 3 search warrant that was done over in I

‘believe the Parker area on a Vagos member's house.

Q All right. Now, during the course of the
execution of those search warrants, did you find any
evidénce that would indicate that the two groups were
outlaw motorcycle gangs, specifically the Hell's Angels
and the Vagos?

A Yes.

0 And so what types of evidence would you look fdr
with respect to the Hell's Angels When you executed the
search warrant during that 2010 shootout? |

A We looked for any type of indicia that showed
that they were a gang. For example, at that time, 1in

Arizona, there was a prior case, Nathan Sample, which I
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sat through that trial.

Nate Sample was found guilty con an aggravated
assault and ultimately sentenced on it. And with that, we
Wwere able to look for more gang 1nd1c1$ or lock at what
Maricopa County recognized as indicia for a gang.

So when we went to Teddy Toth's house in Skull
Valley we were looking and we found treasury notes from
Turtle, which is Warren Kuntz, K-U-N-T-Z.

We found west coasf officer meeting notes. We
found prospect membher notépads that had notes contained
within them. We found the T-shirts, cuts. Thére were
handguhs in there, pictures of associations with other
gang members. Things like that.

0 All rfght. So you're fTamiliar with the insignia
that the Hell's Angels typically fly known as their
colors?

a Yes.

Q All right.” So did you find colors over at
Tothson's (sic) house?

A I'm sorry?

Q _Who-owned-the house that belonged to the Hell's
Angels?
p:y Teddy Toth, T-0-T-H.

0 “Toth, T-0-T-H? Is his name Tothe or Toth?
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T-0-T-H?

A (Nods head).

Qg - All right. Now, who is over at Mr. Toth's or
Tothe's house?

A When I arrived on scene, there was actually

nobody in the house because it was already secured. There

‘were members of the Hell's Angels that were on their knees

in the roadway.
0 Well, let me rephrase the guestion.
Do you remember who was arfésted?
A Yes.
) Who was that?
A There was Mike Koepke. Teddy Toth was actually
taken 1into custody at that time. There was Kevin

Christiansen. Bruce SchwWeigert. Gosh. Some of the names

escape me nNow.

Q - But they were the names that were listed in the
reports?
A Yes.

Q  All right. And were any of those individuals,
were they wearing their gang insignia or cuts?

A Yes,

Q And what was your function upon assisting in the

investigation?
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A It was to help with the identification of gang
members and gang indicia.

Q And you already talked about the gang indicia
that you found at that house that would include notes,
t-shirts, some of the memorabilia, things with the death
head on it, that type of thing?

A Yes.

Q All right. And you reviewed some of that
information?

A Yes.

0 All right. And did that disclcse communicatiocn
between different clubhouses throughout the western United
States?

A Yes.

0 ALl right. And did that indicate that they were

having regular meetings and discussing things that were

going on with not only the Hell's Angels, but with other
outlaw motorcycle gangs?
A Yes.
MR. DOGAN: Objection. Leading.
THE COURT: Sustained.
MR. HALL: I can fephrase the guestion.
BY MR. HALL: |

0 What type of information did you glean from the
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evidence that you gathered from Mr. Toth's house?

A What we found in some of the notes is the Hell's
Angels in Arizona, like many of the other states, would
have monthly officer meetings somewhere within the state
where officers from each chapter would go to meet.

From there, they would alsoc go to what was
referred to as west coast officer meetings which were
usually held in Berdoo or Oakland.

And on occasion -- and I do mean rare
occasions -- there has been one held in Phoenix that they
would send two members from each chapfer to, to report on
club business and basically what was going on Within their
state.

SO0 we were able to recovér west coast officer
meeting notes and the notes of the actual club which were
showing the dﬁes that were paid by hang-arounds,
prospects, and members; any assessments that might have
been paid, fines, mﬁneyé that were paid out to members for
piane tickets to go to the officer meetings, travel,
thfngs like that. |

Q Now, you also executed a search warrant at
Michael Dieks's house; is that correct?

A Yes.

0 And who is Michael Dieks?
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A Michael Dieks was a member of the Vagos.

Q A1l right. And where was Mike Deeks's house in
relationship to Mr. Toth's house?

A Approximately a quarter mile, maybe a little bit
more, north from Toth's house on the same side of the
road.

Q So were the houses adjacent to each other? Any
houses in between their iwo homes?

A There were. There were. And up in that area,
they are acre properties, so there's some distance between
them. And Teddy's -- or Mike's house at the time was kind
of up on a hill from where it was at.

Q But both -- so we had a Hell's Angel house and

then a Vago house just essentially quarter mile from each

other?
A .Yes.
o) On the same road?
A Yes.
Q Same side of the street?

MR. DOGAN: Objection. Leading.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: Sustained.

MR. DOGAN: Your Honor, could we instruct the

witness not to answer when there's an objection?
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THE COURT: We can.

If there's an objection, wait until I rule on.it.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR..HALL: Your Honor, I would 1like to request a
little leeway in foundational stuff to lead the wWwitness 1in
the interest of time.

THE COURT: And I haﬁe given you some, bhut that
was a 1ong string of a lot of leading.

MR. HALL:. All right, thank you.

BY MR. HALL:

0O What evidence, if any, indicia of gang membership
did you find during the execution of your search warrént
at Michael Deeks's house?

MR. CHESNOFF: Your Honor I'm goihg to object to
the use of the word "gang" membership. |

THE COURT: Okay. I dqn't'know of a legal
evidentiary objection known as object to the word "gang."
For purposes of today's hearing, I don't think it's
necessary to worry about it. And I understand you're
goihg to make lots of motions inm limine with regard fto
that. |

MR . CHESNOFF: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: 5o it's overruled for today.
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You can answer the question if you remember it.
BY MR. HALL:

Q .The question was: What indicia of gang
Membership, if any, did you locate during the execution of
your search warrant at Michael Dieks's house?

A Patches. Vago patches.

0 And what's a Vago patch?

A A Vago patch is a green -~ it's actually a
two—pie;e patch that has a red devil on the back of.it,
which is Loki, the Norse god of mischief. And then at the
bottom of that, has the Vago's name on the bottom of the
scroll that comes out that the devil holds. So we found
some of those.

We fTound various weapons up there. And then we
also conducted interviews that helped us, too.

Q And during the course of the interviews, did you
ask the people that you interviewed, the men that you
Tnterviewed, whether or not fhey were members of the:
Vagos? |

A Yeah. And actually, many of them I'd already had

‘dealings with, so it wasn't kind of 11ke I didn't know the

guy. I just started talking to 'em. There was a rapport
that was built up. there.

" One of the people I talked to was Aurelio
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Figureoa who goes by fhe street name of 45. And
interviewed him and.was asking him about what took place
up there.

And one of the things that really stands ocut to
me 15, having talked to him in the past, I asked him:
Hey, what does this mean to you guys now?

1 dﬁn‘t know if that's the exact words. It's

recorded, but it was something to that. It was: Hey,

‘what does this mean now?

And Aurelio's comment to me was, "We're in a
war .

And at that point, it kind of -- it was like,
okay, you know what? I need to shére this with other
investigators because we're gbing to start seeing some
problems.

Q So the comment made to you was that the Vagos

“were in a war with the Hell's Angels?

y:\ Yes.

o Ahd as a result of ~-- well, can you give u§ an
overview of the investigation as to whaf the investigation
revealed as far as what happened?

A Basically there was -- you got a pack of Vagos
that were riding northbound on.tﬁe‘road that went in front

of Teddy's house. And there were a handful of Hell's
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Angels that started shooting at them. And there were a
few guys that were hit, and some of them dropped their
bikes in front of the house, while others went back to
retrieve the injured, the people that were down. And
seemed pretty much unprovoked at the time,.

0 How many peopie_were shot?

A There were three, I believe three injuries from
weapons. One was a left knee strike to a Vago, Which.was
Robert Blankenship. One was a gut shot to Kevin
Christiansen, which is a Hell's Angel. And one was a
graZing-wound to -- goes by the name of, I believe,
Kickstand.

0 Another Vago?

a Yeah. He was the president of the Tri-State
chapter. 1I'd have t0'106k at.my chart to remember his

nName .

Q And during the coqrsé of your ﬁnvest1gatibn, did

you interview or know of an individual by the name of
Pizel?

A. Yes.

Q And who is he?

A William Pizel 1is an Ihternational Nomad Vago who
lives 1in the Dewy, area. And I‘Ve_anwn of him basically

since I've came into the unit in 2004. I was made aware.
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that he was up fhere from my prior sergeant, Shawn Wood.
And then during his 1nterv1ew; he had told us of some
prior conflict with thé Hell's Angels.

o) All right. Now, do the Hell's Angels -~ 1s that
a combination of people that constitute an organization?

A Yes.

Q All right. And does that organization continue
when people or members leave the organization?

A Yes.

0 And they have a common identifying symbol; is
that right?

MR. DOGAN: Objection. Leading.
MR. HALL: TI'11l rephrase.

BY MR. HALL: |

Q Do they have a common identifying symbol?

A - They do. They have the death head which was
patented in 1972. - | |

Q And do they have particular conduct status or
customs fhat are 1nd1caf1ve of the Hell's Angelé?

A Yes.

0 Can you explain what those might be?

‘A Well, some of the things is that wherever they
go, they will wear their_cuts.

You have a hang-around/prospect period that you
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will go thfough to get in. It's not just instant
membership. 5o you're going to prove yourself before you
get to it.

Do you want me to go through thé whole structure
of membership?

Q IT you would briefly, if you can cover that
briefly.

A Okay. From what I've been told.by Hell's Angel
memhers at cqnferénces and sources that I've debhriefed,
you start off as a guest; Basically you're hanging around
Hell's Angels members {o see if you're liked, to see?if

you're trustworthy, to see if you kind.of get along with

the guys.

' Once-that-happens and you're asked tc go to a
hang-around, you come in and start hanging around with the
Hell's Angéls. You'll have typically, depending on where
yOQ're af, ﬁaybe what they refer to as a license plate on
the back of the cuts With the chapter's name,\and you'll
haﬁg around with them for a while.

They're basically kinda, as one_Hell's Angel
member told me, they're checking your mudr They're making
sure that you're worthy to be a Hell's Angel member.

I was also told that when you're a hang-around,

you're expected to act like a prospect because that's what
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you're aspiring to be. That's your next step.

So once you move from hang-around to prospect,
you get a bottom rocker with an MC patch. So you'll hear
gang investigators refer to a Hell's Angels patch or a
full patch or a three-piece patch. It's actually a
four-piece patch.

At the prospect stage, you have two patches. You
have an Arizona bottom rocker, California bottom rocker.
Whatever state you're in, it's a bottom rocker, and MC
signifies motorcycle club.

You'li prospect for up te a year. During that
time, again, you're doing any of the jobs that they ask
you to do. Can be as simple as run over and grab me a
sandwich. You're expected te have a prospect kit which
might include anything from Asprin to fhread to condoms_
to -- you know, anything théy need, you're expected to
have as a prospect or bhe able tc get it.

Once you do your time, you have to be voted in

unanimously into the club. Once you get your vote in, now

you get what's called a full patch, which is, like I said,
actually four patches. Top rocker which says Hell's
Angels, the death head, the bottom rocker with the state,
and the MC patch. |

o) Now, do the Vagos have a similar custom with
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respect to initiation?

A They do. It runs along the same lines, almost

identical.

Q So they would have a botiom rocker.

If they pass

muster with respect to prospecting, then they could be

given a Tull patch?
A Yes.,
Q And the Vagos, what's their logo?

A Their logo on the back is Loki --

MR. DOGAN: Objectibn. Asked and answered.

MR. HALL: Okay.

"THE COURT: Sustained, I guess. I don't remember

hearing that.
BY MR. HALL:
0 Did I ask that question?
A Yes, you did. I described it.
0 Ckay.
MR. CHESNOFF: It's the Norse god.
MR. HALL: Excuse me?
MR. CHESNOFF: 1It's a Norse'god.
MR. HALL: The Norse god, thank_you.
MR. CHESNOFF: You're welcome.
MR, HALL: All r1ghty

77
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BY MR. HALL:
0 Now, we were talking about the investigation.
And you indicated the investigation with respect to the

shocoting of Vagos by Hell's Angels; is that right?

A Yes.
0 Okay. And you were interviewing Hell's Angels
before I kind of -- excuse me, Vagos hefore I got side

tracked, and you were talking about William Pizel. And
you {ndicateq that there was a wér. One of the wifnesses
indicated or one of the people you 1nterviéwed said that
there was a war. Was that between the Hell's Angels and
the Vagos or that the Shootﬁng would cause a ware between
the Vagos and Hell's.Angels?

A Yes. And that was Aurelio Figureoa from the
Vagos.

0 All right. And then do you know what the reason
was for the shooting of Vagos by Hell's Angeis?

A From the sources that I have talked to and the

people that I've debriefed, it was all over the Arizona

‘bottom rocker. Basicaily the territory and knowing that

the Hell's Angels, especially in Arizona, it's considered
a red and white state, and tt's their area, theif
territory.

Q Prior to the shooting, were ydu aware of any
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rivalry between the Hell's Angels and the Vagos?

A Yes.

Q And what made you aware of that or what evidence
did you have indicating that there was a problem, other
than I think you mentioned Sonny Barger and some other
Hell's Angels had indicated that that was red and white
territory?

A Yeah. Again, it goes back to working the streets
and télking to the guys that are in the gang. And I had
talked to Dan Urquilia who owned a motorcycle shop in
Mesa. And it was known that he was a Vago, had moved
there, opened up his motorcycle shop. |

And years prior, Hell's Angel members from Mesa
had gone in and talked to him'about running his business
in Arizona and he was a Vago. |

Ultimately, there was a beat-down of Danﬁy

Urguilla in his shop over him being a Vago and being 1in

~Mesa by members of the Mesa chapter.

MR. CHESNOFF: Your Honor, just so you know,-Your

Honor, this isn't listed as an event that we were going to

be dealing with.
MR. DOGAN: Your Honor, I would join that.
THE COURT: Okay. I'll note your objection and

I'll see what I'm going to do with 1t later.
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MR. CHESNOFF: Thahk yéu, Your Honor.
THE COURT: You may proceed 
BY MR. HALL:

0] You mentioned some of the information that you
had gathered during the course of yohr tenure as a GIITEM
officer.

A Yes.

Q And then that would be information that you

‘would --

MR. CHESNOFF: Your Honer, I'm going to object.

He's now on notice that it's one of the things that wasn't

listed, and he wants toc continue to pursue it.

. It's one thing for you to fake under
Cons1derat10n whét you're going to do. It's another thing
for him-to cdntinue to dd-1t.

THE COURT: Okay. I can't read the realtime, so
what's this instant -- what does it refer to?
MR. HALL:. It refers to --

"THE COURT: 1Is it in the pleadings somewhere that
you want to point me to? | '

MR. HALL: No, I didn't even know about ift.
I'm -- I asked him what the basis of his opfn1on Was
regarding the -- where we started here was we had the

shootoﬁt, which of course.was noeticed. They have all the
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police reports.

And

shooting?

Essentially

I said, well, what was the motive for that

Do you have other informaticn indicative of the

rivalry?

Said, yeah, as a matter of fact, there was some

other information, you know, that he had with respect to a

Tfellow who owned a motorcycle shop.

THE
just now?

“MR.
had pled. I

MR.

MR.

COURT: And you didn't know about that until

HALL: It certainly wasn't something that I
mean, I -- ‘
CHESNOFF: That's --

HALL: I don't have the police reports. I

don't even know if there was police reports --

THE

- THE

his response
MR .

" THE

voir dire dn
to the 5State

about police

WITNESS: No, there --

COURT: _OKéy. So you just learned of it in
to your question.

HALL: Right. _

COURT: Oh, okay. So I'll allow you some

it. It sounds like this is new information
as well as you. .So do'you wanf to ask him

reports or where it came from?
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MR. CHESNOFF: It's not new information to fhe
State because he is the State, too, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Right.

MR. CHESNOFF: And so they've been 1nterv1ew1ng
people, they've been preparing, and this isn't the first
Time they've talk to this.officer.

And all I'm saying, Your Honor, 1is you've heard
enough about ft. Now, to continue to dig into it when
we've had no opportunity to be.prepared for-it, I just
don't understand this.

THE COURT: What's the necessity of --

MR. HALL: I was trying to move on, you know,
until he keeps.making objections.

THE COURT: oOkay. Let's not ask any more

questions, then, on this area.

MR. DOGAN: Your Honor, for the record, we join.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.
MR. CHESNOFF: Your Honor, could I inquire, is
the shootout we're talking about, did it cccur in 2010,

Your Honor? I'm tryihg to reference it to the motion.

THE COURT: Well, the information in the pleading

"on page six says May 30th, 2010; is that correct?

THE WITNESS: No.

THE COURT: Okay. When is it?
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THE WITNESS: It was approximately August 20th of
2010, was the actual shootout date.

THE COURT:- August 20th, 2010. -Okay.

MR. CHESNOFF: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MR. HALL:

Q Now, during course of your investigation or
tenure as a police officer, do you know whethér or not
there was a communication between outlaw motorcycle gangs
regarding tensions or rivalries natidnw1de?

Let me rephrase.

Do you know, based updn your tenure as a police
officer, including your interviews, search warrants,
whether or not there was communication with, for example,
the Hell's Angels 1n Arizona with the Hell's Angels 1in
Catifornia? |

A Yes.

MR. DOGAN: Objection. Compound.

THE COURT: Qverruled.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

BY MR. HALL:

Q ALl right; And same thing with respect to the
Vagos. Did the Vagos communicate -- the Arizona Vagos.
communicate with- California Vagos?

)= Yes.
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Q All right. And so would it be - do you Know
whether or not, for example, Vagos in Arizona were
familiar with some of the fights that had occurred between
Hell's Angels and Vagos in California, Nevada, or other
places? |

MR. DOGAN: Objéction. Leading.

THE COURT: Yes, sustained.

MR. HALL: "Do ycu Know"?

THE COURT: It calls for a yes Or no answer.

MR. HALL: Well, I thought suggesting the answer
was the test Tor 1eadiﬁg, not necessarily yves or no.

THE COURT: Well, I thdught it was suggestive,

MR. HALL: Okay.
BY MR. HALL:

Q Is there communication with Vagos in other

states, do you know?

A Yes. -
@  Okay. And what do they talk about? Do you know?

Y Vagos that I've dealt with up in Chino or

Prescott Valley area, they would talk about cohcerns when

they would have to go over to southern California to have
a club meeting with international, is what they referred
it to, because their concern was the tensions cver in

California, if they're driving over there, whether or not
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something may happen to them.

Q All right. And I'll pose the same question with

respect te the Hell's Angels.
MR. DOGAN: Your Honor, objection. Foundation.
THE COURT: Overruled.

THE WITNESS: Yes, same thing.

BY MR. HALL:
0 S50 do you have an opihion as to whether or not
there is a violent -- a history of V1qience between the

two gangs?

A Yes. ~

Q And what is your opinion on that issue?

A Yes, it's there, and I believe 1t's'ong01ng.
Q And you've had an_opportunity to observe the

video with respect to the Nugget; is that correct?

A Yes. |

0 All right. And do you have an opinion as to
whether or not the crimes that we have alleged that were
committed at the Nugget were committed with a specific
intent to further assist the activities of the -Hell's
Angels and_Vagos?

MR. DOGAN: Objectioh. It goes to the ultimate

issue, Your Hahor. | |

THE CCURT: Sustained.
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MR. HALL: Your
tThe opportunity to at le

you were going to decide

THE COURT: Wel
MR. HALL: All
THE COURT: We
MR. HALL: I'll1l

withdraw the guestion.

BY MR. HALL:

0 With respect to

the Nugget, did you have
video?

A Yes.

9] All right. And
happened in Arizona, was

Nugget consistent with t
between the ftwo gangs?
A Yes.
MR. HALL: I do
guestions.
THE COURT: Oka

MR. CHESNOFF:

/17

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc.

Honor, I thought we were given
ast ask the questions, and then

later as to whether or not --

1 --
right. That's fine.

have, but, you know, it's .
.move on. 1I'11 move on. I'll

the crimes that were committed at

an opportunity to review the

based upocon your knowledge of what
the conduct that you saw 1in the

he cohduct with respect to rivairy'

n't think I have any further

y. Cross?

Thank you.
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CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. CHESNOFF:

Q The shootout that occurred at the house, that
case was dismissed, correct? |

A Yes.

0 The reascn it was dismissed is the law
enforcement failed to disclose to the defendants that the
informant 1in the case had been a paid 1nf0rmaht Wworking
for the State of Arizona, correct?

A Yes.

Q  And the judge decided that that was misconduct on

the part of the Arizona law enforcement; is that right?

A Yes.
0 And Wwere you involved in that case?
A Yes.

o Did you --

)Y Wait. Was I dinvolved 1in the ﬁase with the
informant?

0 No. Were you --

A Or was I involved in the case investigating the
sHooting?

G Involved in the shooting.

A | Yes.

Q And were you aware that there had bheen a paid
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informant that had prqvided information to 1law enforcement
in that case?

A Yes.

Q And did you at any time.disclose to the judge or
to the defense lawyers that there was such an informant?

A I have not been dinterviewed by defense attorneys,
and I've also not been in front of the judge. So no.

0 Okay. Please listen to my question carefully.

Did you at any time, as a sworn officer --

MR. HALL: Objection. Argumentative. Asked and

answered.

THE COURT: Sustained. It's arguhentative.

MR. CHESNOFF: I'm sorry?

THE COURT: It's argumentative. He answered the
question. %

MR. CHESNOFF: No.

THE COURT: He has not provided that.

MR. CHESNOFF: Okay. I'm asking in a different
faorm.

BY MR. CHESNOFF:

0 You are a sworn police officer, correct?

A Yes.

0  And you have an obligation-to follow the law,
correct? | |
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A Yes.

Q And you understand what a Brady obligation is,

correct?
A Yes.
0 And a Brady obligation requires you to provide to

the defense any and all information that's favorable
either to punishment or guilt or innocence, correct?

A Yes.

Q Were you the case agent?

.A On what?

0 Cn the shooting.

A No.

Q Okay. What was your role?

A I provided information on the gang side of it and
the gang connection between the two clubs.

Q Did you have an opportunity to interact with the
informant, thé pajid informant 1in the case?

A No. |

Q Were you aware of thé amounts of money £hat were

paid there?

A No.
Q Who was that officer, iT you know?
A Detectiﬁe lohn Morris.

0 What was the name of the DA in that case?
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A Dana Owens.

0 Is it fair to say, based on your knowledge of the
case, that the paid informant was the one who the'Court
determined had actually instigated the whole event?

F:\ I'm sorry? Rebeat that.

Q Based on your knowledge of the facts of the case,
are you aware of the fTact that the paid informant working
Wwith the police was the one who actually invited Vagos to
come to that location where the shooting occurred?

A No. This is the first time I've heard that
perception of it.

Q Solyou don't know that the paid informant was the
one who called fellow Vagos to come to that location?
Never heard that before?

A Not exactly the way that you're putting it out
there. |

0 Well, why don't --

A And again, I wasn't the officer that was called,

Q Okay.

.3 I wasn't the one handling the informant. And I
have not, until very recently,'even seen the informant.

So I have had no interactions with the informant. .

0 When did you speak to Sonny Barger?

A I have spoken to him on several occasions. Some
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on traffic stops and some at his house.
Q Okay. When?
A I don't know the exact days.
0 What years?

A 2010, 2011.

Q "You wWere at his house?

A Yes.

Q In your capacity as a law enforcement officer?
A Yes.

Q Were you serving a warrant?

A No.

0 Did you just go to speak to him?

A Yes.

Q How many times?

A Twice.

0] Who was present?

A On one visit was Detective Dave Platt. sonny's

wife, Z, answered the door. And on a second visit was

Detective John Dechant, D-E-C-H-A-N-T.

0 And did Mr. Barger have you into his home?
A Not inside, but he did open his garage for us to
talk there.

0 And what was the subject that you discussed?

A Whether or not he actually had a daughter.
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Q

Okay. And you engaged 1in a conversation with him

about that?

A

talked a
Q

Fa

o;

A

Q

Yes.

And he responded to you?

Yes.

Was that the extent of your conversation?
No. We talked about Hell's Angels stuff and
little bit about Vagos stuff. Jusi chitchatted.
Did you record it?

No.

Did you make notes?

No.

Bid your partner.make notes?

No.

When you 1eft, did you make a report?

No.

Did your partner make a report?

Not that T am awaré of.

So you had an interview with Sonny Barger about

Hell's Angel business and didn't make any recofd of it; s

‘that right?

A

Q

No.

Did you tell Mr. Barger that'you were not going

to make a record of it?
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A No.
Q Have you shared what you learned from Mr. Barger

with other law enforcement officers?

A Yes.

Q Who?

A Various people at intel meetings.
0 Names.

A lorge Gil-Blanco.
0 Who else?
A John Woosniem. Shawn Wood.

Actually the one that started this was a female
sergeant from Phoenix PD, and I don't recall her name, but
she worked up at the ACTIC, and there was just information
came in that Sonny had a daughter, and.nobody.wanted to go
talk to Sonny about it. So I did.

Q Did somebody want to date her?

¥y Huh?

Q Why were you interested in Sonny's Bargef's
'déughter? |

A Well, I received information. I decided to go

talk to the man about it and asked him questions about it.

He told me -~
' o} Was she the subject of an investigation?
A I have no idea. 1It's a Phoenix PD sergeant. She
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asked if I knew whether or not Sonny Barger had a

daughter., T went to Sonny's house and asked him.

Q

Do you know why she was interested in whether

Sonny Barger had a daughter?

MR. HALL: Objection. Relevance, Your Honor. I

think we're getting a 1ittle far afield from --

Honor .

death.

BY MR.

Q. -

A

THE COURT: Wha#'s the relevance?

MR. CHESNOFF: It goes to his credibility, Your
THE COURT: It may, but I think you've beat it to

MR. CHESNOFF: Okay.
THE COURT: Sustained.
CHESNOFF:
When's the other time yocu spoke to Mr . Barger?

When we heard the information that he may be

moving from Cave Creek up to the Dewy area.

Q

A

. Q -
A

-

A

What was the purpose'of speaking to him?
To find out if he was moving.

Did he give you an answer?

Yes.

What.djd he tell you?

He told us he wasn't'looking to move to that

area, but he had stopped in at some point to talk to a
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real estate agent just to look at property.
Ultimately, he ended up moving to Black Canyon

City shortly after our conversation.

0 You mentioned three other Hell's Angels that you

spoke to. Could you gave me their names, please?

A Andreas Ospina.
Q What chapter is he with?
A He's with the Nomads in Arizona.

0 And when did you talk to him?

a Several timeé,_mostly over the last few vears at
tdy runs. He actually -- he'actually approaches me,

0 And toy runs,-so Her Honor knows, are events that
the Heli's Angel motorcycle club holds to -~ for

charitable purposés, correct?

A Yes.

Q And at those events, they gather toys and they
distribute them to children, correct?

A Sometimes, yes.

0 And who was another member of the club that you
claim you spoke to?

A Julian Cano.

Q What chapter?

A He was with the Mesa chapfer.

Q When was it that you spoke to him?
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A Shortly after the Nathan Sample trial was

completed and we debriefed him.

Q He was an informant?
A Yeah.
0 Oh, okay. 5S¢ was he a member of the club when.

you spoke to him, or was he an informant at the time that
was no longer a member?

B It was after thé fact:

0 So he was no longer a member of the club,
correct?

A Correct.

Q So he was operating in the capacity of trying to

provide help to you, correct?
A Correct.

O And work off a case?

A Yes. And not directly to me. It was a group of

investigators. He was actually cohtrolled by somebody
‘else. |

'} What kind of case was he working off?

A An aggravated assault case.

Q So he was reduired to talk to you, right?
A At the time, no.
Q Subsequently?

A Subsequently what?
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Q He was required to talk to you?

A He did it at his own free will.

Q But he was an informant?

A Not ét the time. Not paid. We asked him if he
would sit down and talk with us, and he agreed to.

0 This was aftter he had already --

A After everything was done.

Q I see. And what was the last fellow that you
spoke to that was a member?

A I've talked to several others. Chris Clouser.

Q What chapter is he with?

A He's with mesa chapter.

0 What did you talk to Chris about?

A Several -- a lot of it is just talking to these
guys on the side of the road. Sometimes while they're at
their events; we'll talk to 'em. I'll just walk up and
talk to 'em. I sat down hext'fo the person sitting nexf
to you and just said hi. That's what we do._ We talk to
people. We chitchat.

Every time I siT down and chitchat with somebody
doesn't mean that it's going to go anywhere. Doesn't mean
it's going to be about the gang. Sometimes I'il ask them,
you know, hey, you how long you been in? Sometimes I

might get somebody who will tell me something. Sometimes
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I'll get: You know I don't talk about that.
S0 yeah, my job is to talk to these guys.

0 From the Hell's Angels that are members that are
not informants, you get, "I won't talk about that," right?

A Not all the time. Not all the time.

Q So give us an example of a Hell's Angel who has
told you something substantive about a criminal activity
that's a member of the Hell's Angels while they were a
member of the Hell's Angels.

-y Oh, not criminal activity.

0 So really, everything that you allegedly know
about the activities of the Hellfs Angels that you bhelieve
make them an outlaw motorcycle gang is based on
information you gathered from non-Hell's Angels sources,
right, about the criminal stuff, right?

A Yeah. Because most of the time they've.been
charged with a criminal offense as a Hell's Angel, and

they've decided to leave the gang because of the criminal

offense.

0 Have you evef --

A Somewhat seeing the light.

0 Have you ever arrested anybody that's in the
Army?

A In the Army?

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
T4

197




10

11

1z

i3

14

15

16

17

13

19

20

21

22

23

24

0 Yeah. Or military or law enforcement?

A Probably.

o) And it wouldn't be uncommon ifT you Were in the
police department and you got arrested and a search was
done at your house to find a picture of a policeman with
another policeman, right?.

pay Okay.

o So if you're a member of an organization --

"MR. HALL: Excuse me, Your Honor. I'm going to
object as to argumentative. Irrelevant with respect to
this hearing. It he wants to put on that 1little show for
thé jury, T don't think we need it here today.

MR. CHESNOFF: Okay. Well, first of all, what
you think we need isn't important to me. It's what Her
Honor thinks.we need that's important.

And the point is, he brought up the fact that
somehow it was an indicia of gang activity to find a
picture of somebody who is in an orgahization with.you.

So all I'm asking him, is it not'uncommon; when
you search somebody's house, to find pictures of people
who.are similarly situated to you? That's all I asked,
Your Honor.

THE COURT: I think the 11he df questioning is

argumentative. I don't think we need him to testify to
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that. You can argue 1it.
MR. CHESNOFF: Okay.
THE COURT: Sustained,
BY MR. CHESNOFF;

0 When you did a search where you found meeting
notes, they reflected the fact .that this is an
organization or a club that has meetings, right?

A I would say it reflects gang membership that's
documented by dues and positions held within the gang.

Q Okay. There's a clubhouse generally that's
assbciated with a charter, correct?

A Net all the time, but generally.

Q Okay. And some of'thOSe clubhouses, the members

of the motorcycle club will meet on a regular basis,

correct?
A Correct.
Q And, for example, one of the things that occurs

is dues are collected, correct?

A By the notes that I found, yes.

Q Okay. And the purpose of the dues 1is, 1in some
instances, to maintain the clubhouse, correct?

A I would assume soO.

0 Okay. To buy beer for the bar, correct?

¥y Okay. -
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Q

A

You're not disagreeing with me --

I'm not disagreeing with you. I just see where

you're going.

Q

Okay. And when you read these notes, they

document what occurred at the meeting, correct?

A

They document not only what occurred at the

meeting, but at what time somebody became a hang-around,

the date, what time somebody became a prospect, and what

time somebody became a member.

It also documents if somebody's been punished or

fined for something. Much like membership to Costco or

Sam's Club, you only get in'when you pay for 1it.

o
A

Q

Have you testified before as an expert?
No.

How many times have you testified as a law

enforcement officer?

A

Q
A
- Q
A

o

" Probably seven, eight times.

In your whole career?
Yes.
-How many years have you been an officer? -

19.

50 in 19 years, you've appeared in a courtroom to

testify seven or eight times?

A

Yes, Well, I'm not including traffic tickets.
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I'm assuming you're after criminal --

Q Yeah, felonies.

A Yeah. Seven or eight times.

o) Were you a patrolman?

A Yes. I spent, like I said, Tive years-doing

vehicle homicides. |
MR. CHESNOFF: Court's 1ndu1gencé.
Thank you, sir.
No further questions, Your Honor.
MR. DOGAN: Court's indulgence.

THE COURT: Qkay.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. DOGAN:

Q Before coming to court today, did you speak about

what ydu were going to say in court with any other Tlaw

enforcement officer?
A Yes.
0 Who were they?
-\ Shawn Wood.
~Q Who else?
A I talked to Chuck Schoville.
0 Who else?

.A_ My sergeant, Laurie Gfiffith.
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0 "How about a witness in this case?

A No.

0O And yéu sit outside, right, before coming into
court?

A Yeah.

0 On the bench?

A - Most of the time ;‘Ve been standing, walking up
and down the halls, but I.wasn't called here until late
yesterday.

Q There are other law enforcement officers who are
present there, right?

A Yes.

Q Pid you hear any other law enforcement offjcers
speak to you about their.case?

A - In here?

0 About what their testimony is.

A . No.

Q And did you speak to any law enforcement offjcer
about your testimony?

| A No. |

Q Not today?

A :No.

Q And not yesterday?

A No.
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Q Bid you speak to the prosecutors about this case?

A Yes.

Q And did you havg_a conference?

A Yes.

0 Who was'present at that conference?

A Amos and Karl. It was all attorneys. There

weren't any other officers in the room.

0 Was there a DA dinvestigator?

A I don't recall. I think so. 1 fhink - wWell, I
don't know. I don't know ail their names. It would bé --
he was in there. -Larry, I believe his name. Pete Grimm

may have been in there for a little bit. I thought there
was one other person I'm not famiiiar with either.
I've only, face to face, seen these people the

lasf few days. |

0  For today, did anybody talk to you about the rule
of. exclusion?

A No.

Q Nobody mentiqned it to you, right?

A No. I think it's just understood we don't talk
about the case. |

0 Are you familiar with Officer Kirby?

A I doen't know which one. Officer Kirby is. = And

actually, anybody who is out there or who has already been
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here, I don't even knpw what their involvement is in this
case. I don't know what they're here about.

0 Let's talk about the Vagos that vou have
communicated with. Is that okay with you?

A That's fTine.

Q All right. Let's go down the list. So I only
got the last names or the first names that vou mentioned?
And let me go back.

Well, why don't I just ask you: Who were the

Vagos that you spoke to? And can you please name them one

by one and we'll go through them one by one.
| A When?

¢] Anytime;

A Again; some_of the names are going to élip my
mind, and some of them you're just going to get just
monikers.

less Flores.

0  Okay. Jess Flores, right?

F:\ Yes.

Q What chapter does he belong to?

A Jess Flores was partially, I guess you could say,
with the Tri-5tate chapter. The first time I met him was
when Glendale PD asked me to go with them to a call of

some -- of a report. I don't remember whether it was a
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burglary report or what, but they just didn‘t think things

were right with him.

And I went along and I talked to Jess. And what
I found ocut is Jéss was one of the founding presidents for
the Oxnard chapter over 1in California. And we had talked
a little bit, and he basically wanted to lead me to
believe that he was no longer 3 member at the time.

And when we got to talking, actually had a few

conversatioens with him on separate occasions with Glendale

PD. And we got fo taiking and he had mentioned that his

president, I believe, was Kickstand. And that was when I

kinda looked at him and said, "Ah, so you're still in the

club.”

Q So did he belong'to the -- did you say Tri-State
chapter? |

A Yes.

0 Okay. And you're with 1aﬁ énforcement of ficers

tnvolving a burglary énd you rode with them?

A Yeah. I met him at his house over in Glendale.
0 Was there a Search warrant involved?

A He was a victim.
0 And you had stated that he was noc longer a
member; 1s that correct? -

):y That's what he told me.
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A

Q
chargés?

A

Q
speak to?

A

Q

to?

How do you Know that -- strike that.
Was he facing criminal charges?
No.

Were you aware of whether he had faced criminal

No.

Okay. So after Jess Flores, who else did you

I've talked to Aurelio Figueroa.

Do you know how to spell that?

No.

Okay. Tell me the last name again.
Figueroa.

Figuere?

Fﬁgueroa.

Figueroa. And what chapter did Figueroa belong
He was the vice presideht of the Tri-State

And you spoke to him, correct?
Yes,

And how many occasions?
Probably more than ten.

In relation to a case?
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A No. Just chitchatting a little.
0 Chitchatting about what?
A Vagos stuff. Sometimes we'd talk about the

weather. I mean, again, it's just sometimes you make

small talk.
Q Is he currently a member?
A No.
Q Was he a member when you spoke to hfm?
a2 Yes.
Q .And while he was a member when you spoke to him,

do you know, as a member, how many times did you speak to

him, Figueroa?

A Since he's not been a member, I haven't talked to
him,
Q Do you know why he's no longer a member?
A Probably because hé talked to-me during the Chino
Valley shooting.
Q Was he a Eooperating Wwitness?
A I would call him a cooperating witness.'yes;
Q Okay. So Jesse Flores. Figueroa. What's
another Vago that you have spoke to?
And let me stop you right now.
A1l the individuals that you spoke to, do-you '

have any police‘reports regarding your conversation with

~ Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. ~ 775-746-3534
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them? Did you type up a report?

A Figueroa, there's going to be a recording.-
Q Did you say recording?

A Yes.

Q Is it an aud1o'record1ng?

3 Yes.

Q Have you provided that to the State?

A Yeah. I e-mailed it to them.

MR .
THE
THE
few months.
THE
about that?

MR.

THE

THE

take a short

15 minutes.

THE

Did

MR.

DOGAN: Your Honor, can we 1inquire --
COURT:. When did you e-mail it?

WITNESS: I would have to look. 1It's been a
COURT: Did you want to talk to the State

DOGAN: Yes, Your Honorl

COURT: Go ahead.

(Discussion off the record between counsel.)
COURT: Okay. Maybe this is a good time to

recess. We'll be in recess for 10 or

-(Recess taken 3:19 p.m.-to'3:43 p.m.)

COURT: Thank you. Please be seated.

"you get your question ahswered, Mr. Dogan?

DOGAN: No, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: Oh, I thought you were --

MR. DOGAN: Well, Your Honor, it's our

understanding that the State does have it. They received

it sometime I beljeve in November. They just couldn't

open it or something to that effect. I believe that they

Wwill be able to better explain that to Your Honor than
myself.

But what I do know is they have possession of
something, and whether or not it works, they should have
got a working copy, and we need possession of that. And
if we don't have it, it's ndt'good.

| And it goes to\the same objection that I raised
previously that we need all the discbvery pertaining to
all these witnesses.

THE COURT: Are we talking about an audio --

audiotape of an interview you had with a Vago?

THE WiTNESS: It's a digital audio recording that

was maintained by Detective Zavos. And I tried to get a

copy of it and apparently the format it's in needs td be

converted to a WAV file or Whatever file because in a WAV
file, it's too big to be sent digitally.

THE COURT: _Sb you e-mailed it and it just didn't

work?

THE WITNESS: I don't know if it's something that

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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could still be converted or not. I don't know.

THE COURT:' thch Vagos member was this of?

THE WITNESS: Aurelio Figueroa.

THE COURT: Okay. .So what is the State's claim?

MR. HALL: Well, first of all, I would indicate
that the statement that Mr. Skelton's already -- Detective
Skelton's already testified to that this is a war, that
was Figuerca's statement. So that's contained in the
police reports that have been delivered to the defense.

You know, we'll see 1f we can figure out how to -
get that in a -- into a fashion that we can discover 1it.

I've never heard it. I did get the e-mail on |

November 29th. I just ran over and checked it out. I

couldn’t open it. I think I forwarded it to somebody fto

see if ahybody could open it. I don't think we éver got
that accomplished. |

I know I had a trial startihg on Deceﬁber 3rd, a
murder trial that was 1in Départment 10. That went two
weeks; and then I went op vacation and basically forgot
about it. So it's something that wé'll get and discover
it.

THE COURT: Is that audio recording -- 1s that
whét the statement of Mr. Figuerca 1is on?

MR. HALL: You have to ask the detective. I

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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don't know. I never heard it.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: GOkay. Then -- and have you heard
this audio recording?

THE WITNESS: No.

THE COURT: Who told you that it existed?

THE WITNESS: I was there when Dave Zavos, the
lead detective, was recording it.

THE COURT: What was he using to record it on?

THE WITNESS: Little digital recording.

THE COURT: And what did he give you? He sent it
electronically?

- THE WITNESS: Yeah. Same thing that I forwarded

to him.

THE COURT: But you didn't open it to see if it
worked?

THE WITNESS: Well, it depends on what type of
player you have, whether or not you can decode it.

THE COURT: So were you able to decode 1t?

THE WITNESS: No. We're not able to add anything
to our MDCs to play different files.

THE COURT: Okay. ALl right. So.I think that if
the State is unable to decode it, you stili_éould pass it

on and the defense could hire their own expert to decode

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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it.

MR. HALL: Yes, Your Honor, I'd be happy to
forward the e-mail. No problem.

THE COURT: But you're going to try to open it?

MR. HALL: Yes, certainly. I'"ll exercise best

“efforts to open it and do whatever we need to do to get it

s0 somebody could listen to it.

MR. CHESNOFF: And another way, since 1t.was done
on a little digital retord, would be for the officer who
was relying on this as part of his testimony to ask his
partner who recorded it to just burn a couple topies.
Then we'll all have it and welll all get to do with it
what we think we shﬁuld. |

THE COURT: Well, I'm not sure -- I agree., I
don't know why it wasn't done. But why I'm hearing it
wasn't done is becaﬁse of Mr. Hall's schedule and that
he's now going to do it. In the interim, I still would
wanf it sent out.

-So. Céunsel. you want fo reserve the opportunity
to cross—egamine him once you hear the audiotape} right?

MR. DOGAN: I believe; of course, the remedy at

this point would be exclusion. But if Your Honor is not

comfortable with excluding the witness, then the answer

would be.yes.
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THE COURT: Well, if it's in the police report,
this could be cumulative evidence or it could be different
evidence. So until we see it, we don't know what it is.

So obviously, 1if it discredits the testimony or
what's in the police report, then it will be used by you
to argue that this evidence should be excluded. But if it
corroborates what is there, then it's corrobatory evidence
and you'll hear it and see 1it.

MR. DOGAN: Thank you, Your Honor. And I just
want to preserve the Brady because I do believe the audio
recording does go to the basis of this opinion.

THE COURT: The Brady 1issue?

MR. DOGAN: Well, if it's discovery, and
certainly this is discovery because it's an audio
recbrding of é -- |

- MR. CHESNOFF: It's npt Brady.

THE COURT: [t's not Brady.

MR. DOGAN: Your Honor --

THE COURT: He's right. It's not Brady.

MR. DOGAN: It's not Brady.

THE COURT: It's not exculpatory, right?

MR. DOGAN: It could be. |

THE COURT: It could be.

MR. DOGAN: Yeah. We don't know.
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THE COURT: And if it is, you'll tell me.

MR. DOGAN: Yeah. Right. So it is Brady.

THE COURT: Oh, my goodness. I'm glad we're all
having fun now before we get to the trial so that all this
Wwill be resolved before the trial starts.

So with that, do you.still have any other
questions? Do you wWant to do some cross-examination?

| Are ydu through, Mf. Hall? Were you through with
direct?

MR. HALL: Yes. As a matter of fact --

THE COURT: I thought you were.

MR. HALL: -- I did direct. And then
Mr. Villagrana's attorney did cross, and then Mr. Biray
was doiﬁg'—— Biray Dogan was doing his cross. That's
where we left off.

THE COURf; So do you have any more?

MR. DOGAN: Well, I do..

THE COURT: So you ought to just get whatever you

need to get done, then we'll get this opened.

' You may ultimately tell me affer you get this
that you don't want to cross-examine him anymore. But fou
may tell me you need to, and I will grant you leave to do
that based on the newly djscovered evidence. But we stle

have to get done what you can get done now.
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MR. DOGAN: Thank you, Your Hoenor. Your Honor, I
never asked this: Can I remain seated while I do my
cross-examination?

THE COURT: Yes, you may.

MR. DOGAN: Thank you.

BY MR. DOGAN:

Q Who 1s the detective who had the audio device on
him when interviewing Figueroa?

A If would be Detective Dave Zavos with the Yavapai
County Sheriffi's office.

Q And this Wwas in relation to the Toth shooting
correct? |

2 The Chino Valley shooting, yes.

Q Okay. And you spoke to Mr. Figueroa about that
shooting, correct?

A Yes.

0 - And that's the case that went to trial that was
ultimately d15m1sséd?

A Yes.

Q So Mr. Figueroa was a cooperatjng Witness in that
case, correct?

.A He was a witness.

Q But he cooperated with you guys, right?

A Somewhat, yes.
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him.

Q

A

He spoke to you guys, right?
Yes.

And who is Pizel?

William Pizel?

Yes.

He's known as Tophat.

And who 1s he?

He's an 1nternat10na1 Noemad with the Vagos.
And you spoke to him?

Yes.

On how many occésions?

Probably with him, gosh, around ten, over the

Is he still currently in the club?
To my understanding he is, yes..

And did you guys just chitchat?

‘No. Officer Zavos had an audio recording with

You personally had that audio recording, correct?

All of these audio recordings that I referred to

are in the possession of Dave Zavos. He was the one who

recorded them.

Q

correct?

So -- dkay. Pizel, you have an audio recording,
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A Yes.
Q Deets? I might be seeing saying that wrong.
A You know, I don't have the list in front of me
because that was what Dave Zavos, Detective Zavos did.-
I believe there was an interview with Dieks, but

I'm not positive, that was recorded.

Q Who would have that information?
A Again, all of these would be Detective Zavos.
Q Okay.

MR. DOGAN: Court's 1indulgence.

THE COURT: Yes.

MR . DOGAN: Your Honor, I'd also request that we
receive Mr. Pizel's audio recording as well because it
does form the basis of his opinion in th1§ matter.

THE COURT: Does it?

THE WITNESS: Your Honor, how about I just get
all of the audio recordings from that-particular case if
Dave Zavos will release them and provide fhem?

THE_COURT: Okay. So these are all cut of the
same case. |

THE WITNESS: They are all out of the same case.

THE COURT: And they‘re mostly Vagos member
1htervieﬁs? | |

THE WITNESS: Yes.

Cé}ptibns Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. ~ 775-746-3534
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THE COURT: And are you basing your opinion as an
expert based on some, at least in part --
THE WITNESS: On some of those interviews, yes.

THE COURT: Okay. And is William Pizel one of

them?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. Then yes, you can get all
those recordings and provide them to the State who will
disseminate them.

THE WITNESS: Okay. What I will try to_do on

those -- because the problem that we have and.the reason

it's in the format that it is, is the size 1n the WAV

format, which is common to almost all computers, it's too
large.
I know Dave has had problems putting them on

disks because of the size of some of them, so we may have

to actually put them on a large thumb drive and dﬁstribute

them that way, if that's_acceptabie.

THE COURT: I'm sure that w111 be fine.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

MR. DOGAN: 'Yqur Honor, I'm just going to -- I
want fto reservé my cross—examihation of this wifness

regarding those individuals who have an audio recording,

~but I can caontinue with other gquestions that I would like
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te ask him.
THE COURT: Okay. That's fine.
BY MR. DOGAN:

Q Sir, you testified that you have taught courses
about motorcycle clubs at conferences?

A Yes.

0 And how many of these have you taught?

A Gosh. There were years where I was doing two a
month. At one point I was actually tracking, and I want
to say that I was over 20,000 people that I had taught the
motorcycle courses to, which would include basic academy
classes up to advanced.

Q Were you paid?

A By the State, yes.

Q And tﬁose attendaﬁts were law enforcement
officers?

A Mostly, yes.

Q Were there any college students?
A Yes.
Q How many college students?

A Average class would probably be about 20.

Q Criminal justice?
A Yes.
0 Have you spoken to other experts in the field of
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club culture?

A Yes.

Q Who have you spoken to?

A Chuck Schoville, Shawn Wood, Steve Trethewy. Jay
Dobbyns. Billy Long. Trying to think if there's any
others, but I mean, I probably -- I don't know the names
of them, but they would be people that I've talked to at
the conferences. .

Jorge Gil-Blanco; I know hé's here.

0 Were these individuals the ones who taught the
conference? |

A Yeah. They've taught at the conference or at
conferences. |

Q And did you --

A Eric Bennett is another one. He's taught at a
conference that I attended.

Q And you speaking to these experts forms the basis
or helps with your opinion in court teday, right?

A Yes. |

0 And did you ever independently confirm any of
that person's sources of information?

-\ As in start researching their background?

Q Qr whaf.they told you about the.Vagos.

A They've shown me -- I mean, we start at basics.
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This 1is what a patch.is. This is why they wear it. This
is what their notes are. This is what they're for. |

Good example: They.tell me that they have west
coast ofticer meetings. Then I received west coast
officer meet%ng notes, so that has corroborated their
information that they shared with me.

They've told me that they hold west coast officer
meetings mdnthly. I see a note that they have a monthly
list of where their west coast officer meetings are. That
has corroborated their stories and they are lessons to me
so that I understand whaf.they have told me is factual.

O Wheh you say west coast officer meetings, who are
you talking about?

A The Hell's Angels.

Q How about meetings of the Vagos? -

A Yeé.

0 And you've reviewed notes of theée meetings?
A Yes.

Q Do.you have fhose in your possessian?

A No. |

Q And where did you review these notes?

y:y They were ohtained dﬁr1ng the search warrant,

again, with the Chino Valley shocoting.

9] That's Deets?
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B Yes.

0 Okay.

.y And let me back up on that, toco, and say that I
den't know exactly where those were found. I wasn't the
one that said, hey, that's what we need.

When everybody sat doWn-and looked over the
evidence, I saw what it was, I looked through it, but I

didn't pay attention as to where it was collected or who

obhtained it.

Q You're talking about the search warrant, right?
A Yeah, but there were multiple search warrants
done. There were search warrants done on the house.

There were search warrants done on vehicles. There were

two houses involved. Multiple bikes. Multiple locations.

I wasn't at every location, but we all got

together and locked over evidence. | |

0O Okay. So you independently confirmed west coast
meetings of the Hell's Angels, correct?

A Yes.

.Q By reading notes that you've obtained.through

search warrants?

A Yes.

Q And what else have you independently confirmed

other than west coast meetings?
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A Several years back, they had a west coast officer
meeting in Phoenix that I was there doing surveillance on.

Q The experts who you mentioned, Jorge Gil-Blanco,
Eric Bennett, all of these individuals, 1in one shape or
form, have taught your you experience, right?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And everything that they taught you, we
made it clear that you independently confirmed west coast
officer meetings of the Hell's Angels by reading notes-
taken at the meetings, right?

A Yes.

Q Have you now independently confirmed anything
else that these expefts_told you?

A They explained what a patch is. We agree what a
patch is. We agree what a gang member is. I don't know
exactly -- that's kind of a broad spectrum of -- what do
you want me to say that we have agreed on or has beeh
independently corroborated? IWe could go én for days with
that, T think. I don't know what you're after.

0  Wikipedia, right?

A Okay ..

Q You ha#e seen something written in theré?
A Yes.

o Do you believe it?
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A As far as the Vagos go?

Q No, no,'no. Just in life generally.
A No.
Q Do you --

MR. HALL: Your Honor, I'm going teo objectﬁ This
is -- w1kiped1a?- I'm going to object to relevance.
MR. DOGAN: It's to allow him to --
MR. HALL: Overbroad. |
MR. DOGAN: -- he doesn’'t understand really ¥— 
THE COURT: The_question was broad. The State
did not make the objection, but your question was broad
when you asked anything ever, and that's what he told you.
So the answer was responsive to your question,
and Wikipedia is not relevant .
MR. DOGAN: Thank you.
BY MR. DOGAN:
0 Do you believe everything you hear?
A No.
MR. HALL: Objection. Relevance.
THE COURT: Well, it's argumentative, if nothing
else. So I'm going to sustain the objection on_different

grounds.

‘BY MR. DOGAN:

Q What else have you independently confirmed?
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A Well --

MR. HALL: Objection. Vague.
THE COURT: Sustained.
BY MR. DOGAN:

Q As 1in regards to the'Vagos.

A Based on the totality of the circumstances, the
time that I have spent working the Vagos, the number of
the Vagos that I've talked to, the paperwork, the
documents, the photos, the criminal cases that have been

done on them across the United States, the fact that we're

here today based on something that I've seen video on, all

of that has formed my opinion.
0 That's not the question, sir.
A Then you need to be clear on your questiocon.

0 The-question is: What have you independently --

MR. CHESNOFF:; Excuse me, Your Honor. Could you

1nstruct the witness not to be telling lawyers what they
need to do? | |

MR. HALL: Your Honor, I'm going to --

THE COURT: Oh, please, stop, everyocne. You have
a specific objection, make it. .

MR. CHESNOFF: Yeah, I do.

THE COURT: You think the witness is being

unresponsive?
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MR. CHESNOFF:. Yes.

THE COURT: Thank you. And I think it's odd that
you're making the objection, but I'1ll sustain it.

MR. CHESNOFF: Thank you, Your Honor. I'm just
trying to -- |

THE COURT: I know.

.MR. CHESNOFF: -- do what you said yestefday,
Your Honor, which is to keep the tone of this at
appropriate levels.

THE COURT: So, Counsel, your question, though,
he shouldn't be questioning you back, but your question is
vague. And you can't just ask a question about what has
he corroborated ever, in his whole life, in the 16 years
or whatever he's been a cop. So you have to be a little
bit more specific about what you want.

MR. DOGAN: Court's indulgence.

(Discussion off the record between
Mr. Ffey and Mr. Dogan.)
MR. DOGAN: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MR. DOGAN:

0 You learn information at conferences, rﬁght?

A Yes. |

Q And that.forms the basis of your expert opinion,
right?
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A Yes.
O What information received at those conferences
have you independently contirmed?

MR. HALL: Objection, Your Honor. Vague. Asked

and answered.

THE COURT: The witﬁess has talked abodt many
conferences. I think he said he had taught 20,000 people.
You want him to locok at the 20,000 people he's taught and
the content of his curriculum 1in eéch of those and see if
he 1ndependent1y.corroborated it?

MR. DOGAN: Your Honor, this is pertaining to the
motorcycle clubs, particularly the Vagos and what he's
learned about the Vagos while --

THE COURT: . Why don't you ask it the other way.
Why don't you just ask him if there's anything:he hasn't
corroborated, Tf.there‘s anything he has any questions
abcout.

Your question is vague, so I'm going to sustain
the objection.

BY MR. DOGAN:

0 Is there anyone else in your organization who is -

actually designated as an expert'on this subject?
A Yes.

0. Who?
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A

Q
correct?

A

A

Q

or college anywhere, do you?

A

Q

States?

He's speculating, Your Honor.

I believe Chuck Scoville and Steve Trethewy.

You have never testified as an expert before,

Correct.

You have never infiltrated the Vagos, correct?
Correct.

You have never published any treatise, correct?
No. |

You have never published a book, have you?

No.

You have no advance degrees from any universities

No.

You den't have a degree in-sociology?
No.

No degree in psychology?

No. |

And no degree in anthropology?

No.

How many Vagos members are there in the United

I would estimate, from what I've read, 3,000 --

MR. DOGAN: Objection. Estimation. Speculation.
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THE COURT:

You're just asking his opinion.

wrong, he's wWrong.
MR. DOGAN:
THE COURT:
MR. DOGAN:
BY MR. DOGAN:

0 Go ahead.

A Approximately 3,000.

O So that's in the United States?

A Worldwide.

0 Worldwide.

I don't think that's speculation.
He's an expert. If it's
Your Honor, withdraw the cobjection.

Okay.

Thank you, Your Honor.

How many in the United States?

know exact numbers.

A I would not

0 How many in Arizona?

A In Arizona, currently? Probably less than ten.

Q@ In California? |

A2 ~I'm not familiar completely with Californ%a,
their numbers. |

Q  That makes up the Tri—StatQ

A | No. Tri-State is no ionger

0 Okay. Who is currently the
the Vages?

A Tata.

Q@  Who is the vice president?

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc.
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Q

A

I don't know.

Who is the treasurer?

I don't know.

Who is the sergeant-at-arms?

Dragon, I believe.

Do you know his name?

Not without looking at the chart, no.
Can you name a president of any chapter?

Currently, Tata. At the time, we had Kickstand.

And we also had Nick Prano, who is the Havasu chapter.

And that encompassed all of our Arizona people.

Q

The one in Arizona, what's his name?
Nick Prano.

And you said Tata is the national president,

Yes.

And who elée did you name?
Kickstand.

And where is he?

He was the Tri-5tate president.

And he's no longer a member?

No.

Is he in had standing with the club?

It's my understanding that he is.

- Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. ~ 775-746-3534
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MR. CHESNOFF: Your Honor, could ﬁe get a
spelling on the national president's name?

THE COURT: Can you give us a spelling?

THE WITNESS: You know, I'd have to 1odk at my
chart to fully remember his name.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE WITNESS: Tata. It's --

THE COURT: Like T-A or T-I?

THE WITNESS: T-A-T-A.

MR. DOGAN: Thank you, Your Honor. I'll pass the
Wwithess. |

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Hall?

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. HALL:
Q With respect to the confidential informant that

was discussed at the beginning of cress-examination --

A Okay.
Q -- by one of the defensé attorneys, did that
confidential infofmant have any -- was he a percipient

witness to the shooting, the Chino Valley shooting that
we're talking about? -
A No,

0 So in other words, he was not on scene to provide

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. ~ 775-746-3534 |
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any eyewitness testimony or 1hformat10n?

A From what I've been told from Detective Morris
who was controlling him and receiving the calls, no, he
did not witness anything that we were going to utilize him
for in trial as to the witnessing of an actual crime.

Q And you were asked whether or not the Hell's
Angels, when you've interviewed them, whether or not they
talk about crimes that have been committed or they may
have committed: is that correct?

A Yes.

@ Is that part of their custom and tradition, code
of conduct with fespect to not speaking with law
enforcement officers regarding clﬁb business or crimes
that may have beeﬁ committed or cooperating with Tlaw
enforcement?

A. Yes.

0 Was Mr. Toth a source of information regarding

the Hell's Angels?

A At the time we did the search warrant?

Q Yes.

A Yes.

Q Now, you viewed the video depicting the Vagos and

Hell's Angels at John Ascuaga's Nugget here in Sparks,

Nevada. Did you see Tophat or William Pizel depicted 1in

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc.  775-746-3534
2L |

232




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22
23

24

the video?
)Y Yes,
Q And was he with other individuals during the

course of the interaction between the Vagos and the Hell's

Angels?
A Yes.
0 You haven't interviewed him regarding anything

that happened at the Nugget, or have you?

A No, I haven't.

o} I believe you also were involved in Lazy Harry;
is that correct?

A .I wasn't_involved in it, but I did talk to the
officers that were involved in it. And I_also, after one
of the subjects pled guilty, went down to Lewis Prison and
1ntgrv1ewed him.

_Q All right. And what did that interview indicate
in terms of the rivalry, if anything, between the Hell's
Angels and the Vagos?

A Talked to Joby Walters --

MR. CHESNOFF: Your Honor, excuse me. It's
beyond the scope of anything that was discussed.

MR. DOGAN: I will join-in that objection.

THE COURT: What's Lazy Harry's? Where did they

cross on that?

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. ~ 775-746-3534
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MR. HALL: They didn't, but.this is actuallj -- 1
guess I'd have to recall him. I forgot to ask him about
Lazy Harry's. We were talking about Chino and his
expertise, so I'm actually --

THE COURT: You're reopening?

MR. HALL: I'm recpening, 1T I may.

THE COURT: Okay.” I'm going to grant the
request? You can reopen.

MR. HALL: Thank you.

FURTHER DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. HALL:

Q So you do you recall the question I asked?. Would
you give Us an overview of Lazy Harry's, please.

A Yeah. My understanding from what detectives have
told me and in reports I've read is that there were two
Vagos that were at Lazy Harry's bar in Bullhead City. One
was Mike Yeske and I believe the other one was a subject
with the last name of Delaney.

| And they were there by themselves, and there were
several Hell's Angels from the.Nomad chapter who came to
the bar along with Desert Road Riders and wentlinto the
bar, to the back patio where the twc Vagos were, aﬁd told

them that they weren't allowed to wear their Arizona

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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bottom rocker. They weren't allowed -- they couldn't wear
their cuts.

And with that, I believe one of the Vagos, which
I think is Mike Neske, threw a first punch. And then
there was a fight between the Hell's Angels and the Vagos
at the bar.

From there, after the fight was done, the Hell's
Angels left and were ultimately contacted by, I believe,
Bullhead PD and then éome of the GIITEM people. And then
they ended up leaving the scene. |

Q So this is another example of the rivalry
exist ==
- MR. CHESNOFF: Objection. Leading.

THE COURT: Sustained.

BY MR. HALL:
0 Do you know whether or not this would be another
example --

MR. CHESNOFF: Objection.

BY MR. HALL:
0 -- of the rivalry between the Hell's Angels and
the Vagos?

THE COURT: I'm going to grant the objection.
BY MR. HALL:

Q Do you have an opinion as to whether or not this

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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would be another bit of information that you utilized
in --

MR. CHESNOFF: Objection.
BY MR. HALL:

0 -- reaching your opinion regarding the rivalry

that exists between the Hells Angels and the Vagos?

THE COURT: Is your objection that he's assuming
a fact that has not been proven? |

MR. CHESNOFF: That, yes, and 1t's leading as
well, Your Honor.

MR. HALL: Could I reﬁhrase?-

THE COURT: Please.

-BY MR. HALL:

0 Do you have an opinion fegarding Wwhether or not

that information was additicnal information that you used .

to form your opinion that we've discussed regarding the
Vagos and the Hell's Angels_rivalry?

MR. DOGAN: Objection. Leading. 1It's the same
question. | |

THE COURT: Overruiedw

MR, CHESNOFF: I couldn't hear it, so I --

THE COURT: From what.I héard, I don't think it
was leading. -Hé just aSked him if he had an opinion, if

he used it. He asked the opinion twice, but I think he's

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc.  775-746-3534
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asked if he considered that information in reaching his
opinion.

I think is what your question was.

MR. HALL: That was the question.

THE COURT: You can answer that.

THE WITNESS: From talking to Joby Walters at
Lewis Prison, .reading the reports, yes.
BY MR. HALL:

Q What 1s your opinion regarding the crimes that
are commonly committed between the Hell's Angels énd the
Vagos, if any? |

A Specifically assaults?

0 Well, that's what I'm asking.

A Related to assaults, typically the assaults that
are occurring between the two clubs, based on the totality
0f the circumstances, is over the patch, the territory.

Q Would that include assaulfs with a deadly weapon
and.other crimes --

MR. CHESNOFF: <Could you --
BY MR. HALL:

Q -- that afe punishable --

MR. CHESNOFF: ~-- ask Mr. Hall to --
THE REPORTER: I'm sorry --

MR. HALL: €Can I finish my question, Counsel?

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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MR. CHESNOFF: I can't hear you, Mr. Hall.
MR . HALLf I'11l speak up.
BY MR. HALL:
o Would that include crimes, assaults with a deadly
weapon, crimes that are punishabie as felonies?

MR. DOGAN: Objection. Leading.

THE COURT: I think he's asking for clarification
from the prior answer, and I'm going toc overrule the
objection.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

MR. HALL: Thank you. I haQe no further

questions.

RECROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. CHESNOFF:
0 Sir, was anybody ever pfosecuted for the incident

you just described at the bar in Arizona?

A Yes.

0 Who?

A loby Waltérs. Steve -- Silent Steve; trying to
remember his hame. Rudolpho, Rudy, Martinez. Dan -- he's

with the Desert Road Riders.
Q I have your report. I can --

‘A Yeah. I'm just -- I'm trying to remember the

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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names on that one. Rudy Martinez. Steve -- I blank out
on his name right now. Anyway. But yeah.

And ultimately, Joby Walters pled guilty td the

_gang enhancement charges along with the assault.

0 The recorded interview that you did, was that
with Tata or with Tophat?

A Tophat, William Pizel.

Q When was the interview done with William Pizel?

A That would ke the night of the shooting, so I

believe it would be August 20th of 2010.

Q And did you participate in the interview?
A Yes.
Q And was he under arrest at the time of the

jnterview?

A No.

Q Had he agreed to cooperate with you in your
investigation? |

A He was just answering the gquestions we were
asking him. I.don‘t know -- without geing back and
actually looking, I don't know how much he agreed. We
would ask him some_questions.' I'm sure.that he wopld
answer. There were probably some about the clubs that he
didn't answer, but without actually going back and

listening to the audio, I don't want to give you an exact
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specific. I don't know.

0 But he didn't exercise his constitutional right
not to talk to you, correct?

A From my memory, no, I don't believe he did.

0 So he participated in the investigation at the

request of law enforcement, correct?

A Yes.

0 And you sat him in a room, right?

A Yes.

Q ‘With a tape recorder?

A Yes.

Q - And proceeded To ask him.questions?

A Yes.

0 In order toc gain information for‘your law

enforcement purposes, correct?

A Yes.

Q And those law enforcement purposes at the time
were the -dnvestigation of the shootings that had occurred

at the casino, correct?

A No.

Q I'm sorry. I mean at Chino valley. I'm sorry.
A Yes.

0 And did he say he was a victim?

h:y No.

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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Q Okay. D1d he describe himself as somebody who
was an attacker?

A No.

Q What did he say his role was?

A He actually wasn't in the area, I beljeve, at the
time of the shooting.

o So he just provided yeu information about what
had occurred based on what he knew, correct?

A Correct.

0 Sort of like providing you intelligence about
what had occurred.

A Correct.

Q Earlier, Mr. Hall asked you whether or not the
Hell's Angels didn't answer substantive-questions about
c¢riminal activity, and you -- in the context of whether or
not that was part of the club culture.

Do you remembher that question?

2 Yes.

Q It's also consistent with every Americah's rights
under the Fifth Amendment not to answer your questions,
right? | |

A Yes.

-Q So you don't have to be a Hell's Angel to

practice your constitutional rights, do you?

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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Not at all.
MR, CHESNOFF: Ncthing further, Your Honor.
MR. DOGAN: Court's indulgence.

THE COURT: Yes.

RECROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. DOGAN:

Q

You stated that there was a prosecution in the

Lazy Harry's bar case, right?

A

Q
who were

A
probably

Q

A

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc.

Yes.

And that there wWere one, two, three, four people

prosecuted?

Yeah. One of them I just remembered that I
didn't name earlier is Jerry Smith.

What's his name?

Jerry Smith.

So that's five now? So Joby Walters, right?
Okay .

Steve, you know don't his last name, right?
I don't recall.h1s last name right now.
Martinez?

Rudolpho Martinez, Rudy.

And Dan, you don't recall his last name, right?

Right, who is with the Desert Road Riders.

BT
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0 Okay. And.Jerry Smith, right?

A Right.
o] And what was the disposition of Steve, his case?
A I belijeve everybody except Joby was dismissed.

0 And what club did he belong to?.
A Who's "he"?
Q Joby Walters..
A He belonged to the Hell's Angels.
MR. DOGAN: Nothing further.
THE COURT: Anything further?
MR. HALL: Nothing further, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Okay. But we do have more cross once
we get the video, so -
THE WITNESS: The audio.
THE COURT: I mean the audio, yes. Thank you. I
don't know how long that will take, so we'll have To pick

a date. Do you have any big vacations planned in the next

month?

THE WITNESS: No.

THE COURT: Okay. So you might be available?

THE WITNESS: : I might be available. What I'11 do
is when I get back, I'l1l be up in Frescott. That's part
of the_problem-we'?e been dealing with is I'm in Phoenix.

The case is up in Chino. It's two hours away from where

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. - 775-746-3534
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I'm at.

So in order for me to actually physically go get
those recordings, I've got to go up there to get them and
hope that he's able to record them for me. That's why
we're trying to do it by e-mail.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE WITNESS: So what I'11 do is I'11l take a day,

I'll go up there, make sure I've got either a hard drive
or a thumb drive that we c¢an put them all over and I can
mail them up here.

THE COURT: And you're going to have to come
back, so that will be in a week or two that we'll try to
find time. | |

THE WITNESS: Okay.

THE.COURTE 50 that's why I'm asking about any
vacations. So get that done right away, and then we'll
have you back here.

THE WITNESS: All right.

THE COURT: Thank you. You may step down.
You're not excused.

THE.WITNESS: Thank you.

THE COURT: But you can leave today.

THE WITNESS: I canz? |

THE COURT: You can leave for today.

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. =~ 775-746-3534
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MR. STEGE: Next witness, Jeff Simpson, who, Your
Honor, pertains to -- I previously 1dent1f1éd, but in my
bad act motion, page Tive, top of the page, and Mr. Hall's
motion. Exhibit 12, page 31.

THE COURT: Okay.

JEFFREY SIMPSON,
called as a witness by the Stafe,
having been Tirst duly sworn, was examined

and testified as Tollows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. STEGE:

0 Please state and spell your name.

A My name is Jeffrey Simpson, S-I-M-P-S-0-N.

Q And you work for the San Jose -- I'm sorry, Santa
Cruz Police Department? |

.Y No. Santa Cruz County Sheriff's office.

0 It's been a 1dng day.

And in what capaciiy?

A I'm a deputy sheriff.

Q. And how 1bng have you been a deputy sheriff?

A Just cver nine years.

Q Back on March 17th, 2011, were ybu.assigned to

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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the -- a gang task force of any sort?

A I was assigned to the Santa Cruz County Gang Task
Force. |

o And at that point, how long had you been on the
gang task forte?

A At that poinf, I started in June of 2010. So
eight months. Seven, eight months.

Q Let's go directly to this date of March 17th,

2011. Did you respond out to a automobile or automobile

versus motorcycle accident?

A I did.

0 And what did you seé when you got there?

A A motorcycle was laying -- this is in Soquel --
on Soquel Drive in Aptos. A black Harley-Davidson was
lying on 1its lefl side facing southeast. We had
substantial.front-end damage. The right -- I'm not
familiar particularly with motorcycles, but the tool box
or compartment had broken off. It appeared, had fallen
into the street. Ahd there's a kind o¢f like a debris
trail with several bouches of tools, Ciothes, a helmet.

And a person we later identified as
Mr. Villagrana was being treated by AMR and fire people at
the'séene.

Re He was injured there at the scene?

- Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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A Correct.

Q And where -- did you begin the investigation at
that point?

A Yes. At the time I arrived, there had already
been informatibn coming over the radio that a firearm was
found at the stene,.and I began investigating the firearm.

o) | And tell us about the firearm. What kind of
firearm was 1t?

A It was a Taurus PT 101 AF semiautomatic black.

Q And what information did you develop as to where
that item was found?

A A detective from our office, Jalon Harris,
originally responded to the scene on his way home and
obtained the firearm from a bystander who was standing on
the street.

That bystander then showed him where the firearm

-had been when he picked it, up. And then a California

Highway Patrol officer named Tanguay -- that’s'
T-A-N-G-U-A-Y ~- obtained the firearm from Detective

Harris, and I got the fTirearm from him.

0 And it was subsequently booked into evidence?
A Correct.
0 What else did you notice there at the scene? Did

you have an opportunity to examine or look at the

C.aptions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3534
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motorcycle?
A I did. On the fop,'l guess the gas tank section,
there were three Hell's Angels affiliated stickers.

There was a helmet with.a Hell's Angels sticker
on the back. There was a three-piece Hell's Angel cut
lying on the street where Mr. Villagrana had been treated.
Looked like it had been cut off by the paramedics at the
scene. |

Thére was a couple red bandanas, a red and white
key chain.

Q What is going through your mind at that point
based on your training and experience in the gang unit?

A That a Hell's Angel had crashed his motofcyéle
and had a hdndgun with him when i1 happened.

| THE COURT:- I'm sorry, had what with him?

THE WITNESS: A handgun. A firearm.

BY MR. STEGE:

Q What was the condition of the fifearm in ferms of
ammunition?

A Officer Tanguay -- when I got it, the slide was
racked back. There was ho magazine in the chamber.

Officer;Tanguay told me that when He obtained the
firearm from Detective Harris, that the magazine was

1nserted but there was no round in the chamber.
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THE CLERK: Exhibits N-1 through 14 marked.
| (Exhibit No. N-1 through N-14 marked.)
BY MR. STEGE: |
Q What became of the leather vest with the Hell's
Angel patches on it?
A That was collected as evidence.
0 Did YOU subsequently authoer a search warrant for

the home or the residence of Mr. Villagrana?

A I did.
Q By the way, do you see Villagrana here in court
today? | |

A _I do.
Q Would you identﬁfy him for the record.
Mk. CHESNOFF:' We'll stipulate, Your Honor;
MR. STEGE: Thank you.
THE COURT: Record will so retlect.
BY MR. 'STEGE:
0 You autﬁored a search warrant for the residence
of Mr. Villagrana?
A I did.
Q Between fhat day of the accident where ybu were
on the scene to the time you applied for the search
warrant, what 1nvest1gatibn do you do?

-y We started a track through.ATF,-trying to find
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out who the owner of the firearm was 'cuz we ran it the
day, excuse me, while we were on scene through the
dispatcher. It came back not registered.

We then ran the firearm through our records
department, records clerk. They could not find it. It
was coming up not registered.

So my partner was going through DOJ, Jeffery
Kerns, trying to figure out whg was actually the owner of
the firearm because that's a violation of 12.025(b)(6) in
the state of California. |

) None of us here are familiar with that -- know
what that is.

A It's being in possession qf a concealed firearm
that you'fe not registefed to.

.Q Okay. Did you come to learn more about the
progeny of this firearm?

A  That was given fo us_after the search warrant'was_
finished on February 18 -- or excuse me, April 18th. My
partner got an e-mail back from Jeffrey Kerns.from DOJ,
and I think it was last sold in -- I can't be exact, but I
believe sometime in the '"90s to a subject in Missoula,
Missouri, or Montana, something like that.

| o Djd you go-out to the home believed to be the

residence of Mr. Villagrana in Gilroy, California?
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A . Yes.
'er" Ahd what d1d you see there?-

‘MR.. CHESNOFF Your Honor for the record

'ob]ect to any test1m0ny regard1ng the search : We br1efed

:that_for-Your Honor,.and that's .the sub]ect of another

THE COURT: Is that_the;motion'ra guPpTess?
\'MR_.CHESNDFF".Yegn S | '_ B
THE COURT: It hasn t been subm1tted yet to me
When was it subm1tted7 - : | " . -
| MR. SCHONFELD: 'oh;fnq;-no;_jsarrywaonrIanokh

We just received the:opposifion_toaayQ

MR, CHESNOFF: RTEht“nright"you‘re'rfght'r_we'f“

filed our motion. We ]ust rece1ved the1r 0ppos1t1on

THE”COURI;:_Ryght L don t review 1t5unt11 it's

~ submitted to“me' so T haven't seen 1t.yet -I-db kndw31t*s

there. So we'll ]ust tak

~when ‘we get to the m0t1on to suppress wWe 11 deal w1th it.

_MR. CHESNOFF Okay So all of th1s test1mony 15
subject to -- - o _- U | |
THE COURT: .Snbject'to yedr-mntibnue'

MR. CHESNOFE: Okay Thank you.

“MR. STEGE: But whjle he S'here, wéﬁr1 talk about_

it

| Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 7757463534
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THE COURT: Yes, absolutely.

BY MR. STEGE:

.Q What de you tearn there at theihpdse'ineGilroy?
_a_' We located h1s bedroom which is the-troht
1eftfhand bedroom' Numerous art1c1es of He11 S Angels -~

o - weil,hHCtually,.before We get td-the_actual_

. gettinghthe_searCHLWarrant_and'eXecuting it;, did you g0

lout'and do some surveillance, just look at the house there

in G11r0y?';

'-A I d1d not personally gA aergeantffrom_our :

sher1ff s off1ce d1d that

V':Q_ Okay To what end or: to what purpose?f.f7'7d

'A:' In Ca11forn1a to get a search warrant wehneed'

g )to have a legal descr1pt1on of the house -My sergeant,f
'Sergeant Roy Morales went_out observed the house
. 1ocated_a.veh3gte-]n ihe:drﬁveway that_wasfreg1stered_to_ E

_Hr;eVdIlaérana?_

_ In the meantTme I atso'Called.—— actually my

]partner ca11ed the G11roy PD Sergeant Dar1us who
actually was on the -~ With us during_the-executidn of,the'

"~ search warrant"he also.tdld us, yes; that's_where

Mr. V111agrana 11ves from his knowledge
hQ " From’ that point, you secured a -- or went.--

drafted a searth-warrant and'got'the signature of a -- of"

Capt1ons Unhrmted of Nevada, Tnc. 775-74_6-3534 :
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what judge?

A Judge Almquist.

- Q And the search was granted?
IA Yes.
o And‘so with that search, how_soon after it's

granted do you execute it at the honme 'in Gilroy?

A" We served it five. days aTter it-was'signed

Q. And tell us about what s found dur1ng the-

execut1on of th1s search warrant as 1t relates to ~- let's7
talk in. a couple of d1fferent types of areas. . Let's talk

about. Hell S. Angels parapherna11a

.A . Okay ' Under Hell -5 Angels parapherna11a 'the_

'f1rst th1ng you not1ce when you walk 1n the bedroom is- he
_had a.large\framed.F11thy Few banner, another 1arge;banner :
‘that was red with the death head in the middle, the Hell's

-Angetsfdeath'head.'

'THé had another.ktnd of a framed --'I don't want

to say a plaque but about yay b1g (1nd1cat1ng) that had a

bunch. of cards that related.to the Hell S Angels

. He had a framed 2010 Monterey Christmas toy run

that was.actually signed by people I be11eve are Hell' s

Angels members because after -- they d s1gned like
Chris,'HAMC. next to their name, so_I-ftgured_theyiwere

Hell's Angel.membersl

Captlons Unhmlted of Nevada Inc. 775-746-3534
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His tIoset was'apprbximately 40 or éo shirts}.

sweatshirts related-to;Hﬁll'S'Angels. Ne.endéd-up

'collecting 20 of them. Shirts that.éommbnly feature death

~head or Hell's Angels. Certain runs, 1ike the Hampshire

road'run."SQuth run.

Shirts that said Santa Cruz, San Jose, San--- or

Frisco.

e found'néxf_to the dresser, there's like a

 d15p1ay.¢aSe-that had-15'ring5 thatlwere related to'Hell's'

Angels with death heads on then. ‘We seized I think nine
of those. | H -

In one of fhe'd}éﬁers, theré-waé a:bUHch'ﬁf like
manfla'envelbpes: kind of 11ké'ybur-standard—size hanila

envelopes that had -- two of thém were full of stickers,

' all_Hellfs Angels stickers'with; ybu know, “Suﬁpqrt YOur

local Hell's Aﬁgels;" dééth heads on them. |
| Another-one_had:Hell's Angels pétcﬁes. ~Some had
some bandanas. we would found tw0 —— I don't know what to
call it -- a beanie or toboggan you'put over:your head |
that has a Hell's Angels on ﬁt. A hat with Hell's Angels
on 1it. | o |
A.motorcycle_in the garage that héd the death

head. Actually it was kind of a modified death head. It

-waén't like your standard death head you;d see on the back

Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775-746-3 534
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~of their cuts. It-had like a customized image of one.

o And that was separafe from the motorcycle at the

scene?

A Correct. It was a different'motbrcycle. And

that actually had = I'm sbrry. We found like =~ Ifm'not?

Tike I said, familiar -- I -think they were either like
crank case covers or 11ke'hard"—— and there were Hell's

~Angels indicia on that.

I'm sure T left 2 few things out. A lot of
stuff. . o B

Rosters. Cofporate agreements thaf stafed thjngs
1jkeﬁ.you know, fhe'Hell'é Angels owns the right'tohfhe
namé.and.the 1ogo. _Ydu @an't reproducé, you.know, withoht'
pérmissjon ana the c1ub owns the name, stuff like that.

Rosters with all types of phone numbérs and

‘Chapters..

That's all I can remember right now.

0 Yeah, that's pretty good. What about any

correspondence in the room?

A Yééhl The corresponden;é; being like personal
_indicia?' |

o  Right.

A We found numerous items of personal 1ndjc1af
Kaiser bills. His wallet with his driver's license was in

- Captions Unlimited of Nevadz_i, Inc. 7'75-746-35_'34. |
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the bedrpom. I remember there was a medication bottle. I

don't remember the pFeSCription, but it has his name in
there. 'There 1s:acfua11y -- I have a photograph of 1f 
I'm sure it's in there, but thé whole box is just full of
bills and Wwhatnot in the room..

Q Indicating that the room is Villagrana's room?

A  (orrect. And while he was therg,-Mh. Villagrana |

did tell me that was his bedroom.

Q Okay. And he Wwas there at the house whén ydd got

there?
A Yes. He actually answered the door.
0 Now. let'slfalk about other evidéncé. One clause

in the'séarch warrant allbwed for the searching for

computer-related things. Did you end up recovering some

CDs?

A We.did._ In .the top'drawEr.of the dresser, there
was -- where the manila envelopes were 1oéated,_there Was
a Crown Royal bag, the purple felt Crown Royal bag.

Inside there Were -- we counted 26 compact disks. We

"seized them at the time.

My partner, I believe the next day, on the 18th

Cor maybe Latef_that day'-—'I'donlf.recall -~ actually

started playing'thém in his computeér, trying to see what
they were. |
- Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. -~ 775-746-3534
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Q "And the eeareh warrant allpwed for this?

A Absolutely;_

Q wpat Was discovered on those -- some of fhose
CDs? N

A I want to say anly a handful, maybe_five, six to
fep_aetually woulﬂ.play jn the computer, but we Sterted
finding grend jury testimony, transcripts from the
Laughlin shooting. Video surveiilanCe, like the camera
footage frpm.the Laughlin shooting with_-e_looked like
suspects from the ATF 1nvest1gat10n; |

Looked like a Las Vegae After-ﬁctien Reports.

ATF reports documenting CI activities, what CIs were-doing

‘at this certain time, actually reportihg what was

.occurring.

Either a undertover'wire or a wiretap -~ what
appeared to_me”to be an undercoper wire or a\wiretép
transcrﬁpt. .And Phetpgraphsp looked Like euryeillancep
photographs | | |

Expert test -- or exCuse me. ‘'Like experts, when

'they have their CV what . they 11 te5t1fy to, things 11ke '
that. The actual CVS for some of the experts ‘and just 3

"lot of notes from ATF

g Do you remember —¥ them5ubjettvoffthe'CDs_you"

were jUst.ta1k1ng about, de yolu remember.fhe SUbject apd

Captlons Unlmnted of Nevada Inc. _‘775.-746_-3'53-'4 .'
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the expertise of those --
A Yeah. You know, I can't recall with them not
being in front of me, the actual names of the actual

people that were be1ng called, but mp Was what they.were

supposedly going to_test1fy to, that the Hell's Angels

. were a worldwide organization and how the members -- and

how they're structured.

And each one of them listed like -- you know, the |

guy qés an officer, had been an officer for 20 years. He

had this kind of expertise in motorcycles, kind of like

“you seé on a typicai ¢V for an officer.

._Q - Now, you were also lookipg for evidence related
to firearms. ©Did you find any firearms-related evidence?

A . 0Oh, we found a holster.

Q Now, the firearm that was found on the scene, did

youieventually secure a DNA from-Villagrana in the_tourée_'

of the case and compare it or have it fdkensically_‘

compared to anything that might be on the gun?-

A Yes.
o Whét was the result of that?

A It was -- 1 would --I'm hot-a scientist --.

| overwhelmingly that Mr. Villagrana's DNA was of the gun.

Q __'And eventually,“in fact, there was a plea entered

in that case by Mr. Villagrana; is that right? .

Captlons Unhmlted of Nevada, Inc. '77_-5_-746-3 534
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A The case is closed. and he was convicted.

© Right. And you

printed off some of

the documents from that casé which are

attached to the opposition that was menticned by Mr. --

in fact provided a copy of =-- you

I

don't know if Mr. Schonfeld or Chesnoff offered this now.

A Yes.

Q You provided those, right?

A I gave those to you,-yes;

.Q  And where did you get the --'these'arevcourt

m1nutes or print- offs from a court webs1te

A Those are from a program called_Open Acceéss,

pdll up court cases,

-whﬁth just basically tracks court cases in Santa Cruz.

_0fficers have a secure password. You can go in, you can

print minutes and stuff like that.

So I personally printed those.

THE. COURT:
HR. STEGE:
THE COURT:
'MR. ‘STEGE:
MR HALL:
MR. STEGE:
wMR.-HALLth

‘Where do those exist?

Where dﬁ they éxist?

Righf? ‘Are they_an exhibit?
-N?.- | :
Yes.

I'm sorry.

They're an exhibit attactied to his

opp051t10n ‘to the1r m0t1on to. suppress

MR. STEGE:

Captlons Unllmlted of Nevada Inc
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THE COURT:' Okay. Thank you.
MR. STEGE: Because of the --

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. STEGE: If those are an exhibit, I'm going fo

not have them —F_hot marked and admitted, if that's okay
with the defense and the Court.
| ‘ "MR. HALL: Just go ahead and have them marked.
THE COURT: I.think you better.\becaﬁse if yoﬁ
want me td.look at it today, I don't have it,. |
MR. HALL: We're going to go ahead and have it
marked,_YdUr Hohorr Thank youu'.'
.MRF S%EGEA In the méahtimg, could I apéroach-the

Wwitness with some other exhibits?

'MR.'CHESNOFF:' Juét for'thé record, Your Honor, T

Was ablé.to see those pictures, but I'm not sure that .we

actually had those pictutes, but we may. They weren't

jattathed.  They3ke_different than the exhibits that --

" MR. STEGE: I'm not sure all these were attached,

'_but I-khow they-were a part of discovery.

 THE COURT: So they weren't attached to the.
motion as ordefed,,but théy'ﬁéve'beeh disclosed.
MR. STEGE: They've been disclosed, and it's --

THE COURT: Didn't we have a conversation about

nthat:rightiéfter.luhch?

.Capt_ions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 775'-746—3534_; :
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MR. STEGE:

THE COURT:

Yes, Judge.

Okay.

MR. CHESNOFF: I.would move to --

THE COURT: Which ones did you not have?

MR. CHESNOFF: I can compare them.

'(Discussions off .the record.)

MR. CHESNOFF: Your Honor, we've identified the

ones that we had attached, and we've identified the ones

“We doh't have.

THE COURT:

MR. STEGE:

| 2, 3, 6, and 7.

THE COURT:

"MR. STEGE:

THE COURT:

Mr . Stege.

MR. STEGE:

Okay;

Well, if I'm not incorrécf; it's N-1,

L

N-1, 2. 3, 6, and 77

" Yeah, based on our ---

The reporter-can't hear you,

Based on the quick.and dirty

comparison that we just did.

MR. CHESNOFF: I donft Know What fhat méans, but

I know that I identified the one -- I try never to do

_anything_quickly and cefta1n1y not dirty, Your Honor.

T 1dent1fied four photos that we did haVe,'apd

the balance we've never had. And I move that they not be

admitted based on the violation of the order.

_'Captions Uunlimited of Nev:_ida,_ Inc. 775.-746-35_3‘4 |
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THE COURT: May I see them, ﬁleése.

MR. STEGE: 1I'11l object to the characterization
that they nevef had them, that they said they'nevér had_
them. |

THE COURT: And it's your representétion,

‘Mr. Stege, that these photographs were prov1ded during

~discovery, but you failed to attach theém to the motion.

MR. STEGE: Yes.
THE COURT: Right? You're agreeing to that?
MR. CHESNOFF: Yes.

THE COURT: I'm excluding them. I.can't go ahy

further.

;'Thislaftefnoonk right after lunch, I gaﬁe you

S every oppoftunity. Correct yoUr.record. _Supplemént it.

Givé Them everything. I'm tired of it.

Now. we are at a quarter to 5:00 and I'm getting

six new photographs. .Gentlemeh,'get.yOUr'caSé organizédﬁ

Those are_excluded.- The ones you did not provide |

previously.

MR. STEGE: 'Wefll-intrbduce the other group that

they just --
- THE COURT: Right. Those are fine.
MR. STEGE: Are they admitted?

"THE COURT: Any objection to the admission?

~ Captions Unli;;'nited of Nevada, Inc. o 775-746-3534
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MR. CHESNOFF:. Other'thén for the constitutional
reasons, the result of. the séarcH, Your Honor. |
THE COURT: Right.
(Exhibit Nos. N-1, N-2, N-3, N-6,
and N;7 admitted.)
HR.'HALL: May I publish._ these?
THE COURT: I'm sorry?

MR. STEGE: May I publish these'exh1b1ts, Your

- Honor?

THE COURT: Yes, you may.

BY MR. STEGE:

0 Whath_in N;l? Can you sée thaﬁ?
A~ Oh, yeah. Not good biut --

THE COURT: - YQu_can get.dOWn if you would like,
if it_woqla'be easier,. i | |
BY MR. STEGE: .

| Q' Have.you join he down here-
A  - “Okay. |

THE COURT: VYes. And set it up so I can see it.

- BY MR. STEGE:

g Describe what we're seeing,here and .- -

- A_  This is a picture 'of the motorcycle that was down

_bh'Soquel Avenue, or excuse me, Soquel Drive in Aptos.

Kind of missed it, but the front is wrecked and these

Cap_tions Unl_imitéd of Nevada, Inc. ._ '7‘75-_746-3 534
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are -- you can see -- |
THE REPORTER: I'm sorry, I can't.hear you.
THE WITNESS: I'm sorry.
(Discussion off the record.)

THE WITNESS: The front is wrecked. Itfs lying
down here on Soquel Drive. You can see thrée stickers
right hgre. I don't know what part of the bike. Like I
said, I'm not very familiar with mbtorcycles, but the top
of fhe hike. You can cleafly'seé 3 death head here.
There's a death hééd Heré. I believe it says Hell's
Angels'San Jose on that sticker. There's.red theréf

The-not'piCthe is not clear, but it's -- at

least in this cne, but_that is a Hell's Angels sticker,

BY MR.. STEGE:

! Do you want to look at the_actuai éxhibit?-llt'S_

3 little out of focus for sohe-reason -

MR. HALL: Excuse me, Your Honor. Before we
proceed, here's a copy of all the photographs-wh1ch_you‘ve

aiready admitted as Exhibit D that contains all the

~photographs that he's talking about. ©So that was admitted:

at the last hearing,.
MR. CHESNOFF: Those were admitted. At the time
you'were~aiiow1ng them not -- you_were_ailowing them to

violate the order because -- this was -- those are with
Captions Unlimited of Nevada, Inc. 7757463534
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Gil-Blanco, ?our Honor. I mean --

" MR. HALL: Well, how many;times do we.have to
give them the photographs -- I'm sorry, Your Honor, I
apologize. i'm just trying to 1nd1cate.that we have
pfovided discbvery. They've had an oppoffunity to review
them. They've been. in eviqénce: They have all the
photps.

THE COURT: Okay. The clerk doeSn‘t-show5_

Exhibit D admitted.

"THE CLERK: It's marked.
THE COURT: It:was marked at the last --~

MR. HALL: It was marked. ‘I move for its

admission, Your Honor.

THE.COURTJ It was marked at Mr.:Gil-Blénco, and
it wasn't admitted.

“MR. HALL:  Well, I mOve_for admission of all of

‘the evidence that we have marked today.
THE COURT: - Okay. Wait a minute. You can't stop

the witness in the middle of his testimony, stand up,

throw an exhibit at me, and say, Judge, yod admitted this

before, how many timeé do we have to give him this

_1nformatibn? ‘Why do we have to do that?

Mr . Hall,'you can't do that. You have got a -

witness here testifying. It's ten mfnutes to 5:00. - Let

Ve
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the witness finish.

MS. CHESNOFF: And, Your Honor, it's not his
witness.

THE COURT: Right, I égree.

MR.'STEGE: May I see that exhibit that we were
just taiking.about? N |

THE COURT: 'Okay. No, I'm sorry. You know --

‘wWe're in recess.

(Proceedings concluded at 4:50 p.m.)
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STATE COF NEVADA )
)

.COUNTY OF WASHOE )

I, STEPHANI L. LODER, Certified Shorthand

Reporter of the Secend Judicial District Court of the

State of Nevéda, in and for the County of Washoe, do

Hereby-cértify:_ ‘ _ 1 L
That I was present in Depariment No. 4 of the

above-entitled Court and took stenotype ndtes of the

'procéedings entitled herein, -and thereafter transcribed

the same -into typewriting'as.herein_appears;

That the foregoihg transcript is a full. trﬁé
and correct transcription of my'stgnotyhe notes of said
proceéedings. |

DATED: At Reno; Nevada,'this 24th day of

~January, 2013.

/s/ Stephani L. loder
STEPHANI L. LODER, CCR No. 862
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RENO, NEVADA, MONDAY, JANUARY 14, 2013, 10:36 A.M.

—o0o—

THE COURT: This is the time set for continued

hearings.

Mr. Hall~?

MR. HALL: Thank you, Your Honor. We are going to
call -- re-call, Jeff Colbert.

THE COURT: Sir, you're still under oath. Go ahead
and retake the stand.

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am.

MR. SCHONFELD: Your Honor, for the record the
exclusionary rule i1s still invoked? The rule of exclusicn is
still invoked.

THE COURT: Yes, it is. Rule of exclusion is still
invoked. Counsel for all parties be sure to notify your

witnesses of the ramifications of the rule. The Court will

post it, I believe.

/77
/71
/11
/77
/77
/17
.
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JEFFREY COLBERT,
having been previously duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. HALL:

Q All right. Perhaps I should start there. Detective

Colbert, are you familiar with the rule of exclusion?

A Yes.

Q So, do you understand that you cannot discuss your
testimony with any other witness or any other person that may
be a witness in this case?

A Yes.

Q 8ir, to get started, I would like to discuss your
curriculum vitae. You indicated earlier you're currently

employed with the Kern County Sheriff's Office; is that

correct?
A Yes, sir.
Q All right. Obvicusly this case deals with the Vagos

outlaw motorcycle gang and the Hells Angels outlaw motorcycle

gangs.

Before we get 1nto your testimony into your

~investigation of Michael Pena and the stabbing of Roger

Vialano, I would like to go through your formal training and

courses that you had with respect to being an expert witness of
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gangs and other expertise that you've gathered during the
course of your tenure as a police officer.

So if we can just walk through that. T notice that on
September 15th of 2005, there was a Kern County Fair update on

gangs; is that correct?

A Yes.
Q And what types of gangs were discussed at that time?
iy 211 the gangs we run across in Kern County and any

gangs in particular, outlaw motorcycle gangs being one of them,
turf gangs, tagger gangs, Bloods and Cripps.
-Q  Is your microphone on?
THE COURTE It doesn't look like it.
BY MR. HALL:
9] 2nd you indicate that you attended a national gang

conference, National Gang Violence Conference 2007; is that

correct?
A Yes.
0 You had a Gang Criminal Intelligence and Terrorist

Conference in Aﬁgust of 20077
yiy Yes.

0 Now, a Death Investigation Conference in November of

12007, did that have anything to do with the outlaw motorcycle

gangs?
‘MR, DOGAN: Objection, léading.

THE COURT: Overruled.
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THE WITNESS: I don't believe so. Tt was a general
homicide-type investigation course.
BY MR. HALL:

Q All right. Going forward then to GET training,
Gangs/GET Training in January of 2008. What type of training
was that?

A Again, gang updates, gang endorsement team which I was
a member of. I believe I taught that.class as far as.being in
a gang suppression unit to our.part—time gang guys.

Q A1l right. And then later that year, in July, the
National Gang Violence Conference, can you tell us a littlie bit
about that?

A What dates were tThey?

Q ‘That was the Natiocnal Gang. Violence Cﬁnference Was
July 2%th of 2008.

A Yes, Sir. It had been the yearly California Gang
Investigators Asscciation Conference. TIt's a week-long

conference, and all aspects of gangs are covered, different

‘classes, different instructors.

Q All right. And are ocutlaw motorcycle gangs discussed

~during that conference?

A Yes.
Q Then moving forward to gang investigation, I think
that's an advanced course in February of 20107

A  Yes.
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Q Were outlaw motorcycle gangs addressed at that
conference?
A Yes. That was Advanced Gang Investigators School put

on by San Diego Regional Investigative Training Fécility.
cutlaw meotorcycle gangs was prqbably, I'd =ay, 20 percent of
it, the rest of it was search warrants and gang investigations,
higher-end gang investigations.

Q And subsegquent to that in March of 2010, there was a
gang training seminar. Can .you tell us us about that?

A | I went to a couple offeréd by the California
Department of Justice. I believe thoée were it. There were
several that were, say, two-day-long, three-day-long
conferences that were offered by different organizations, one
being the California Department of Justice, and all gang
aspects were covered, outlaw motorcycle gangs, usually in each
one.

0] All right. And the next course was.Recovering
Skinhead and Extremist Tattoos. What groups or gangs did that .
conference discuss?

A It was mdstly white supremacist gangs, Skinheads,
Nazi-type gangs. |

Q Theén subsequent to that in August of 2010, the Outlaw
Motorcycle Gang Update} who presided or ﬁho taught that course;
do you know?

A I don't recall. Again, I think it was the California
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Department of Justice.
Q There was one additional one, it was put on by ATF.
Q Now, during those types of courses, would you discuss

the Hells Angels and/or Vagos as well as other motorcycle

gangs?
A Yes.

Q And was one of the topics that would be discussed be a
specific rivalry as to the gangs? |
MR . SCHONFELD: Your Honor, I'm going to ckject at
this point. It's leading. h
THE COURT: Overruled.
THE WITNESS: Yes.
BY MR. HALL:

Q Then in 2011, you have psychological aspects of gangs
and gang membership. Did that have anything to do with the
Vagos.or the Hells Angels or all the gangs in general?

A~ Most trainings Will cover each gang.or tfpes of gangs,
your Cripps or Blood gangs, your turfhgangs; and our outlaw
moforcycle gangs. So I believe 50.

Q No&, with respect to your training and experience, you
are are a former field training officer; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q Tactics instructor, and in 2004, you were reéogniZed
as a gang expert? |

A I believe that was the first time that I testified as

0395

——— e =




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

12

20

21

22

23

24

25

10 -

an expert, yes.

Q ; And I think we discussed that briefly during your
prior testimony. Did that have to do with the outlaw
motorcycle gaﬁgs or wWas that with different gangs?

A My first time was a Hispanic turf gang in a small
town. I then ventured out and testified on all different type
of gangs, one of which being outlaw motorcycle gangs.

| Q You indicated you were a member of the gang
suppressioﬁ section; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q Can you tell us us about your involvement in the gang
suppression section as far as what they do?

A We are a full-time gang unit, and we gather

intelligence, any type of gang suppression, conduct search

warrants, surveillance, undercove; operations, anything that's
required as far as gang recognition, suppressiocon, and one of
thch would be our yearly fair we have which is 14 days long.
Every year we are at the fair every sipgleﬂday, identifying and
basically keeping an eye on the gang members to reduce the gang
violence between rivalries in a small area.

Q .You‘vé been with the sheriff's office in Kefn County

your entire career?

A . Yes.
Q And what is the population of Kern County?
A I don't even know.
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0 Do you know what the population of Bakersfield is?
A I don't know. 1It's a lot.

QI Is it bigger than Reno?

A Yes.

Q Probably —-- okay.

Do you have outlaw motorcycle gangs, a presence in the
Kern County area?

A Yes.

Q All right. Can you tell us about your perscnal
experience with ouflaw motorcycle gangs in your area during the
course of your career as a police officer?

A My particular experience has been basicaliy with the

outlaw motorcycle gangs, the Hells Angels, the Vagos, and the

Mongols. Most of which my contacts and my working in the gang

unit was with the Hells Angels just because we had a bigger
showing of Hells Angels. Our Mongoels stay pretty quiet. They
don't move a whole lof, and there's not very many of them.

The Hells Angels, when I started the gang unit, did

‘not have an official chapter in Bakersfield, and to my

knowledge still don'ft. Received information that Just didn't
have the numbers, but, however, a few of thém_started-wearing
the Bakersfigld tab.

My dealings with Vagos-were_more towards late 2008

early 2010, the Vagos baéically would come into town

sporadically and you would see them, every once in a while, but

1005




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

12 -
they didn't have a real presence until that time, and they just
started showing up places in numbers. This obviously was a
conflict. We had several potential fights at bars between not
only our Hells Angels support clubs, which would be the
Bakersfield Bastards, the Red and White club between them and
the Vagos, but other Hells.—— or Red and White supporters with
the particular Vagos who basically showed up overnight.

We regularly conduct surveillance on these subjects
for -- at runs, ét bike shows, at preplanned events, things
like that.

- Q SO; you were familiar with some of the characteristics
of the Vagos and the Hells Angels?
A Yes.
Q And what would some of those characteristics that
you're familiar with be?
.A As far as by characteristices —--
Q Well, do they have common practices both the Vagos and
Hells Angels would follow in terms.of the way they dress, the
way they act, the things théy do?

A fes._ My experience-with the Hells Angels would be

they wear red and white. Obviously. When they would be in

their cuts or their patches, they would usually be at minimum

two or three guys. You Would rarely see them alone flying

their cuts.

Vagos, same thing. You would rarely see the Vagos

P
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alone.  They would have at least two, say a full-patch and a
prospect or a full—patch and a hang-around, things like that.

The Vagos would wear the green color. You would also
see more of the Vagos and once they would patch up, I notice
fhey would almost immediately start getting their tattoos
either shaded in green or getting green addéd to their tattoos.
Actually spoke to a Vagos member who's no longer a mémber about
that.

Have like‘a —-— gomewhat, at least in town, a pack
mentality. There would also be several. If you saw one, you
saw several if'they were in their cuts. They would do things
together, like on runs together, parties together, go to
restaurants and bars together, bike nights together. The bike
show they would go together, have a booth, support booth
selling merchandise.

0 Is there an initiation process to get into the cluﬁ

that is similar to both clubs?

A Yeah.
Q Or characteristic of both clubs?
A Yes. Based on my training and experience and several

hours cof training I've attended regarding outlaw motorcycle
gangs, it would be similar as far as, you know, you're a
hang-arocund, you're recognized, you're later ésked to ke a
prospect, ybu start prospecting for -- depending bn what club,

either predetermined state of time or until your prospect is
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done by your charter and then you patch up.

0 Is the hierarchy of the c¢lub similar to the -- with
respect to the Hells Angels and the Vagos?

A Yes. You have your officers,; you have vyour
hang-arounds, your proépects. Very organized as far as -- at
least my training and experience, both clubs are very organized
as far as their sgstructure, their chain of command, their
writtén set of rules.

o Are you familiar with the types of crimes that either

one of those clubs commit?

A Yes.
Q And what types of crimes would they commit?
A Anywhere between the simple assaults on rivals to all

the way up to committing murder against a :ival,_anywhere in
between. I spoke to.one individual regarding a —-- that certain
clubs have their specialties, like one club may have --

MR. SCHONFELD: Your Honor, if I may reserve objection
td the hearsay, we haven't had an copportunity to cross-examine
him on his background, and the Court hasn't yet ascertained
whether or not he will be admitted as an expert, so we can
reservé objection in the event he is not admitted as an expert,
this would be hearsay.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. DOGAN: I Jjoin in that objection, Your Honor.

THE COURT: OCkay. You may answer.

LR
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THE WITNESS: I forgot the gquestion now. Sorry.
BY MR. HALL:
Q We were talking about the types of crimes that Hells

Angels and Vagos would commit. You said it was anywhere from

Simple assault up to murder, and then you were going to expound

on that theme.

A Yes. Different clubs have their{ what I've been told,
is the specialties. You have clubs that are —-- members that
are better at the —-- you know, the
business-protection-extortion-type crimes. The -- you have
your dope runners, your narcotics ends of it, your weapcns end
of it. You have your chapters that are not necessarily better,
but they deal.in more stolen pfoperty, stolen motorcycles, |
things like that.

Q All right. How about weapons? Do you know anything
about the propensities for either Vagos or Hells Angels to

carry weapons?

A Yes.
Q  Can you tell us about that?
A You really find outlaw motorcycle gang members, both

the Vagos and Hells Angels, armed. It's not a fact of if
there's a knife, it's where your.knife is. At minimum, you
have members armed with a knife betwéen pocket knives clipped
on £he cutside ﬁf the cut or up to large Bowile-style knives on

the hip in plain sight. Also, the long D-cell flashlights,
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I've seen thpse, see them carry them in the middle of the day.
Ball-peen hammers, wrenches, the gethack whips that are on the
bikes. The long whips with the lead in the -- classified as a
sling shot, all the way up to firearms.

I've seen several cuts during my tenure with the gang
unit, =search warrants, and things like that where the cut will
actually have a holster sewn into it to store or carry a
firearm.

Q ° Based upon your training and experience, are
nonmembers allowed to fly.colors or cuts of either the Vagos or
the Hells Angele

A No. The cuts would be property of, say, the Vagos or
the Hells Angels. You don't get to wear anything or, say, have
a death head, for instance, unléss you've earned it. That
would result in severe punishment up te death. You -- property
of the club. Has to be issued. You have to earn it.

Q _Now, there are other patches that can bhe earned as a
member of the Vagos or the Hells Angels? |

A Yes.

Q Or other patches that signify certain work or efforts

on behalf of the respective clubs?

A Yes.
Q  Or gangs?
A Yes.

Q Are you familiar with some of those?
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A Yes. Hells Angels in particular, the Filthy Few patch
which you will -- I'll commonly see on members. The Dequialle,
I apologize, D-E~Q-U-E-~L-L-0, I believe, I'm.probably
butchering that. The main ones that you'll see as far as the
Helis Angels go.

The Vagos, I —— I don't recall what their act of
violence-type patch is. I usually refer on the Vagos somebody
with more expertise to have more dealings with them.

Q Now, you indicated that there was a-guildup,
initially, I believe in your testimony last week, you testified

that there was originally the Bakersfield area Kern County area

‘'was red and white?

A Yes.

Q And if I understood you correctly, that you're-
indicating that that was.territory that belonged to the Hells
Angels; is that fair to say?

iy It's fair to say. I believe it was unofficial, but
they were the main preseﬁce in Kern County and Bakersfield.

Q So what, if anythipg, do you know about territory that
may or may not be claimed by'either the Vagqs or the Hells
Angéls?

A In my experience dealing firsthand with it, when you

‘have another rival club start to invade what they would

| consider their territory, their areas, it results in violence.

It results in standoffs. TI've seen several —— or at least --
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at least two, I've been told of several more in Kern Ccunty,

my current case or my case that I'm here te testify on.

Q All right. So you're aware of a rivalry that existed
between the Hells Angels and the Vagos?

A Yes.

Q And can you tell us how that rivalry was part of the
problem that you have in Kern County?

iy We would have —-- for instance, one particular instance
we had a large showing of Hells Angels and a large showing of
Vagos at a bike show, at a bilke event at the Kern County
fairgrounds. I was told that the powers to be, I believe it
was one which was Michael Pena on the Hells Angels side and the
other one being a subject by the name of Knuckles, I apologize,
I don't recall his real name right now, had met prior and -said
that they set boundaries as far as the fairgrounds go and that
they were going to stay away from each other's booths, each
other's members.

Information was that a couple of Vagos had wandered
into an exhibit building that they shouldn't have béén in.
Hells Angels'tdok offense to that, aﬁa theﬁ if started as far.
as a standoff. On the Hells Angels' side and the support club
side, the red and white supporters, there was_approximafely 15

to 100 members. Vagos, I would say between 50 and B8O,

conservatively, were standing off and getting ready to go at
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it. .

We had undercovers watching and videoing it,
photographing it, and also calling in for additional resources
at the time. And luckily, we were.able to get a large team
there' of members from the gang unit from the Bakersfield Police
Department, my department, and also patrol guys toc stop the
problem.

| Ultimately in that instance, after talking to each
club, a representative from each club, the Vagos chose to leave
ana to avoid the problem.

Q0 When was that? What was the date of that?

A I'd have to look it up. The homicide was in 2010,
that was approximately either late 2008 or early-to-mid 2009,
approximafely. One of the main or starting events that started
the major turmoil between the £wo, at least in Kern County.

Q  All right. So there's -- when you said there were two
factions,.the Vagds and Hells Angels, correct —-—

A Yes.

Q -- just to summarize.

Andlyou indiéated'there was a standqff'and they were
getting ready to -- I think YOu paraphrased and said get it on,
something to that effect?

A Yes. |

MR._SCHONFELD: I object on leading. The reason I'm

standing up is none of this was introduced in the motion to
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also understand that my order ordered you to notify the defense

admit gang evidence nor do we have the reports related to the
Kern County Fair incident that this witness testified to, and
we ask it be --

MR. BALL: As a matter of facf, it was referenced in
his report that there was a problem at the Kern County Fair.
and we are also talking about him being an expert. We would
like him recognized as an expert. He's got a lot to rely on,
background training and exXperience we talked about, and this is
part of the backgréund training and experience he talked about
to establish the rivalry. So we are not trying to have a trial
on the fair. We are talking about the rivalry. And this is
?he basis for his opinicn with respe;t o the rivalry and other
things he's rendered an opinion on thus far.

MR. DOGAN: Your Honor, I would join that objection.

THE COURT: I understand that to be the case, but I

of the experts and what the experts were going to testify to
with specificity. And so if this was disclosed as one of the
bases fof his opinion, that's fine. TIf it wasn't, then that's
what the objection is going to, is it was not preﬁiousiy |
disclosed. So when you.say'it was_in his report,'ﬁas there a
repbrt with régard to him as an expert? |
- MR. HALL: ©No. What we providéd them, the defense

with, their report from the\investigation into the stabbing, a

stabbing allegedly —- well, -the stabbing committed by Michael
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Fena. And I believe in that report he mentions there was an
incident at the féirground; involving Michael Pena, and that
there was a problem with Michael Pené and the Vagos, and then
it escalated. That's my recollection.

THE COURT: And when YOu say you provided it to them,
is it —-

MR. HALL: That is an exhibit to my motion that we
provided to the defense.

THE COURT: Is it the motion or addendum, do you know?

MR. HALL: It's thé -- it was the motion and then the
reports that I'm.refereﬁcing were attached to the motion.

THE COURT: Do you remember what Exhibit Number?

MR. HALL: Exhibit 9.

MR. SCHONFELD: I would also note this witness wasn't

named as the witness related to Exhibit Number 9. It talks

- about Jeffrey Simpson being expected to testify, Jorge

Gil-Blanco ezxpected to testify. It doesn't reference this
witness. We got his curriculum vitae this morning to suggest

that we were notified with specificity what this withess would

testify. There's absolutely hothing in the record to

demonstrate that. -

MR. HALL: I believe I filed an addendum on Friday
indicating that Mr. Coibert was going to testify. |

If you recall, we addressed this issue last week when

Mr. Colbert initially testified, we were going to call Officer

cu}:%éf |
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Damrun, and Officer Damrun was simply an officer that had
initislly responded, and then once we have the reports and we
are trying to determine who was available, in preparation for
the hearing, it was determined that Detective Colbert‘wouid
have been a better witness with more expertise and more
information. &2&nd I indicated. that we did not have his
curriculum vitae last time, so we got that, provided that when
we got it this morning, and so here we are.

MR, SCHONFELD:- Tt's demonstrative of the fact that we

weren't placed on notice as to this particular instance of

- conduct that this witness is testifying to. The State wasn't

aware of this witﬁess being the appropriate witnesé, nor was he
noticed as being an expert until they filed their addendum on
Friday. But nowhere in the record is there ény type of
suggestion that'this.witness would be testifying related to
ihcidents that occurred in late 2008 allegedly at the Kern
County Fair. | | |

MR. HALL: That's not necessarily true since we-

provided them with all the police reports, and as indicated

last time Detective Colbert was here, his name was within the

reports‘we pfovidéd them with repbrts. Sc they've had those
reports for.mbnths now. So they are actuall? on notice of the
inforxmation that Detective Colbert is providing.

MR. SCHONFELD: That was the issue we had last week,

Your Honor. Something in discovery isn't noticed that is

Y5
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requirea by way of this Court's order,.

THE COURT: I do see Exhibit 9 does discuss this
incident and it does discuss Deputy Colbert.

MR. SCHONFELD: Whiﬁh exhibit, Your Honor?

THE COURT: The -- Mr. Pena.

MR. SCHONFELD: That's not what he's testifyving to
yet. He waﬁts to testify regarding two specific instances:
One is the Mr. Pena and the Oildale stabbing that we already
heard ﬁther witnesses testify to, but what he just testified to
is not the ---that instance_of conduct. He testified that |
there's a Kern County Fair in late 2008 where,_according to his
testimonf we just heard, Vagos members entered an area they
agreed would be Hells Angels' area, and there was a
conffontation that they were able to eventually cool off. And
that's not in there.

THE COURT: You do not the have that incident in the
police reports?

MR. SCHONFELD: I-haven't seen it, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You thought it was Exhibit g7

MR, HALL: Fxhibit ¢ is the reports that were compiled
regarding the investigation of the stabbing of Roger Vialano by
Michael Pena, and I believe in thosg reports, and perhaps
Detective Colbert can tell us whether or not he referenced the
fair ground incident as a basié for the rivalry that he knew

existed between the Vagos and the Hells Angels. That's all we
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are doing is laying a foundation for his knowledge of the
rivalry between the Vagos and the Hells Angels.

THE COURT: Did you put it in your report?

THE WITNESS: .I believe that particular incident is
referenced somewhere in here, As far as a separate report
being done for. that incident, I believe there was one. It was
qut a surveillance of the videos and the photographs from it.

MR. HALL: May I apprcach the witness, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. HALL: Counsel, just for your information I'm
referencing page 29 of 82 in the police report.

THE COURT: Okay.

BY MR. HALL:

Q Have vou had an opportunity -- I'm sorry, Your Honor,

are you —-—

THE COURT: .Page 29 of the Kern County Police Report.
Is that what you're referring to?

MR. HaLL: Yes, Your Honor. I can approach and show
it to you just for Conveﬁience.

_MR.'SCHONFELD: I see it alsoc.

MR. HALL: May.I dpproach, Your Honor?

THE CQURT: You showed counsel?

MR. HALL: Yes.

It's right there.

THE COURT: ©Okay. I'm going to overrule the

202F
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objection. You may answer the question.
MR. HALL: Thank you, Your Honor.
BY MR. HALL:

0 Detective Colbertf.you were -- I had askgd you whether
or not you were aware of the rivalry that exists between the
Hells Angels_apd the Vagos, and your basis for that. One of
the bases for that, as the Vagos were building up their
presence in the Kern County area was an ihcidenf at the
fairgrounds. So I was asking you some-questions about that,
and the question I was pdsing was when you sald that there was
essentially a standoff and you called in reinforcements, what
was the reason for calling in a reinforcement? What was your
coencern?

A The fact they were going to fight. We had members
from either side putting thei; riding gloves on, members with
their hands inside their vests, things like that. It lqued
like they were gettiﬁg ready to have a battie.

g] Now, you indicated that it's -- your training and

experience, or your experience at least, and I'm assuming

| training, that a lot of the Vagos and Hells Angels carry both

concealed weapons and exposed weapons?
A Yés.
MR..DOGAN: _Objection., Leading. Asked and answered.
THE COURT: I'm going to overrule it. i think it was

a predicate to the next question.
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THE WITNESS: Yes.
BY MR. HALL:
Q And were you concerned that this incident at the

fairground was going to be a similar incident?

A Yes.

Q In terms of using deadly weapons to engage in a brawl?

A Yes. |

0 Now, let's talk about the incident with respect to
Roger Vialano and Michael Pena. Can you give us an overview of

that particular case, please?

A Yes, sir. We had several similar incidents leading
up, one of which was the night befére our particular homicide,
we had Hells Angels including Michael Pena, a hang-around by
the name of Joseph Soto, and I believe one other that were at a
local.bar, restaurant called The Tilted Kilt. We had Bret
Vialano, Roger Vialano, and one other Vago that showed.up to
The Tilted Kilt to hévé dinner, oﬁ theirxr motorcygles, in their
cuts, and they were basically run off by Pena.

There was a couple of incidents similar to, at prior
The day of the homicide, May 30th, 2010, started --
the Vages were having were at a club birthday party for a

member named Jack Sealy. I believe he was the sergeant-at-arms

chapter had two. They were at a birthday party of one the
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Vagos. A parficular County Line chapter named Knuckles —-- I
apoldgize, again, I don't have his name in front of me --
received a call that Michael Pena, also known as Delano Mike
from the town of Delaﬁo, was at the tattcoco shop on Neorth
Chester Avenue which was a couple of blocks away by himsélf.

The Vagos then got on their motorcycles, and I believe
also with'one chase vehicle, a green truck, to go and confrent
Peﬁa about the several acts of disrespect and to, according to
the witness statements, squash things, to squash the ongoing
feud. |

It was as soon aa the Vagos arrived, they started to
park the motorcyclés in front of the tattoo shop, they
immediately began getting wrenches, helmets, rocks, any --
anything reédily available thrown at them while they were on
the motorcycles. We had several members torn off the
motorcycles and taken to the ground and a fight ensued.between
the two clubs.

We had.at least two Hells Angels full-patch members,
there also was aIHells Angel hang-around, and then several of
the Bakersfield Bastérds support club members, along with the
County Line chapter Vagos. |

THE COURT: I missed that. In.addition you said there
were Hells Angels, hang-arocunds and several --

MR. HALL: Bakersfield Bastards.

THE WITNESS: I'm sorry, Bakersfield Bastards, they
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are the local support club.

THE COURT: So it's a support club?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

THE COURT: You're munching your words a little bit at
the end, so kee? it up.

THE WITNESS: 1 apologize. Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: Thank you.

THE WITNESS: The tattoo shop in particular is paft
owned by Michael Pena, a full-patch Hells Angels member and
also part owned by Bakersfield Bastards members. It's known as
basically the Bakersfield Bastards clubhouse where they keep
the records, bylaws, the cuts, their everythiﬁg. |

The Vagos.show up, again, beginning to get bombarded
with helmets and other items, and the fight ensues.

Witness Statements were from -- most of the witnesses
that were there“were members of some -- one of the clubs and
invoked the code, did not want to talk. However, some did.

The gist of the story was that the fight eﬁsued and Michael
Pena was standing over an older male by.the name of Jack Sealy,
a Vagos member sergeant-at-arms who's significantly older than
Pena, I believe he was late 50s or early 60s, if I remember
correctly, holding a knife. The prospect, Roger Vialano, who
had been a prospect either 16 or 19 days, was the Vagos County
Line sergeaﬁt -- the other sergeant-at-arms'™ son, Brad Peﬁa,

and pulled him off of the other Vago member.
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The next thing was that reportedly Michael Pena

stabbed Roger Vialano and he went down. They got him out of

there,

three Vagos members got Roger out of there. And then

another full-patch Vages member who was 72 years old at the

time began calling Pena a coward and saying several derogatory

remarks towards Pena. Pena then, as the 72-year-old Vagos

member turned around, stabbed him in the back twice, one of

which —-- same hole but two wounds, one going in one way,

partially pulling the knife out, and then it going in the other

way.

The Vagos got out of there, the two injured Vagos

members went to the hospital, one of which subsequently died.

It was later discovered that the prospect was armed

with a firearm; however, i1t didn't get pulled during the

incident.
BY MR. HALL:
Q So that was Roger Vialano had a firearm in his vest?
A It was.still tucked.away hidden in his cut.
Q And did the fago have a knife on him?
A Yes, I believe it.was a pocketknife,.
o 211 right. BAnd those items were recovered at the
hespital?
A Yes.
Q And they wefe turned over by hospital personnel?
A Yes.
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what's your opinion with respect to the reason for this fight
and the murder of Mr. Vialano?

A There were several.

MR. SCHONFELD: Your Honor, I cbject to the
characterization of murder of Mr. Vialano. This went to a jury
trial and Mr. Pena was found not guilty.

MR. HALL: Well, if homicide would be a better term,
homicide, murder, whatever counsel would occur.

MR, SCHONFELD: TIt's not a murder; jury said it
wasn't.

THE COURT:- Was it a murder trial?

MR. HALL: Yes.

THE COURT: 3o the death of Mr. Vialano for now should
use the word death, because we don't know if it was a homicide.
Was he found guilty of any homicide?

MR. HALL: WNo, no. They asgsserted self-defense.

THE COURT: Okay. Well.

MR. HALL: We'll get into that.

THE COURT: Olkay.

BY MR. HALL: |

Q What was the reason for the fight, the stabbing?

A Based on ;— based on other instances that occurred,
you had a Vagos prospect that put his hands on a Hells Angel,

one of which was reported are in the past say you don't ever

0045
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touch a Hells Angel. The Vagos went there, and depending on
which way you lock at that time, locking te talk or lodkiﬁg for
trouble, however you look at it. The Hells Angels were ready
for them, they ultimately got the upper hand in the deal, and
one Vago died.

Q Would it be fair to say the action of the Vagos was in
affiliation with the Vagos criminal gqang?

A Absolutely.

MR. DOGAN: Objection. Leading..
THE COURT: Sustainedi
BY MR. HALL:

Q Were the -- can you tell us, you've already testified
there was a number of Vagos there, correct?

A Yes.

Q And there were a number of Hells Angels, and it was a
fight, essentially, between the Hells Angels and Vagos; is that
fair to say?

A Yes.

' 0 ‘All right. And you testified that what was the --
Catch your knee?
A I f;und the corner.
I'm a little taller.
THE COURT: Is the chair too high?
THE WITNESS: I'm ockay. I'm kind of a mutant. I Jjust

den't fit very well. I'm fine.

. L{ =
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BY MR. HALL:-
0 All right. And would it be fair to say that the fight
between those was an activity of the two criminél gangs?
MER. DOGAMN: Objection. Leading.
MR. SCHONFELD: Objection. Leading. You already
sustained a very similar objection.
THE COURT: Sustained.
BY MR, HALL:

Q Are you familiar with NRS 153.1687

A I'm not sure what that is.

Q A1l right. Let me tell you a little bit about it.
That statute, in order to make a finding that the gang
enhancement applies, there must be a finding fhat the crimes in
this particular case, we are talking about fhe stabbings and
the battery, wefe committed knowingly for the benefit of, at
the direction of, or in affiliation with a criminal gang with
s?ecific intent to promote, further éssist the'activities of a
criminal gang.

So do you have an opinion as to whether or not -those
activities are consistent with NRS 193.168_subsection 1?2
MR. SCHONFELD: Your Honor, we object to the form of
the question.
- THE CQURT: Sustained.
MR. DOGAN: I join.
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BY MR. HALL:

o] Do you have an opinion as to what the intent of either
the Vagos or the Hells Angels were with respect to engaging in
this fight and ultimate stabbing of the two Vagos?

B My opinion is =~

MR. DOGAW: Objection. Asked and answered.

THE COURT: I don't know if it's asked and answered.
Overruled. |

A I'm good?

Okay. My opiniocn is the.Vagos went there, again,
dépending how you look at it, either to squash this by fighting
Mike Pena or to squash this by talking, however -- whatever the
intent was to go there, the Hells Angels were ready for them.

I believe the Vagos went there on behalf of .a motorcycle gang,
the Vagos, because of the cngoing acts and disrespect by the
Hells Angels, more specifically, Mike Pena. I believe they
went there as a group knowingly and with full intent or at
least should have known that it would have resulted in a fight

based on past acts between these two clubs. BAlso believe that

the Hells Angels, being ready in numbers and according to

reports, witness statemenﬁs, began flowing out of this building
from all angles, all sides, to jump-on these Vageos as they rode
up, again, on behalf of Hells Angels. You have the ongoing
feud between the two, the struggle for the area, the stabbing

itself, the credibility, and the absolute —- 1in gangs I would
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say street credit, but in outlaw motorcycle gangs, it would be
more fair te say yoﬁr club credit, your -- the work you.put in,
your status, you're peints built ub, Whatever -- however you
ﬁant te look at it. |

Q Let me ask you a couple of more questions. Now would
tefritory be scomething that the Hells Angels would want tb
protect, that Kern County area®?

A Yes.

Q And that would be important for them to assert their
presence either violently or otherwise —-

" MR. SCHONFELD: Object. Leading.
BY MR. HALL:

Q -- to send & message to other outlaw motorcycle gangs?

THE COURT: Sustained. The objection was sustained.
BY MR. HALL:

Q All right. What is the significance, i1f any, of a
territory with respect to Hells Angels and Vagos?-

A Just like any criminai street gang, you have your
territories. It would ke disrespectful to come into somebody
else's territory.

More specifically outlaw motorcycle gangs, you have
not pnly coming.into your territory,lbut they are coming in
flying their colors, flying-their cuts. .In my tféining and
experiencé and_after talking to several outlaw motorcycle gang

members during this investigation, it would be absolutely
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considered as basically a slap in the face by your rivals or by
the other club, that being extremely significant in the ongoing

turf war or the struggle for that particular area.

Q Now, with respect to codes of conduct, would that be
showing a disrespect?

A Yes.

Q And based upon your training and experience, how would
either the Vagos or the Hells Angels respond to a showing of
disrespect or a violation of the territorial areas claimed by
the respective club be? _

MR. DOGAN: Objection. Cumulative.

MR. SCHONFELD: I'm also going to object oﬁ
foundation.

THE COURT: I'll overrule on foundation. I don't
think it's cumulati%ei Maybe you meant compound.

MER. DOGAN: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I'll sustain on the gréunds of compound.
BY MR. HALL:

Q Can you break that down into, first of all, with
respect fo code of conduct, based ﬁpoﬁ your training and
experience,rhbw would Vagos or Hells Angels respond tc a
violation of the code of conduct with respect to territory?

A You're expected to not oniy represent youf particular

charter, your territory, your turf, whatever you_want to call
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it. 2nd I apologize, I haven't read the bylaws in quité a
while since I left the gang unit, but I think it's actually
written that you will Eack up your colors, back up your cuts,
and your area being the same, that being a red and white area.
and the Vages showing up and not just being_a red and white
area anymore, it would be extreme disrespect toward the Hells
Angels and viewed as such.

Q And then the Vagos' code of conduct with respect to
the Vagos being an outlaw motorcycle gang, would they have to
-- would théy be able to assert their presence by an act of
violence?

A Sure. BAbsolutely. You have the same thingf You have
your Vagos, according to information that I received that were
expanding their numbers, expanding their turf, expanding their
area. .Same thing, to show whose area it is. Or ocftenly, the
battles or feuds between these'fival clubs or gangs will go to
violence.

Q- And that would be -- one of their ccdes of conduct
would be to engage in violence based upon rivalry, aﬁd fight
over their turf?

MR.. DOGBN: Objection. Leading.
MR. SCHONFELD: Join.

THE COURT: Sustained.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

" MR, SCHONFELD: Move to strike.

FOUK
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THE COURT: The answer is stricken. I sustained the
objection. |

THE WITNESS: I apologize. I'm sorry, judge.

THE COURT: That's okay.
BY MR. HALL:

Q Is your training and experience consistent -- let me
rephrase the gquestion.

Did you have an copportunity to examine scme of the
evidence that we have in the case at the Nugget?

yiy Yes.

Q- A1l right. And you've testified earlier that ycu saw
the.standoff at the fairgrounds and are familiar with the fight
between the Vagos and the Hells Angels; is that right? -

A Yes.

Q Now, do you have an opinion as to whether or not the
stabbing of the two Vagos contributed to an ongoing rivalry
betweeﬁ the Hells Angels and Vagos?

A Yes.

0 And what is that opinion?

A That 1t was oﬁe of the - not the first, but one of
the first that we were all -— all the outlaw motorcycle gang
investigators that I speak to, it was one of the first between
the green and the red and white as fér as the waging of war or
however you want to gsay it, but fhe ongoing rivalry that's, to

my knowledge, still in effect today between the Hells Angels
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